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The Honorable Members of the
Board of Supervisors of the
County of Santa Clara

San Jose, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of
the County of Santa Clara, California, (the County), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the FIRST 5 Santa Clara County; the County Sanitation District 2 — 3 of Santa Clara
County; the Santa Clara County Vector Control District; the Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization
Authority; the Santa Clara County Tobacco Securitization Corporation; and the Santa Clara County
Central Fire Protection District, the South Santa Clara County Fire District, and Los Altos Hills County
Fire District (collectively, “Fire Districts™), which represent the following percentages of assets, net assets
and revenues as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

Opinion Unit Assets Net Assets Revenues
Governmental activities 2.8% 3.8% 3.8%
Business-type activities 1.1% 6.2% 0.3%
Aggregate discretely presented component units
and remaining fund information 3.7% 4.3% 1.2%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those entities, is based on the reports
of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

An Independent Member of the BDO Seidman Alliance



In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component
units and remaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1(0) to the basic financial statements, effective July 1, 2007, the County adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and GASB
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 17, 2008, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress and budgetary comparison
schedule — General Fund as listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by the accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards (the Schedule) is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. In addition, the Schedule does
not include expenditures of federal awards received by the Housing Authority of the County of Santa
Clara (Housing Authority), which expended $223,757,449 in federal awards during the year ended
June 30, 2008. The Housing Authority’s expenditures are separately audited in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133. The Schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Certified Public Accountants

Walnut Creek, California
December 17, 2008



County of Santa Clara
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited

As management of the County of Santa Clara (the County), we offer readers of the County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1 to vi of this
report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities by $1.9 billion (net assets) for the year. Of this amount,
$827.3 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to its
citizens and creditors, and $282.4 million (restricted net assets) may be used for the County’s ongoing
obligations related to programs with external restrictions. The County’s net assets invested in capital
asscts, net of related debt were $759.7 million. (Scc further detail in Table 1 on page 6).

The County’s total net assets decreased by $40.0 million for the year. (See further detail in Table 2 on
page 9).

At June 30, 2008, the County governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $860.0 million, an
increase of $44.6 million from prior year. Approximately 86.1 percent of the combined fund balances,
$740.8 million, is available to meet the County’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balance),
which represents a $67.8 million increase from prior year.

At June 30, 2008, the County’s unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $434.4 million or 23.0
percent of total General Fund expenditures.

The County’s investments in capital assets increased by $162.6 million or 12.8 percent. (See further detail
in Table 5 on page 17).

The County’s total long-term debt, net of debt service principal pay-off of $24.2 million for the year,
increased by $470.8 million or 50.7 percent during the current fiscal year. (Sce further detail in Tablc 6 on
page 18).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial
statements. The County’s basic financial statements comprise three components 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. Required supplementary
information is included in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statemenis are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of County
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all County asscts and liabilitics, with the difference
between the two reported as ner assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating,



The statement of activities presents information showing how net assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the government-
wide statements for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activitics of the County include gencral government, public protection, public ways and facilitics,
health and sanitation, public assistance, education and recreation and culture. The business-type activities of
the County include a hospital—Santa Clara Valley Medical Center (SCVMC), three airports (Reid Hillview,
Palo Alto and South County) and one sanitation district (County Sanitation District 2-3).

Component units arc included in the basic financial statements and consist of legally scparatc entitics for which
the County is financially accountable. Because of the governing board relationship and the exclusivity of
County services, the financial operations of some component units are blended in the County’s basic financial
statements. These component units are the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District, South Santa
Clara County Fire District, Los Altos Hills County Fire District, Santa Clara County Library, Santa Clara
County Vector Control District, County Sanitation District 2-3 of Santa Clara County, Santa Clara County
Financing Authority, Santa Clara County—El Camino Hospital District Hospital Facilities Authority, Santa
Clara County Tobacco Securitization Corporation and the Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization Authority.
The Housing Authority of Santa Clara County and the FIRST 5 Santa Clara County are reported as discrete
component units of the County.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 23 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Howecver, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
goveramental activities 1n the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, the readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statcment of revenucs, cxpenditurcs and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
aclivities.

The County maintains 25 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund. Data from other governmental funds are combined into a single
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements and schedules clscwhere in this report,

The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 24 — 27 of this report.



Proprietary funds

The County maintains two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise
funds to account for one hospital—Santa Clara Valley Medical Center (SCVMC), three airports (Reid Hillview,
Palo Alto and South County) and one sanitation operation (County Sanitation District 2-3). [nternal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various
functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its information services, fleet management,
insurance claims, printing services, unemployment insurance, worker’s compensation, employee benefits,
pension costs and retirees’ healthcare provided to County employees. The internal service funds have been
allocated between the governmental activitics and busincss-type activitics bascd on the relative percentage of
use of the internal service funds in these activities.

Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the business-type activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the SCVMC, which is considered a major fund. The financial statements of the
nonmajor enterprise funds (Airport and Sanitation District) are combined into a single aggregated presentation.
Similarly, the County’s nine internal service funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation in the
proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the enterprise funds and the internal service
funds is provided in the form of combining statements section of this report.

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 28 - 31 of this report.

Fiduciary funds

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the County.
Fiduciary funds arc not reflected in the government-wide financial statements becausc the resources of thosc
funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds except for agency funds.

The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 32 - 33 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be
found on pages 35 - 90 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information is presented concerning the County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits and post employment benefits to its employees and the County General
Fund budgetary comparison schedule. The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund.
A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 91 - 104 of this report.

Combining Statements and Schedules

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide information for
nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds, internal service funds, and certain fiduciary funds
and are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining and individual
fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 107 - 163 of this report.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The County’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $1.9 billion at June 30, 2008. As stated earlier, net assets may

serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. When applicable, prior year numbers
have been reclassified to make them comparable to the current year.

Table 1—Net Assets (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Total Dollar Percent
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Change Change
Current and other assets $ 1728725 $ 2052927 $ 437319 $ 38256 $ 2166044 $ 2439183 $ 273139 12.6%
Capital assets 866,027 931,127 407,370 504,919 1,273,397 1,436,046 162,649 12.8%
Total assets 2,594,752 2,984,054 844,689 891,175 3439441 3,875,229 435,788 12.7%
Current and other liabilities 215,533 218,965 65,728 95,702 281,261 314,667 33,406 11.9%
Long-term iabilities 650,403 1,038578 598,421 652,667 1,248824 1,691,245 442421 35.4%
Total liabilities 865,936 1,257,543 664,149 748,369 1,530,085 2,005,912 475,827 3L1%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 673,075 693,874 42,466 65,821 71541 759,695 4,154 6.2%
Restricted net assets 106,038 144,803 119,345 137,550 225,383 282,353 56,970 25.3%
Unrestricted net assets 949,703 837,834 18,729 (60,565) 968,432 827,269 (141,163)  (14.6%)
Total net assets $ 1728816 $ 176511 $ 180540 $ 142806 $ 1909356 $ 1869317 $ (40039) (21%
Assets

The County’s total assets increased by $435.8 million or 12.7 percent primarily due to the following:

Governmental activities. Total assets for the governmental activities increased by $389.3 million or 15.0
percent. The current and other assets increased by $324.2 million. The primary reason for this increase is that
the County issued $389.5 million of bonds used to prepay part of the pension plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued
liability creating a $350.5 million net pension asset at June 30, 2008. Also contributing to the increase in
current and other assets is a $71.6 million increase in the internal borrowings from the business-type activities
discussed in the business-type activities section. Offsetting these increases included the County’s contribution
of $80.0 million used to establish an irrevocable trust with the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT) used to fund its retiree healthcare benefits. In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension (OPEB). This statement requires the County to report its costs
and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other non-pension benefits. Accordingly, the County
hired a consultant to conduct an actuarial valuation to determine its retiree healthcare or OPEB annual required
contributions (ARC). During 2008, the County established an irrevocable trust to fund the ARC.

Capital assets used to support governmental activities increased by $65.1 million or 7.5 percent; depreciable
capital assets increased by $23.8 million, while non-depreciable capital assets increased by $41.3 million.
Changes in capital assets will be discussed in the Capital Assets section on page 17.



Business-type activities. Total asscts for the business-type activitics increased by $46.5 million or 5.5 percent—
a $51.0 million decrease in current and other assets and a $97.5 million increase in capital assets. The decrease
in current and other assets consisted primarily of SCVMC’s increased working capital borrowings from the
County’s General Fund which contributed S71.6 million of the decrease. This decrease offsets a $43.8 million
increase in patient receivables and receivables from other government agencies due to price increases,
increased Medi-Cal rates and Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services mandated system changes. The
remaining $23.2 decrease is due primarily from cash flow timing differences. The $97.5 million increase in
capital assets was from construction activities financed by bond proceeds. The SCVMC will spend the
remaining restricted investments on its projects in the next fiscal year. Changes in capital assets will be
discusscd in the Capital Asscts scetion on page 17.

Liabilities
The County’s total liabilities increased by $475.8 million or 31.1 percent mainly due to the following:

Governmental activities. Total liabilitics for the governmental activitics incrcased by S391.6 million or 45.2
percent is due primarily to the County’s issuance of $389.5 million in taxable pension funding bonds used to
prepay a portion of the County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability in the amount of $344.4 million and to
finance the repayment of the net pension obligation in the amount of $42.2 million with the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).

Business-type activities. Total liabilities for the business-type activities increased by $84.2 million or 12.7
percent - $30.0 million increase in current and other liabilities and $54.2 million increase in long-term
liabilities. The increases in current and other liabilities resulted from timing differences in payment processing
for year-end accruals due to staffing shortages as well as increases in estimated third-party payor settlements
related to SCVMC’s Valley Carc Program. The increase in long-term liabilitics mainly consisted of SCVMC’s
2007 Series K Lease Revenue Bonds allocation in the amount of $70.9 million. These bonds were issued to
fund the health clinic’s capital improvements. This increase was offset by the County assuming and paying
SCVMC'’s outstanding net pension obligation of $12.0 million.

Net Assets

The largest portion of the County’s net assets (44.3 percent) represents wunrestricted net assets of
$827.3 million, which may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Another
significant portion of the County’s net assets of $759.7 million (40.6 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, and equipment and vehicles) net of accumulated
depreciation, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. The remaining $282.4 million (15.1 percent) of the County’s net assets represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.



At the end of the current fiscal year, the County reported positive balances in all categories of net assets for its
governmental activities. For business-type activities, a negative balance of $60.5 million existed for the
unrestricted net asset category due to SCVMC’s return of compensated absence cumulative funded subsidies to
the General Fund.

Net Assets (in millions) Change in Net Assets
$2,500 OUnrestricted (gin rIT'I iIIions)
$2,000 - $50 - |:| |—|
$1500 | i $0 ‘ ‘ ‘
O Restricted
($50) -
$1000 A
($100)
$500 - Olnvested in ($150)
E?g?rzls:tj;‘ Total Unrestricted Restricted Inﬁlsted irt]
$0 ‘ debt capir assets,
€ net of related
05-06 06-07 07-08 debt

The County’s net assets decreased by $40.0 million or 2.1 percent for the year. This change in net assets is
explained below in the context of the County’s governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental activities
The governmental activities decreased the County’s net assets by $2.3 million. Revenues exceeded expenses
by $119.2 million. In addition, net transfers of $121.5 million were made to the business-type activities.

As an arm of the state government, the County provides various mandated services, such as public assistance,
public health, and mental health. Revenues directly generated by or attributable to a specific governmental
function are called program revenues. These include charges for services and restrictive (program specific)
grants and contributions, both operating and capital. The following chart shows the County’s program
revenues and expenses for the year. The general revenues—taxes (property, business, and sales), unrestricted
grants, and investment income are not included in this chart. These general revenues are not be shown by
program, but are available to support the program activities countywide.

Expenses and Revenues - Governmental Activities

$728
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Changes in the County’s net assets from its governmental activities are explained in the context of changes in

revenues and expenses:

Table 2—The Change in Net Assets (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Total Dollar Percent
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 Change Change
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Chargps for services $ 253859 $ 25898 $ 647,75 $ 7R3HB0 $ 0L5M $ 01208 $ 89714 10.0%
Operatinggrants and contributions 1042424 1,141,284 9138 9,276 1,051,562 1,150,560 98,998 9.4%
Capital grants and contributions 10,203 13847 9230 11,560 19433 25407 5974 30.7%
General revenues:
Property taxes 702,776 748462 - - 702,776 748462 45,686 6.5%
Sales and use taxes 7437 6,974 10,056 8202 17493 15,176 (2317) (132%
Other taxes 60,652 59,542 - - 60,652 59,542 (1,110 (18%)
Unrestricted grants and contribution 39,490 25,862 - - 39490 25,862 (13628) (3459
Unrestricted investrent income 105,118 4229 10,008 14472 115126 56,766 (58360)  (50.7%)
Gain on sale of capital assets 217 - - 217 - (217)  (100.0%)
Other revenue 56,353 60,757 - - 56,353 60,757 4404 7.8%
Total revenues 2,2718)529 2,357,960 686,157 775870 2,964,686 3133830 169,144 5.7%
Programexpenses:
General government 198,510 275,888 - - 198,510 275,388 77,378 30.0%
Public protection 696,216 728,482 - - 696,216 728482 32,266 4.6%
Public ways and fecilities 89,741 83,103 - - 89,741 83103 (6,638) (7.4%)
Heslth and sanitation 392171 424,49 - - 392171 424,49 32,324 82%
Public assistance 601,222 641,710 - - 601,222 641,710 40,483 6.7%
Education 27932 33640 - - 27932 33640 5,708 204%
Recreation and culture 26,681 29433 - - 26,681 20433 2,752 103%
Interest on long-term liabilities 18,887 22,008 - - 18887 22,008 3121 165%
WIC - - 823409 928,986 823,409 928,986 105577 128%
Airport - - 3451 3589 3451 3589 138 4.0%
Sanitation District - - 2514 2,712 2514 2,772 258 10.3%
Total expenses 2,051,360 2,238,759 829374 935,347 2,880,734 3174,106 293372 102%
Boess (deficiency) before transfers 227,169 119,201 (143217) (259,477) 83952 (40,276) (124228)  (148.0%)
Transfers (274,867) (121,506) 274,867 121,506 - - - na
Increase (decrease) in net assets (47,698) (2,305) 131,650 (37,971) 83952 (40,276) (124228)  (148.0%)
Net assets, beginning of year, as
previously reported 1776514 1,728816 49,208 180,540 1,825,722 1,909,356 83,634 4.6%
Prior period adjustment - - (318) 237 (318) 237 555  (1745%)
Net assets, beginningof year, asrestated 1,776,514 1,728,816 48890 180,777 1,825,404 1,909,593 84,189 4.6%
Net assets, end of year $ 1728816 $ 1726511 $ 180540 $ 142806 $ 1909356 $ 1869317 $ (40,039 (21%)




Revenues

The County’s revenue for its governmental activities increased $79.4 million or 3.5 percent to $2.36 billion.
The program revenues increased by $107.6 million or 8.2 percent, while general revenues decreased by $28.2
million or 2.9 percent. Over the past three years, the County’s program revenues and general revenues from its
governmental activities have contributed about 64.1 percent and 35.9 percent, respectively, of total revenue for
running those governmental programs.

The largest source of program revenues for the County’s governmental activities is federal and state grants and
contributions, both operating and capital. These revenues amount to about 81.7 percent of the County’s
program revenues, and about 49.0 percent of its total revenues. For the year, revenues from grants and
contributions increased by $102.5 million or 9.7 percent, while revenues from charges for services increased by
$5.1 million or 2.0 percent. Contributing to this increase was the State’s increase in CalWorks, State
Realignment for Public Health and State Medi-Cal administration local share ratio and reimbursement rates,
increase in delegated payments from the San Jose Redevelopment Agency (SJRDA) and increases in other
health related and public assistance grants. In prior years, the SIRDA has agreed to pass-through property
taxes to the County. A portion of the pass-throughs are restricted to be used in a particular redevelopment
project area (delegated payment) and a portion is unrestricted (pass-through payment). During fiscal year, the
County reclassified its presentation of the delegated payment which resulted in an increase in the operating
grants and contributions in the amount of $40.0 million and a decrease in the unrestricted grants and
contribution in the amount of $15.4 million. The increased revenues from the SIRDA reflects the terms of the
agreement which states 20 percent of any new debt proceeds secured by the SIRDA property tax revenues are
to be paid to the County. Revenues from charges for services increased due to higher revenues earned from
services provided by the Central Fire District and Office of the Sheriff to its customers as well as increased
permit fees collected by the Environmental Health Department.

Program Revenues By Source - Governmental General Revenues By Sour ce - Gover nmental
Activities Activities

[@Property tax 79.3%

Sales tax 0.7%
O Charges for services = ’

18.3%
COther taxes 6.3%

E Capital grants &

contributions 10% OUnredtricted grants &

contributions 2.7%

O Operating grants & M Investment earings 4.5%
contributions 80.7%

[@Other revenue 6 4%

The County’s general revenues decreased by $28.2 million or 2.9 percent from the prior year. General
revenues include taxes, investment earnings, unrestricted grants and contributions, and some miscellaneous
revenues not directly related to governmental programs. General revenues support government programs by
defraying costs, which those programs cannot cover from their own revenues. Tax revenues are the County’s
second largest revenue source—grants and contributions being the largest. The County earned $815.0 million
in tax revenues (property tax, property tax in lieu of motor vehicle license fee, and sales tax) for the current
year. This is approximately 86.3 percent of the general revenues, and 34.6 percent of the total current year
revenues. These general revenues provide the Board of Supervisors (the Board) with most of its discretionary
spending ability.

Property tax revenues increased by $45.7 million or 6.5 percent from the prior year. For 2008, the assessed
value of property in the County increased by $21.6 billion and the total assessed value, net of non-reimbursable
institutional exemptions (e.g., qualifying charge and welfare organizations) was $283.5 billion, an increase of
8.3% over the previous year. However, this increase in the property tax assessments was tempered by increases
in property tax refunds and delinquent accounts and the downward trend in the residential housing market due
to increasing home foreclosures.
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Unrestricted grants and contributions decreased by $13.6 million. Most of the decrcase relates to a
reclassification of the SJRDA dedicated payment of $15.4 million to operating grants.

Investment earnings decreased by S62.8 million mainly due to reduction in fair market value of $34.9 million
for investments held by the Retiree Health Insurance Fund. The County’s investment policy allows the County
to invest up to 67 percent of its Retiree Health Fund in equities. These investments lost over 9.0 percent of its
value during the fiscal year. In addition, the County prepaid its pension cost in the amount of $168.4 at the
beginning of the year decreasing the average daily cash balance over the year and the commingled investment
pool’s average quarterly earnings rate decreased from 4.884 percent last year to 4.493 percent in the current
year, Thesc factors also contributed to lower investment carnings.

Expenses

Expenses for the governmental activities increased by $187.4 million or 9.1 percent, and transfers to the
business-type activitics decrcased by $153.4 million to $121.5 million. With the cxception of public ways and
facilities, costs for all other categories of governmental activities were higher for the year. Primary reasons for
changes in expenses and transfers are explained below:

Overall payroll costs increased by 3.3 percent from the prior year primarily due to increasing salaries and
higher costs for retirce medical insurance. Pay incrcascs and filling of vacant positions contributed an
additional $27.9 million or 3.9 percent in comparison to last year. Health insurance rates rose by 6.5
percent, which increased healthcare costs by $6.6 million for existing employees. With the implementation
of GASB Statement No. 45, the costs for retiree medical insurance increased significantly by 38.9 percent
or an additional $9.8 million of costs. PERS costs declined by $12.5 million due to reductions in PERS
ratecs for miscellancous staft from 11.9 pereent to 9.9 pereent and for public safcty members’ from 25.8
percent to 20.5 percent as a result of prepaying PERS cost at the beginning of the year.

General government expenses rose $77.4 million or 39.0 percent. This increase is due primarily to the
County’s contribution of $80.0 to establish an irrevocable trust with the CERBT to fund its retiree
healthcare benefits.

Higher demand for mental health service programs and expansion of the Mental Health Services Act
contributed to a $32.3 million or 8.2 percent increases for health and sanitation costs. The passage of
Proposition 63 (now known as the Mental Health Services Act or MHSA) in November 2004, provided the
California Department of Mental Health (DMH) to provide increased funding, personnel and other
resources to support county mental health programs and monitor progress toward statewide goals for
children, transition age vouth, adults, older adults and families.

Higher payroll and benefit costs and increased costs for inmate medical, maintenance, and insurance and
indigent defense cases contributed to increased public protection expenses of $32.2 million or 4.6 percent.

Education and recreation expenses grew by $8.5 million or 15.5 percent in comparison to the prior year due
to higher payroll and benefit costs plus book cost increases and the additional cost of installing wireless
internet service at all County Library locations.

Interest on long-term debt increased by $3.1 million or 16.5 percent mainly from interest payments on
variable rate bonds that rose during a period when the auction rate interest rate market collapsed from the
financial markct uphcaval that occurred towards the end of the calendar year. In addition, interest increased
due to a full year’s of interest from the $102.0 million Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed bonds issued in
January 2007.

Public ways and facilities decreased by $6.6 million or 7.4 percent due to the reduction in the number of
capital projects funded with the close-out of the Measure B Transportation Improvement Program,

Public assistance program costs increased by $40.4 million or 6.7 percent. The increases were mainly duc
to higher payroll costs from salary and benefit increases for Social Services Agency employees. In addition,
costs rose due to service increases in the In-Home Support Services and Welfare-to-Work programs.

Transfers decreased by S153.4 million to $121.5 million due primarily to a nonrecurring prior year capital
transfer of $107.8 million for seismic capital improvements and a $44.6 decrease in net transfers from the
General Fund duc to a return of prior years” compensated absence funding.
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The following chart shows the County’s expenses by functional category for the governmental activities.

Expenses By Function/Program - Governmental Activities
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Business-type activities

Business-type activities decreased the County’s net assets by $38.0 million. The business-type activities had a
net operating deficit of $159.5 million and which was offset by net transfers of $121.5 million from the
governmental activities.

The largest of the County’s business-type activities, SCVMC, had $915.8 million in expenses and $746.3
million in program revenues for the year. This is about 99.1 percent of the program revenues of all business-
type activities. Its program revenues increased by $85.3 million primarily due to increase in patient activity
and changes of Federal Qualified Health Center requirements that caused an increase in the service charge rate.
As a result, its charge for services increased by $84.2 million, while operating grants and contributions
revenues increased by $1.1 million. SCVMC'’s expenses increased by $92.4 million. One key factor is payroll
costs increased $49.8 million due to higher negotiated salary increases and increased full-time equivalents
(FTE) (4,905 FTE in 2007 to 4,970 FTE in 2008) due to higher outpatient activity. Outpatient visits increased
6.8% from 702,860 to 750,849 visits. Increased contract services and supplies of $42.2 million due to higher
outpatient activity, inflation and outside medical costs also attributed to the increase. SCVMC consists of a)
Valley Medical Center—a 574-bed licensed acute-care hospital, and clinics for outpatient and ambulatory
services, and b) Valley Health Plan—a licensed HMO with 62,000 clients.

The other enterprise operations—airport and sanitation districts—are very small in size and did not change
much in the year. The first chart below shows expenses and revenues by each business activity, while the
second chart shows revenues by source for the business activities.

Expenses and ProgramRevenues - Business-type Activities

(Dollars inmilliors) Revenues By Source - Business-type Activities
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. When applicable, prior year numbers have been reclassified to make them comparable to the
current year.

Governmental funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.
In particular, unreserved fund balance may scrve as a uscful mecasurc of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reported by the County include the
General Fund, special revenue funds, capital project funds, debt service funds and a permanent fund.

At June 30, 2008, the County’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $860.0 million, an increase
of $44.6 million or 3.5 percent from the prior year. Approximately 86.1 percent of the combined fund balances,
$740.8 million, constitutes the unreserved fund balance, which is available to meet the County’s current and
future needs. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it 1s not available for new spending
because it has been committed to: a) pay debt service - $52.9 million; b) reflect inventories and other assets that
are long-term in nature and thus do not represent available spendable resources - $38.4 million; and ¢) liquidate
contractual commitments of the period - $27.9 million,

For its governmental funds, the County’s total revenues for the current fiscal year were $2.33 billion—an
increase of $132.0 million or 6.0 percent over the last year. Total governmental fund expenditures decreased
by $16.9 million or 0.7 percent to $2.27 billion for the year. Primary reasons for these significant changes in
revenuces and expenditures for the governmental funds are ecxplained in the framework of individual funds.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. Its unreserved and undesignated fund balance was
$109.7 million at June 30, 2008, while its total fund balance was $476.3 million, a $15.0 million increase from
the prior year. This was mainly due to an excess of revenues over expenditures of $140.7 million for the fiscal
year, which was offsct by $125.7 million in transfers to other County funds and other financing sources. As a
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unreserved fund balance and the
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The unreserved fund balance and the total fund balance represent
5.8 percent and 25.3 percent of the total General Fund expenditures, respectively.

The County’s management designates (earmarks) unreserved fund balance to a particular function, project or
activity. Fund balance may also be designated for long-term purposes. However, designated fund balance is
available for appropriation at any time. Of the $476.2 million General Fund total fund balance, $324.7 million
or 68.2 percent is designated for future expenditures. The fund balance designations are listed below:

Amount

Fund balance designated for: (Millions)

- Futwre operations of the Santa Clara Valley Medical Center $2403

- Fiduciary activities and contingencies 136
- Transportation improvement projects funded by Measure B

(one-half percent Countywide sales tax) revenues 13.0

- Litigation Reserve 30

- Various contingencics designated by the Board of Supervisors 54.8

Total General Fund designated fund balance $324.7



General Fund revenues and expenditures for the year were $2.02 billion and $1.88 billion, respectively. While
its revenues increased by $96.9 million or 5.0 percent for the year, its expenditures increased by $1.1 million or
0.1 percent. The Fund’s revenues by sources and expenditures by function as well as increases or decreases
from the prior fiscal year are presented below:

Table 3—General Fund Revenue Classified by Source (in thousands)

FY 2007 FY 2008 Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues by source Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Taxes $ 596,235 309% $ 633,133 31.3% $ 36,898 6.2%
Licenses and permits 12,451 0.7% 13,733 0.7% 1,282 10.3%
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 44,672 2.3% 40,873 2.0% (3,799) (8.5%)
Interest and investment income 37,444 1.9% 25,749 1.3% (11,695) (31.2%)
Intergovernmental revenues 1,046,635 54.3% 1,147,477 56.5% 100,842 9.6%
Charges for services 131,784 6.8% 132,982 6.6% 1,198 0.9%
Other 59,536 3.1% 31,667 1.6% (27,869) (46.8%)
Total $ 1,928,757 100.0% $ 2,025,614 100.0% $ 96,857 5.0%

Table 4—General Fund Expenditures by Function (in thousands)

FY 2007 FY 2008 Increase/(Decrease)

Expenditures by function Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
General government $ 171,175 9.1% $ 178,450 9.6% $ 7,275 4.3%
Public protection 614,531 32.6% 637,304 33.8% 22,773 3.7%
Public ways and facilities 40,584 2.2% 28,304 1.5% (12,280) (30.3%)
Health and sanitation 372,695 19.8% 393,718 20.9% 21,023 5.6%
Public assistance 595,560 31.6% 627,573 33.3% 32,013 5.4%
Capital Outlay 2,866 0.2% 4,588 0.2% 1,722 60.1%

Debt service

Principal retirement 78,794 4.1% 7,723 0.3% (71,071) (90.2%)
Interest and fiscal charges 7,637 0.4% 7,245 0.4% (392) (5.1%)
Totals $ 1,883,842 100.0% $ 1,884,905 100.0% $ 1,063 0.1%

General Fund revenues from taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, and charges for services
increased for the year. Its expenditures on all governmental functions, except for public ways and facilities and
debt service, also increased. Combined debt service expenditures (principal and interest) decreased due to a
reduction in scheduled principal and interest payments on outstanding bonds.

Our discussion on the County’s governmental activities identified key reasons for changes in its revenues and
expenses that also help explain significant changes in the General Fund because it is the chief operating fund of
the County, and its revenues and expenditures respectively cover 87.1 percent and 82.9 percent of the County’s
total current year revenues and expenditures of all governmental funds. For this reason, we will briefly
mention the points that were elaborated in our earlier discussion on the countywide revenues and expenses.
This section will elaborate only those points that were not included in our earlier discussion.

Tax revenues rose by $36.9 million or 6.2 percent. This was mainly due a $40.7 million increase in both
secured property tax revenues and property taxes in lieu of vehicle license fees due to growth in the
assessment roll and new construction. There were also increases of $2.5 million in the aircraft assessment
roll due to more aircraft being located in Santa Clara County last year and $1.8 million in unitary taxes.
These increases were offset by a $7.2 million decrease in property tax transfer fees as the real estate market
slowed and $0.8 million decline in sales taxes.
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Fines, forfeitures and penaltics declined by $3.8 million or 8.5 percent mainly duc to a S2.1 million
decrease in court awards and S2.0 million reduction in one time funding from the Justice Facility
Temporary Construction Fund for operating and maintaining criminal justice buildings. These decreases
were offset by a $0.3 million increase in penalties and costs collected on delinquent property taxes.

Interest and investment income fell by $11.7 million or 31.2 percent mainly due to lower interest rates and
average daily cash balances. As discussed earlier, the commingled investment pool’s average quarterly
earnings rate decreased from 4.884 percent last year to 4.493 percent in the current year and the average
daily cash balance fell by $259.0 million from $642.0 million to $383.0 million.

Net revenues from intergovernmental sources increased by $100.8 million or 9.6 percent. State revenues
rosc by $44.8 million as Mental Health recimbursements incrcased by $7.7 million, other grants and aids
increased by $46.4 million, and public assistance rose by $6.0 million. These increases were offset by a
reduction of Mental Health revenues from Proposition 63 of $14.3 million. During the year, the County
established a new nonmajor governmental fund to account for the Proposition 63 revenues. Federal
revenues increased by $32.7 million due to a S14.4 million rise in Medi-Cal program amounts, an increase
of $5.8 million from the Child Carc and Placement/Foster Carc programs, and a S12.5 million incrcasc in
miscellaneous Federal sources and programs. During the year, the County re-classified amounts received
from the SIRDA from Other revenue to Intergovernmental revenues as discussed earlier. As a result, for
the ycar ended June 30, 2008, intcrgovernmental revenucs shows an incrcase in the amount by $23.7
million and other revenues shows a decrease in the amount of $32.9 million.

Revenues from charges for services increased by $1.2 million or 0.9 percent. Charges for services
increased by S4.0 million due to a $1.2 million increase in civil assessment revenue, $1.3 million in
incrcascd cost reimbursements for Sheriff scrvices, and a $1.5 million incrcasc for the Department of
Correction from prisoner housing received from the State and Federal governments. These amounts were
offsct by a $1.6 million reduction in clection service revenues collected by the Registrar of Voters and a
$1.2 million decrease in document recording fees for the Recorder’s Office.

As discussed earlier, Other revenues decreased by $27.9 million due mainly from a change in classification
of the SIRDA contributions. This decrease was offset by a $4.2 million increase in delinquent tax revenues
and a $1.1 million increase in tobacco settlement revenue.

Pertinent reasons for changes in General Fund expenditures are not different from what was explained in
earlier discussion on the countywide governmental programs and activities except a reduction in debt
service payment in the amount of §71.5 million due mainly to the final principal payment on the County’s
spccial obligation bonds in August 2007.

The fund balances for the non-major governmental funds rosc by $29.6 million or 8.3 percent to $383.7
million. This change was primarily duc to the General Fund’s establishment of the Proposition 63 Fund ($31.9
million).

Proprietary funds.
The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

As of June 30, 2008, the County’s net assets in its enterprise funds were $161.1 million. The investment in
capital assets net of depreciation and related debt was $65.8 million. The restricted net assets of the enterprise
funds were $137.6 million. These assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The unrestricted net assets as of June 30, 2008 had a balance of a negative $42.3 million.



The net asscts of the County’s enterprisce funds decrcased by $24.8 million for the year. Primary rcasons for
change in net assets are explained in the framework of individual enterprise funds.

SCVMC is the largest enterprise fund and its revenues and expenses comprise 99.1 and 99.3 percent,
respectively, of the total revenues and expenses for all enterprise funds. The other two enterprise funds
Airport and Sanitation District—are very small in comparison.

Net assets for SCVMC decreased by $25.8 million. Its unrestricted net assets (deficits) were (550.2) million.
Operating revenues increased by $84.3 million or 12.9 percent and expenses rose by $95.0 million or 11.9
percent.  The net transfers were $121.5 million for the ycar, The primary rcason for increased revenucs and
expenses were discussed in the business-type activities section. The restricted net assets of SCVMC were
$137.3 million at June 30, 2008 mainly consisted of funding reccived from the General Fund and bond
proceeds for the seismic and modernization projects. The net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt were $49.8 million. There were no significant changes to the net assets for the airport and sanitation
districts during the year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The County’s final budget appropriations for FY2008 were S2.5 billion, which is $158.2 million or 6.7 percent
higher than the original budget adopted by the Board. Occasionally, unexpected events may cause the County
to commit its one-time reserves or use ongoing resources to pay for those unplanned events. The Board
approves all supplemental appropriations. Differences between the original and final budgets represent
supplemental appropriations approved by the Board for various new grants received by the County or to pay for
increased service level that was not expected when the original budget was approved.

General Fund revenue and expenditure were less than the budgetary estimates for the year. Estimated revenues
for the year exceeded actual revenucs by $73.5 million or 3.1 percent. All revenue sources, except for inter-
fund transfers came in lower than estimates. Final budgetary appropriations exceeded actual expenditures by
$240.5 million or 9.5 percent for the year. The bulk of these cost savings resulted from unspent appropriations
as follows: a) $100.4 million in contingency reserves; b) $26.8 million in salarics and benefits costs duc to
elimination and or non-filling of vacant positions; ¢) S101.6 million in services and supplies costs for
government programs — general government, public protection, public assistance, health and sanitation, and
Measure B programs; d) $4.8 million in inter-fund transfers from Measure B transportation fund to Roads
Department for projects nearing completion, $3.0 million from special programs for hospital subsidy and $0.8
million in various programs; ¢) S1.3 million for debt scrvice payments; and f) $1.3 million for capital assct
purchases.

The General Fund budgetary comparison schedule starts on page 94 of this report.



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets

As shown in Table 5 below, the County’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
June 30, 2008 was $1.44 billion. This includes investment in land, buildings and improvements, leasehold
improvements, infrastructure, equipment and vehicles, and construction in progress.

TABLE 5-Capital Assets (Net of depreciation, in thousands)

Goverental Adtivities Business-type Adtivities Total Dollar Percent

Fy 2007 FY 2008 Fy 2007 Fy 2008 Fy 2007 Fy 2008 Chance Change
Lad $ 18702 $ 1R1B $ 630 $ 630 $ 1W3I2 $ 18HM8 $ 5006 26%
Buildings &inproverrents 294439 286590 200,017 191,262 49%54% 477852 (76 (3699
Infrastructure 130556 159,659 - - 130556 159,659 018 2%
Ecuipment and vehidles 37812 40407 2214 2139 61,026 61,716 620 11%
Lessehold inproverrents - - 33 331 *33) 531 (1)  (206%9
Construction in progress 216,158 22333 175,84 286,157 32002 537490 14548 31%
Total $ 8607 $ BLIZY $ 4730 $ 50499 $ 1273307 $ 14606 $ 16269 128%

The County’s net capital assets increased $162.6 million or 12.8 percent for the year. Net capital assets for the
governmental activities increased by 7.5 percent, while the business-type activities’ net capital assets increased
by 24.0 percent. Changes in capital assets by activity type were as follows:

Governmental activities
The County’s capital assets for its governmental activities rose by $65.1 million as follows:

Land increased by $5.0 million due to a donation received by the Parks and Recreation Department.
Buildings and improvements declined by $7.8 million due to depreciation.

Infrastructure increased by $29.1 million. This was due to the following projects: Montague Expressway
Improvement Project ($14.8 million), Signal Synchronization ($4.0 million), Bridge Seismic Retrofitting ($1.5
million), miscellaneous improvements and right of way purchases ($6.0 million), and miscellaneous bridge
repair and maintenance ($2.8 million).

Construction in progress activities increased by $36.2 million as $155.0 million in construction occurred during
the last fiscal year. Of these amounts, the following projects were completed and transferred to other asset
categories: various Road Fund projects, including the projects mentioned under the Infrastructure category
above ($37.3 million), building improvements completed by the Facilities and Fleet Department ($4.5 million),
and various construction projects completed at SCVMC ($76.8 million).

Business-type activities

Net capital assets for business-type activities increased by $97.5 million for the year. The SCVMC
construction in progress includes $262.6 million for various buildings, building improvements, and equipment
at SCVMC, and $2.5 million for the security fencing and facility improvements at South County Airport, Palo
Alto Airport and Reid Hillview Airport.

Commitment of Resources for Construction Work in Progress

At June 30, 2008, the County had committed $22.6 million of its net assets from the governmental activities
and $69.8 million of its net assets from the business-type activities for various uncompleted capital projects
included in the construction in progress.

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 on page 56 of this report.
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Long-term debt
The County’s long-term outstanding debt as of June 30, 2008 was $1.4 billion as shown in Table 6 below:

TABLE 6-Outstanding Debt (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Total Dollar Percent
FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2008 Change Change
Lease revenue bonds
(net of discounts and deferred
loss on refunding) $ 281902 $ 292981 $ 533533 $ 593785 $ 815435 $ 886766 $ 71,331 8.7%
Pension obligation bonds - 394,716 - 394,716 394,716 nfa
Certificates of participation 4,872 4,438 - - 4,872 4,438 (434) (8.9%)
Capital lease obligations 4,167 3,119 - - 4,167 3,119 (1,048) (25.1%)
Capital appreciation bonds 104,654 110,911 - 104,654 110,911 6,257 6.0%
Total $ 395595 $ 806165 $ 533533 $ 593,785 $ 929,128 $1,399950 $ 470,822 50.7%

The County’s long-term debt, net of debt service principal pay-off of $24.2 million for the year, increased
$470.8 million or 50.7 percent. The County issued two new bonds, taxable pension funding bonds in the
amount of $389.5 million and 2007 Series K bonds totaling $93.5 million, and refunded several variable rate
bonds.

In July 2007, the County issued taxable pension funding bonds, series 2007 in the amount of $389.5 million to
pay for a portion of the County’s unfunded accrued actuarial liability with its pension plan.

In August 2007, the Santa Clara County Financing Authority (Authority) issued the 2007 Series K lease
revenue bonds in the amount of $93.5 million. These bonds were issued to provide funds for the construction of
the Valley Health Clinic in Milpitas, seismic retrofit of the Los Gatos courthouse, construction of a new fleet
facility, and renovation of the west wing of the Santa Clara County Hall of Justice.

In February 2008, the Authority issued 2008 Series A bonds for $126.4 million to refund a portion of the 1997
Series A lease revenue bonds. The purpose of the refunding was to acquire lower interest rates on the previous
fixed rate bonds.

In May 2008, the Authority converted the 2003 D, 2005 H, and 2006 J Series variable rate bonds into the 2008
Series L fixed rate bonds in the amount of $112.8 million. The 2005 F and G Series bonds were also converted
into the 2008 Series M variable rate demand obligations in the amount of $143.1 million. These conversions
were prompted by the liquidity crisis in the credit market, which caused bond interest rates to increase
significantly.

For its outstanding revenue bonds and certificates of participation, the County has maintained an AA rating
from the Standard & Poor’s (S&P), and an Aa3 rating from the Moody’s Investors Service. S&P has also
maintained the County’s general obligation bond rating to AA+ and Moody’s rating Aa2. This combination of
S&P and Moody’s ratings are the highest rating any large California County has ever achieved since
Proposition 13 was passed in 1978. The County’s TRANS ratings are SP-1+ from Standard & Poor’s and
MIG 1 from Moody’s. Each rating is the highest awarded for short-term notes.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 on page 61 of this report.

18



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The economic slowdown at the national level and state level has impacted the Valley’s economy also. While
some of the indicators show positive trends, others are showing signs of continuing deterioration. This has led
to expenditure growth rate for the County that exceeds its revenue growth for the current and future budgets.
The following economic factors were considered in the County’s FY2009 budget.

The County’s unemployment rate increased by 1.4 percent over the prior year, but it is still lower than the
uncmployment rate for the State. The County’s unemployment as of June 2008 was 6.1 pereent compared
to 4.7 percent in June 2007. This is slightly lower than the statewide unemployment rate of 7.0 percent.

The real per capita income (a measure of wealth creation) increased from $51,112 to $55,735, which is
much higher than the national level of S38,564.

Home sales in the County have slowed due to tighter lending standards, higher mortgage interest rates and
stagnant growth in the economy. Residential foreclosures increased by 511.8 percent during the second
quarter in comparison to the year before. The slow down in home sales, unprecedented increase in
foreclosures, and slowing economy caused a decline in home values. The median home prices fell by 20.0
percent to the median home price level as in 2005.

Venture capital investment, a leading indicator of innovation, continues to grow and extend into new areas.
The investments were concentrated in areas of clean technology, energy generation and storage,
cnvironmental, medical devices and cquipment, and media and cntertainment. Silicon Valley accounts for
62.0 percent of total clean tech venture capital investment in the State.

The Countywide taxable retail sales increased 3.9 percent to $30.3 billion in FY 2008, although statewide
salcs decrcased. For the unincorporated County arcas, the County reccived $3.5 million from salcs tax,
which was a $0.2 million decrease from last year. Public safety sales tax revenue increased by $1.3 million,
a 0.8 percent increase in the County’s share of the statewide sales tax collections. The County assumes
public safcty sales tax revenuc will have a modcerate deercase for its FY 2009 budget.

Research and development (R&D) and office space occupancy rates—leading indicators of economic
activity—show stagnant growth. The vacancy rate for R&D space was 17.2 percent in June 2008 versus
17.6 pereent a year ago. The office space vacancy ratc was 12.7 percent in Junc 2008 compared to 13.4
percent in June 2007. The vacancy rate for the warchouse space fell from 9.3 percent in 2007 to 8.5 percent
in June 2008.

Asscssed valucs for real property incrcascd by 8.3 percent gencrating an incrcasc of $28.2 million in
current secured property tax revenue. Although, the unsecured personal property values increased by 5
percent, unsecured revenue decreased by $0.4 million due to timing of collections. Property tax
delinquencies on secured property increased by 1.1 percent from 2.1 percent in fiscal year 2007 to 3.2
percent in fiscal year 2008. Property transfer and supplemental tax revenues decreased by $7.4 million due
to the sluggish housing markct. The FY 2009 budgct assumes 6.5 percent increasc in secured property
assessed values, which corresponds to an increase of $31.0 million in property tax revenues.

The County’s FY 2009 budget of S3.9 billion included over $172.4 million of deficit reduction solutions. This
is in addition to the $1.03 billion deficit solutions the County has already implemented since FY 2003. The
budget deficit solutions for this fiscal year included $43.7 million in service/cost reductions or revenue
incrcascs and $128.7 million in onc-time funds,

The FY 2009 budget sets aside $96.7 million in contingency reserves. Operating reserve designations and the
strategic reserve designations are part of the financial resources that are available to address unanticipated
revenue shortfalls or unforescen cxpenditures. These designations provide a primary defense against deficit
spending and help maintain liquidity when budgeted draw downs become necessary.



Activity at SCVMC remains high with an average daily census of 356.9 or 2.2 pereent under budget and
outpatient visits of 750,849 were on budget. Qutpatient visits are 6.5 percent higher than last fiscal year. Strong
activity and an improving payer mix have allowed the SCVMC's enterprise funds to operate within their budget
plan, including use of the General Fund subsidy. The results of operations for the remainder of the fiscal year
will be in large part determined by the health of other hospitals in the region, economic recovery, changes in
Federal reimbursement regulations, and State budget decisions. The FY 2009 budget includes General Fund
subsidy of $94.7 million to SCVMC, which is comprised of three basic elements: pass-through revenues, un-
reimbursed County services (e.g. medical care for inmates and employee physicals), and the General Fund
grant.

As of June 30, 2008, the unreserved fund balance in the General Fund was $434.4 million. Of this amount,
$324.7 million is designated but available for appropriation. The proposed and final budgets were adopted
prior to July 1 of the new fiscal year.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the County’s Finance Agency, Controller-
Treasurer Department, 70 West Hedding Strect, 2" Floor, East Wing, San Josc, CA 95110. This cntirc report
is also available online at www scegoy.org.
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Basic Financial Statement
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles
Internal balances
Due from other governmental agencies
Due from related parties
Receivable from component unit
Inventories
Net pension asset
Other assets
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued liabilities
Estimated third-party payer settlements
Due to others
Due to other governmental agencies
Unearned revenue
Other liabilities
Payable to primary government
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital facilitics
Debt service
Housing programs
Roads
Other purposcs
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Primary Government

Business-

Governmental type Component

Activities Activities Total Units
$ 1,075,478 $ 8,951 $ 1,084,429 $ 139,845
91,579 134,821 226,400 3,198
88,416 (88,416) - -
334,276 42,862 377,138 4,820
- - - 3,092
8,475 - 8,475 -
3,730 15,548 19,278 -
350,482 - 350,482 -
44210 6,189 50,399 4,792
56,281 266,301 322,582 4,913
444,471 291,467 735,938 20,473
486,656 213,452 700,108 42,232
2,984,054 891,175 3,875,229 223,365
86,814 26,756 113,570 8,513
48,266 28,731 76,997 819
58,049 14,041 72,090 66
- 13,097 13,097 -
- - - 2,205
6,876 13,000 19,876 198
18,960 77 19,037 1,759
- - - 2,207
- - - 8,475
61,851 25,922 87,773 814
976,727 626,745 1,603,472 27,795
1,257,543 748,369 2,005,912 52,851
693,874 65,821 759,695 33,154
- 132,783 132,783 -
24,589 4,767 29,356 -
43283 - 43,283 -
35,138 - 35,138 -
41,793 - 41,793 86,821
887,834 (60,565) 827,269 50,539
$ 1,726,511 $ 142,806 $ 1,869,317 $ 170,514
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Function/program activities:
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Recreation and culture
Interest on long-term liabilities

Total governmental activitics
Business-type activities:
SCVMC
Airport
Sanitation District
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component units

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Statemnent of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Program Revenues

Indirect Operating Capital

Expenses Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions
$ 315969  § (40,081) § 79,568 % 85,650 % -
724,707 3,775 126,609 238,856 687
80,303 2,800 2,776 39,257 6.239
410,448 14,047 41,798 235,722 -
636,960 4,750 2,689 538,364 -
32,875 765 888 3,031 -
28,584 849 4,610 404 6.921
22,008 - - - -
2,251,854 (13,095) 258,938 1,141,284 13,847
015,897 13,089 727,061 9,276 9.975
3,583 6 3,147 - 1,585
2,772 - 2,152 - -
922,252 13,095 732,360 9,276 11,560
$ 3,174,106 % -8 991,298 § 1,150,560 § 25,407
$ 271,315 $ 11,765 § 268,308 8§ -

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Other taxes

Unrestricted motor vehicle in lieu of taxes

Grants/contributions not restricted to specific programs

Tnvestment income
Other

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year, as previously reported

Prior period adjustment

Net assels, beginning of year, as restated

Net assets, end of year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Business-
Governmental type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Function/program activities:
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
§  (110670) 3% - §  (110,670) S - General government
(362,330) - (362,330) - Public protection
(34,831) - (34,831) - Public ways and facilities
(146,975) - (146,975) - Health and sanitation
(100,657) - (100,657) - Public assistance
(29,721) - (29,721) - LEducation
(17,498) - (17,498) - Recreation and culture
(22,008) - (22,008) - Interest on long-term liabilities
(824,690) - (824,690) - Total governmental activitics
Business-type activities:
- (182,674) (182,674) - SCVMC
- 1,143 1,143 - Airport
- (620) (620) - Sanitation District
- (182,151) (182,151) - Total business-type activities
(824,690) (182,151) (1,006,841) - Total primary government
- - - 8,758 Component units
General revenues:
748,462 - 748,462 - Property taxes
6,974 £,202 15,176 - Sales and use taxes
449 - 449 - Other taxes
59,093 - 59,093 - Unrestricted motor vehicle in lieu of taxes
25,862 - 25,862 - Grants/contributions not restricted to specific programs
42,294 14,472 536,766 6,648 Tnvestment income
60,757 - 60,757 494 Other
(121,506) 121,506 - - Transfers
822,385 144,180 066,565 7,142 Total general revenues and transfers
(2,305) (37,971) (40,276) 15,900 Change in net assets
1,728 816 180,540 1,909,356 155,145 Net assets, beginning of year, as previously reported
- 237 237 (331) Prior period adjustment
1,728,816 180,777 1,909,593 154,614 Net assels, beginning of year, as restaled
$ 1,726,511 $ 142,806 $ 1,869,317 S 170,514 Net assets, end of year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets:
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted with fiscal agents
Other restricted
Receivables:
Property taxes

Other, net of allowance for uncollectibles

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental agencies
Inventories

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefils
Other accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governmental agencies
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Inventories and other assets
Debt service

Unreserved, reported in:
General fund:

Designated

Undesignated
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Permanent fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
$ 336,880 $ 322,651 $ 659,531
- 14,106 14,106
22 41,537 41,559
5,936 - 5,936
39,517 38,302 77,819
65,400 16,268 81,668
299 968 33,776 333,744
2,089 495 2,584
35,822 - 35,822
3 785,634 3 467,135 $ 1,252,769
$ 61,856 $ 21,055 $ 82,911
40,623 6,371 46,994
37,739 11,150 48,889
185 10,696 10,881
5,750 181 5,931
163,228 33,942 197,170
309,381 83,395 392,776
3,896 23,999 27,895
37,911 495 38,406
- 52,919 52,919
324,712 - 324,712
109,734 - 109,734
- 171,481 171,481
- 134,790 134,790
- 56 56
476,253 383,740 859,993
3 785,634 3 467,135 $ 1,252,769

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Government-wide Statement of Net Assets - Governmental Activities

June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds (page 24)

Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital asscts usced in governmental activitics arc not financial resourees
and, therefore, arc not reported in the governmental funds.

Bond issuance costs are expended in the governmental funds when paid,
however, are capitalized and amortized over the life of the corresponding
bonds for purposes of the statement of net assets.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Long-term assets with matching long term liabilities, including receivables
from related parties, are not current financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
management of information services, fleet management, insurance, printing,
unemployment insurance, workers' compensation, employee benefits
and retiree healtheare to individual funds. The assets and liabilities are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, arc not duc and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Bonds payable
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Capital lease obligations
Accrued interest payable
Arbitrage liabilities
Accrued litigation liability

Net assets - governmental activities (page 21)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

25

$ 859,993
921,984
4,060
178,214
8,475
289,226
(408,330)
(119,233)
(2,307)
(1,626)
(945)
(3,000) (535,441)
$

1,726,511



COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Interest and investment income
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistance
Education
Recreation

Capital outlay

Dcbt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Cost of issuance

Total expenditures

Exccss (deficiency) of revenucs over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from salc of capital asscts
Bonds issuance
Bond premium
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Payment to bond refunding escrow
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

(In thousands)
Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
$ 633,133 $ 125,076 $ 758,209
13,733 14,541 28,274
40,873 8,669 49,542
25,749 21,711 47,460
1,147,477 96,168 1,243,645
132,982 30,732 163,714
31,667 2,767 34,434
2,025,614 299,664 2,325,278
178,450 99 178,549
637,304 79,048 717,252
28,304 45,821 74,125
393,718 26,275 419,993
627,573 6,102 633,675
- 32,234 32,234
- 28,376 28,376
4,588 156,073 160,661
7,723 4,563 12,286
7,210 8,666 15,876
35 723 758
1,884,905 38%.,880 2,273,785
140,709 (89,216) 51,493
4,000 200 4,200
- 22,655 22,655
- 1,935 1,935
- 65,379 65,379
- (66,015) (66,015)
272,744 193,002 465,746
(402,427) (98,373) (500,800)
(125,683) 118,783 (6,900)
15,026 29,567 44,593
461,227 354,173 815,400
$ 476,253 $ 383,740 $ 859,993

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Government-wide

Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 26)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditurcs. Howcever, in

the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Expenditures for capital assets
Net cffect of various miscellancous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e., sales, disposals, donations)
Transfer of capital assets to business-type activities
Less current year depreciation

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid,

however, are capitalized and amortized over the life of the corresponding

bonds [or the purposes of the statement of activities.
Bond issuance costs
Amortization of bond 1ssuance costs
Refunding of bond issuance costs

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds

Revenues recognized in the governmental funds that were eamed and

recognized in previous years and are reported as beginning net assets in

the statement of activities.

Issuance and reflunding ol bonds are reported as other [inancing

sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund

balances. However, bonds issuance and refunding changes
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not affect
the statement of activitics.

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilitics in the statement of net asscts.

Principal repayments
Refunding of bonds

Some cxpenses reported in the statement of activitics do not require the

use of current [inancial resources and thereflore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Amortization of bond premium and deferred loss on refunding

Deferred amounts on bond issued

Change in accrucd intercst payable

Change in accreted interest

Change in arbitrage liabilities

Change in net pension obligation

Change in accrued litigation liability

Changc in long-term compensated abscnecs

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

certain activities to individual funds. The net expense of the internal

scrvice funds is reported with governmental activitics.

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 23)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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$ 44,593
164,979
5,082
(76,553)
(31,411) 62,097
758
(170)
(923) (339)
952
(4,070)
(89,969)
12,590
65.979 78.569
100
959
(321)
(6,257)
346
28,621
3,600
(5.581) 21,467
(115,609)
$ (2,305)



Assets:
Current asscts:
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted with fiscal agent
Other restricted
Reccivablces:
Patient accounts receivable, net of
cstimated uncollectibles
Other
Duc from other funds
Duc {rom other governmental ageneics
[nventorics
Prepaid rent/insurance

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Net pension assct
Other asscts
Capital asscts:

Nondepreciable

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciatior

Total noncurtent asscts
Total asscts
Liabilities:
Current liabilitics:

Accounts payable
Accrued salarics and bencefits
Accrued liabilitics
Duc to other tunds
Dugc to third-party paycrs
[nsurance claims
Duc to other governmental agencics
Uncarned revenue
Current portion of acerued vacation and sick leave
Current portion of capital lcasc obligations
Current portion of bonds payablc

Total current liabilitics

Noncurrent liabilitics:
Long-tcrm insurance claims
Noncurrent portion of accrued vacation and sick lcave
Noncurrent portion of capital lcase obligation:
Noncurrent portion of bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilitics
Total liabilitics
Net assets:
Invested in capital asscts, net of related deb
Restricted:
Capital facilitics
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total nct asscts

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities to enterprisc funds

Net asscts of business-type activitics

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Statcment of Fund Net Asscts

Proprictary Funds

June 30, 2008
(In thousands)
Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
SCVYMC Other Total Service Funds
$ - 3% 8951 % 8,951 % 415,947
- 740 740 23
265,561 - 265,561 593
131,568 - 131,568 -
3,099 154 3,253 7,824
3,278 - 3,278 -
42,673 189 42,862 532
15,548 - 15,548 1,146
1,264 - 1,264 1,564
462,991 10,034 473,025 427,629
- - - 350,482
4,735 190 4,925 2,764
285,519 5,948 291,467 -
198,250 15,202 213,452 9,143
488,504 21,340 509,844 362,389
951,495 31,374 982,869 790,018
25,652 1,104 26,756 3,903
28,679 52 28,731 1,272
13,790 251 14,041 7,534
73,409 - 73,409 656
13,097 - 13,097 -
- - - 34,941
13,000 - 13,000 -
- 77 77 4
9,569 10 9,579 191
- - - 503
16,189 154 16,343 310
193,385 1,648 195,033 49,314
- - - 71,692
49,190 113 49,303 3,356
- - - 309
572,006 5,436 577,442 394,406
621,196 5,549 626,745 469,763
814,581 7,197 821,778 519,077
49,800 16,015 605,821 8,331
132,783 - 132,783 -
4,482 285 4,767 -
(50,157) 7,877 {42,280) 262,610
$ 136,914 % 24,177 161,091 % 270,941
(18,285
$ 142,806

The notes to the basic financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
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COUNTY OF SANTA

CLARA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
SCVMC Other Total Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 727,061 $ 5299 § 732,360 § 207,253
Other program revenues 9,276 - 9,276 -
Net operating revenucs 736,337 5,299 741,636 207,253
Operating expenses:
Salatics and benefits 616,394 1,450 616,844 156,675
Services and supplies 112,813 1,007 113,820 25,066
General and administrative 82,811 - 82,811 6,793
Professional services 27,473 749 28,222 1,074
Depreciation 22,613 721 23,334 2,498
Amortization of net pension asset - - - (6,060)
Leascs and rentals 7,023 - 7,023 763
Utilities 9,868 - 9,868 -
Insurance ¢laims and premivms 11,543 20 11,563 68,879
Other 5,702 2,027 7.729 -
Total operating cxpenses 895,240 5,974 901,214 255,688
Operating loss (158,903) (675) (159,578) (48,435)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Taxes 8,202 - 8,202 -
Investment income (loss) 14,049 423 14,472 (17,298)
Interest expense (12,846) (267) (13,113) (23,231)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (18) - (18) 17
Other, net (7,717) (69) (7,786) 187
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 1,670 87 1,757 (40,323)
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers (157,233) (588) (157.821) (88,760)
Capital contributions 9,975 1,585 11,560 -
Capital contributions transferred in from other County funds 93,953 - 93,953 -
Transfers in 328,175 10 328,185 2,115
Transfers out (312,646) - (312,646) -
Transfers out of net pension obligation liability 12,014 - 12,014 -
Assumption of net pension obligation liability - - - (42,180)
Change in net assets (25,762) 1,007 (24,755) (128,825)
Net asscts, beginning of year, as previously reported 162,676 22,933 399,766
Prior period adjustment - 237 -
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 162,676 23,170 399,766
Net asscts, end of year $ 136,914 § 24177 $ 270,941
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds
to enterprise funds. (13,216)
Change in net assets of business-type activities $ (37,971)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary Funds

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers and users
Cash payment to supplicrs for goods and scrvices
Cash payment to employees for services
Cash payment for retirement benefits
Cash payment for judgments and claims
Other payments
Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash receipts from state grants - taxes realignment
Cash receipts from other funds
Procceds from pension obligation bonds
Pcnsion obligation bonds cost of issuance paid
Pension contribution towards unfunded pension liabilities
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from bonds
Repayment of capital leases
Bond issuance costs paid
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Capital contributions received

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted with fiscal agents
Other restricted

Less deposits and investments not meeting the definition of

cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

(In thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
SCVMC Other Total Service Funds
S 697,127 $ 5083 § 702,210 % 205,996
(242,631) (4,201) (246,832) (33,324)
(603,037) (1,423) (604,450) (31,218)
N - - (125,328)
- - - (64,678)
(7.717) (69) (7,786) -
- - - 187
(156,258) (610) (156,858) (48,365)
8,475 - 8,475 -
58,376 - 58,376 13,777
- - - 389,485
) - - (2,851%
- - - (386,602)
- - - (10,297)
328,175 10 328,185 2,115
(312,646) - (312,646) -
82,380 10 82,390 5,627
74,572 - 74,572 -
- - - (744)
(3,086) - (3,086) -
(11,634) (265) (11,899) -
(24,582) (265) (24,847) (70)
(30,700) (1,932) (32,632) (5,541)
- - - 57
27,530 1,585 29,115 -
32,100 (877) 31,223 (6,298)
12,250 - 12,250 75,894
21,429 460 21,889 19,824
33,679 460 34,139 95,718
(8,099) (1,017) (9.116) 46,682
256,577 10,708 267,285 227,802
$ 248,478 § 9,691 $ 258,169 $ 274,484
S - 3 8,951 § 8,951 § 415,947
- 740 740 23
265,561 - 265,561 593
(17,083) - (17,083) (142,079)
b 248,478  $ 9,691 % 258,169 $ 274,484
(Continued)

The notes to the basic financial statements arc an integral part of this statement.



COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(Tn thousands)

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustiments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of net pension assets
Provision for bad debts
Miscellaneous nonoperating revenues {(expenses), net
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Receivables
Due from other governmental agencies
Inventories
Prepaid rent/insurance
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued liabilities
Due to third-party payers
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Insurance claims
Due to other governmental agencies
Unearned revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing, capital and
related financing activities:
Noncash capital and related financing activities:
Transfers of capital assets from the County's governmental activities
Capitalized interest expenses
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent from refunding bond proceeds
Acquisition of capital asscts through accounts payablc
Noncash investing activitics:
Capitalized interest revenue
Increase in rebatable arbitrage
Net change in fair value of investments not considered
cash and cash equivalents
Nencash noncapital financing activities
Accretion of interest on capital appreciation bonds
Transfer net pension obligation liability to the pension obligation fund
Assumption of net pension obligation liability from governmental
activities and SCYMC

The notes to the basic tinancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal

SCVMC Other Total Service Funds
$ (158,903) §$ (675) § (159,578) % (48,439%)
22,613 721 23,334 2,498
- - - (6,060)

29,270 - 29,270 -
(7.717) (69) (7,786) 187
(63,082) 30) (63,112) (1,202)
(10,074) (184) (10,258) (43)
(431) - (431) (143)

2,188 2,188 -
- 6 6 (134)

5,619 (407) 5,212 691

6,373 3 6,376 -
7.226 3 7.229 85
5917 - 5917 -
5,984 24 6,008 44

- - - 4,201
(1.241) - (1,241) (42)
- @ 2) (12)
$ (156,258) §$ (610) §$ (156,868) $ (48.365)
$ 76,553  § - 5 76,553 § -
14,147 - 14,147 -
(326.606) - (326,606) -

5,112 - 5,112

(7,543) - (7,543) -

216 - 216 -

828 - 828 37.122

- - - 5231

12,014 - 12,014 -

- - - 42,180



Assets:
Cash and investments:
Unrestricted
Other restricted
Receivables:
Property taxes
Interest
Other
Due from other agency funds
Duc from other governmental agencics
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other agency funds
Due to other governmental agencies
Deposits from others
Fiduciary liabilitics
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Net assets held in trust for investment

pool participants/privatc-purposc trust

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Investment Private Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Funds
$ 2577410 § 51,576 S 16,832
5 - 4,154
- - 146,121
17,114 417 14,854
- l 396
- - 117,776
- - 353
- 72,599 2,469
2,594,529 124,593 § 302,955
- 45,765 S -
- - 117,776
- 236 30,271
- 72,620 -
- - 154,908
- 118,621 8 302,955
$ 2594529 § 5,972

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Additions:
Contributions to pooled investments
Interest and investment income

Total additions

Deductions:
Distributions and administrative expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets held in trust, beginning of year

Net assets held in trust, end of year

Investment Private-Purpose
Trust Funds Trust Fund

$ 9,639,128 $ 2,646
104,771 464
9,743,899 3,110
9,366,353 21
377,546 3,089
2,216,983 2,883
$ 2,594,529 $ 5,972

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Description of the Reporting Entity

The County of Santa Clara (the County), California (the State), was established on June 1, 1850. The
County’s powcers arc cxercised through a Board of Supcrvisors, which is the governing body of the
County. The Board of Supervisors is responsible for the legislative and executive control of the
County. The County provides various services on a County-wide basis and certain services only to
unincorporated areas. Services provided include law and justice, education, detention, social, health,
hospital, fire protection, sanitation, road construction and maintenance, park and recreation facilities,
elections and records, communications, planning, zoning, treasury, and tax collection.

The governmental reporting entity consists of the County (Primary Government) and its component
units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Board is financially
accountable or other organizations whose nature and significant relationship with the County are such
that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Financial accountability is dcfined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s
board, and (i) either the County’s ability to impose its will on the organization or (ii) there is potential
for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County,

The basic financial statements include both blended and discretely presented component units. The
blended component units are, although legally separate entities, in substance part of the County’s
opcerations and so data from these units arc combined with data of the primary government. The
discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the government.

For financial reporting purposes, the County’s basic financial statements include all financial
activities that are controlled by or are dependent upon actions taken by the County’s Board. The
financial statcments of the individual component units may be obtained from the County’s Controller-
Treasurer Department located at 70 West Hedding Street, 2™ Floor, East Wing, San Jose, California
65110.

Blended Component Units

The County and the component units listed below have a financial and operational relationship which
requires that they be blended into the County’s financial statements. The Board of Supervisors serves
as the governing board of the County’s blended component units. In addition, the Santa Clara County
Financing Authority, the Santa Clara County — El Camino Hospital District Hospital Facilities
Authority, the Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization Authority, and the Santa Clara County Tobacco
Sccuritization Corporation provide scrvices entircly or almost entirely to the County.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following component units are blended in the County’s basic financial statements:

Component unit

Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District
South Santa Clara County Fire District

Los Altos Hills County Fire District

Santa Clara County Library

Santa Clara County Vector Control District

County Sanitation District 2 - 3 of Santa Clara County
Santa Clara County Financing Authority (SCCFA)

Santa Clara County - El Camino Hospital
District Hospital Facilities Authority

Silicon Valley Tobacco Sccuritization Authority

Blended in the basic financial statements

under the cateogory of:

Nonmajor governmental funds - all fire districts
are reported together in a special revenue fund,

Nonmajor governmental funds
Nonmajor governmental funds
Sanitation District Enterprise Fund

SCCFA is included in the financial statements for
the Santa Clara Valley Medical Center (SCVMC)
and debt service funds of the governmental funds.

Nonmajor governmental funds with the noncurrent
liabilities included in the government-wide
statement of net assets and the SCVMC.

Nonmajor governmental funds with the noncurrent

liabilities included in the government-wide statement

Santa Clara County Tobacco Securitization Corporation Nonmajor governmental funds with the noncurrent

liabilities included in the government-wide statement

Discretely Presented Component Units

The FIRST 5 Santa Clara County (FIRST 5) was created on March 30, 1999, under the provisions of
the California Children and Families Act of 1998 (the Act). The Act became law in 1998 when
California voters approved Proposition 10, authorizing the state to lcvy a tax on tobacco products to
pay for programs to promote the healthy development of young children. The board consists of nine
members, three of whom are officers of the County, while the remaining six are appointed by the
Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors. FIRST 5 is a discretely presented component unit as its
governing body is not substantially the same as that of the County and FIRST 5 does not provide
services entirely or almost entirely to the County. Complete financial statements for FIRST 5 can be
obtaincd dircctly from its administrative officc at 4000 Moorpark Avenuc, Suite 200, San Josc,
California 95117.

The Housing Authority of the County of Santa Clara (the Housing Authority) was established in 1967
by the Board of Supervisors. The purpose of the Housing Authority is to provide atfordable housing
to low-income families, elderly and handicapped in Santa Clara County. It accomplishes its
objectives by providing management, administrative and educational services to tenants and landlords
to facilitate the operation of the various federal and state pretax assistance programs. Most of the
housing programs administcred by the Housing Authority arc funded by contributions from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

The Board appoints a voting majority of the Housing Authority’s Board of Commissioners and can
remove appointed members at will. The Housing Authority is presented as a discretely presented
component unit of the County as the Housing Authority’s governing body is not substantially the
same as that of the County and the Housing Authority does not provide services entirely or almost
entirely to the County, The financial data included for the Authority represents the aggregated data of
its business-type activities and its component units. The Housing Authority has formed eleven non-
profit organizations and one for-profit corporation to further facilitate its goals. The Housing
Authority’s government-wide statement of net assets presents the combined data of the component

36



(1

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b)

units in a single column. The component units column includes information of some non-profit
organizations that are on different year-ends of December 31, 2007 and May 31, 2008. Complete
financial statements for the Housing Authority can be obtained directly from its administrative office
at 100 Great Oaks Blvd., 2™ Floor, San Jose, California 95119.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the primary
government (the County) and its componcent units. These statements include the financial activitics of
the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-tvpe activities of the County and between the County and its discretely presented component
units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues
and other nonexchange transactions, arc reported scparately from business-type activitics, which rely
to a significant extent on fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each segment of the business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and; thercefore, arc clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenucs include 1)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, including fines and
penalties, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes imposed by the County, are presented instead as general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, unrestricted resources are used only
after restricted resources are depleted.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Scparate statements for cach fund category — governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are separately aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise and
internal service funds are charges for customer services including: medical center charges for
services, sanitation and airport fees, insurance charges, employee benefits, employee retirement,
healthcare, information scrvices, vchicle and maintenance scrvices and printing support charges.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and intemal service funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

37



(1

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c)

The County reports the following major governmental and enterprise funds:

o General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

o  SCVMC Enterprise Fund accounts for hospital and clinic services provided to County
residents. Revenues consist primarily of patient service fees. An annual operating subsidy
is provided by the General Fund to supplement the program.

The County reports the following additional fund types:

o Internal Service Funds provide for information technology, vehicle and maintenance and
printing services provided to County departments; life and dental insurance benefits,
workers’ compensation, unemployment, retircment healthcare, and pension costs for County
employees; and other liability claims against the County.

o [nvestment Trust Funds account for commingled pool asscts held in trust for schools, and
other special districts and other agencies which use the County treasury as their depository,
as well as account for separate investments acquired for the Palo Alto Unified School
District and Foothill De Anza Community College District.

e Private Purpose Trust Fund is uscd to account for rcsources for conscrvatees managed by
the public guardians and administrators. These resources are restricted to a specified
purposc that benefits individuals.

e Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operations and account for assets held by the County as an agent for various local
governments and individuals. Included are funds for child support payments; bail money
posted with municipal courts; employees’ long-term disability and supplemental life
insurance premiums; and apportioned taxes for other local governmental agencies.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statcments (cxcluding agency funds). Revenues are recorded when camned and expenses are recorded
at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving
(or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions
take place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial measurement focus and modified accrual
basis of accounting. Undcr this mcthod, revenues are recognized when “susceptible to accrual” (i.c.,
when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means that revenuces arc collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property tax
revenues are recognized in the current year if they are collected within 60 days of year-end. For all
other revenues, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 180 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues not considered available are recorded as deferred
revenue. The County’s other primary revenue sources: investment income, intergovernmental
rcvenues and charges for services have been treated as “susceptible to accrual” under the modificd
accrual basis. Licenses and permits, fings, forfeitures and penalties, and other revenue are not
considered “susceptible to accrual” under the modified accrual basis and are recorded as revenues
when received. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, arc rccorded when payment is duc.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the business-type activitics in the government-wide financial
statements and proprictary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-
typc activitics and cnterprisc funds, subjcct to the same limitation. The County has clected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Federal, State, and Local Grant Funds

Proprictary funds’ federal, state, and local grants arc accounted for in accordance with the purpose for
which the grants are intended. Approved grants for the acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment
are reported as capital contributions and grants for operating assistance are recorded as nonoperating
revenues in the year in which the grants are applicable and the related grant conditions are met.

County Commingled Investment Pools

The County Treasurcr manages common cash and investment pools for the County, school and
community college districts, special districts, and other local public agencies. Investments made by
the Treasurer are regulated by the California Government Code and by a County investment policy
approved annually by the County Treasury Oversight Committee and the Board of Supervisors.
Adherence to the statutes and policies is monitored by the County Board of Supervisors, the Treasury
Oversight Committee, and the Internal Audit Division through monthly audits and reports.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The pool consists of cash and investments that are either unrestricted or legally restricted to certain
trust, bond issuc, and spccific expenditure purposcs. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company. State law requires that the County and its public school districts invest with the
County Treasury. These involuntary cxternal members® sharcs comprise 65% of the pool.

Investments of the pool are stated at fair value. The County Treasurer determines the fair value of the
pool on a monthly basis, based on quoted market prices. The County has not provided nor obtained
any legally binding guarantees during the year ended June 30, 2008, to support the value of shares in
the pool.

The value of the participants’ pool shares that may be withdrawn is determined on an amortized cost
basis, which is different from the fair value of the participants’ positions in the pool.

Other Investments

The County Treasurer oversees separate investments for most of the County’s reserve, payment, and
capital resources arising from the issuance of various construction and technology bonds. In addition,
self-insurance trusts and benefit plans for the County and certain school districts own additional
scparatc investments managed by the Treasurcr.  All of these investments arc classified as cither
unrestricted or restricted for other purposes on the accompanying balance sheets and statement of net
assets.

The Santa Clara County Financing Authority and the Santa Clara County - El Camino Hospital
District Hospital Facilities Authority maintain restricted cash and investments in separate bank
accounts,

Investments of the County Treasury are stated at fair value. The County Treasurer determines the fair
valuc of these mvestments on a monthly basis, based on quoted market prices.  Qutside trustces
provide monthly statements to report the fair value and pricing of the assets held by them, which are
also based on quoted market prices.

Investment Income

Realized earnings are allocated quarterly to the commingled investment pool participants based on the
participants’ average daily cash balance relative to the entire pool. A negative average cash balance
results in negative earnings that are netted against interest income. Changes in fair value are included
in investment income for financial statement reporting purposes.

The County follows legal or contractual provisions regarding the assignment of interest revenue to
certain other funds. Interest on bond monies held in the nonmajor governmental funds have such
arrangements. The assignment of other interest is based on management’s discretion. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
External Investment Pools, interest revenue is reported in the fund in which it is earned. Subsequent
assignments arc reported as transfers.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

®

]

(h)

®

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less from the original
purchase to be cash equivalents. The majority of the proprietary funds’ deposits in the County
Treasurcr’s commingled pool is in substance, demand deposits and 1s, thercfore, considered cash
equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost (using the first-in, first-out method), which approximates market, and
consist of cxpendable supplics that are reduced as consumed. Inventories reported in governmental
funds are offset by a corresponding reservation of fund balance, which indicates that they do not
constitute “available spendable resources™ even though they are a component of net current assets.

Loans Receivable

For the purposc of the fund financial statements, governmental expenditures relating to long-term
loan receivables arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the
loans are recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to
a deferred revenue account. The balance of the long-term receivable includes loans that may be
forgiven if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met.

Capital Assets

The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $150 for
infrastructure and buildings and improvements and $5 for equipment and vehicles with an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value
on the datc donated. Capital assets uscd in opcrations arc depreciated or amortized (asscts under
capital leases) using the straight-line method over the lesser of the capital lease period or their
estimated useful lives in the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements. Certain
assets, for which actual historical costs are not available, have been valued using methods that
approximate their historical costs. Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense
against the County’s opcrations, over their cstimated uscful lives in the government-widce statcments
and proprictary fund statcments.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure 20 to 50 years
Buildings and improvements 5to 50 ycars
Equipment and vehicles 3 to 30 years

41



(1

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

1

Interest is capitalized on proprictary funds’ construction in progress in accordance with Statcment of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 62, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations
Involving Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants. Accordingly, intcrest
capitalized is the total interest cost from the date of the borrowing net of any interest earned on
temporary investments of the proceeds of those borrowings until the specified asset is ready for its
intended use.

Property Tax Levy, Collection, and Maximum Rate

The State’s Constitution, Article XIII A provides that the combined maximum property tax rate on
any given property may not exceed 1% of its assessed value except for rates levied to pay principal
and interest on general obligation debt. Such debt shall have voter approval unless incurred prior to
June 6, 1978. Assessed value 1s calculated at 100% of market value as defined by Article XII1 A and
may bc increased no morc than 2% per year unless the property is sold or transferred.  Whenever
there are changes in ownership, completed construction or demolition, properties are subject to
supplemental assessment based on the change in assessed valuation. Supplemental taxes are levied
on the value change and prorated for the balance of the tax year. The State Legislature, through
Assembly Bill 8 and subsequent legislation, defined the methodology for distributing the 1% tax levy
and collections among the County, cities, schools, and other local jurisdictions.

The County assesses property values, and levies, bills and collects the related taxes as follows:

Secured Unsecured
Lien dates January 1 January 1
Levy dates October 1 July 1
Due Dates 50% on November 1 Upon receipt of billing
50% on February 1
Delinquent after December 10 (for November) August 31

Avpril 10 {(for February)

Annually, the Board of Supervisors sets the rates to be applied to the tax roll for the benefit of local
taxing jurisdictions as provided by State Code. These taxes are secured by liens on the property being
taxed. Taxes secured by land and improvements are levied on the Secured Tax Roll, while those
taxes secured by personal property are levied on the Unsecured Tax Roll.

In 1994, the Board adopted the Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment (the Teeter Plan). Under
this method, the County distributes 100% of the secured tax levy to participating jurisdictions
regardless of collections. To cover losses on delinquent tax sales, counties using the Teeter Plan
must maintain a Tax Losses Reserve Fund. The Tax Losses Reserve Fund is included in the
County’s “Apportioncd Tax Resources” Agency Fund., When the balance in this fund cxcceds the
minimum balance required by the Statc Code, the excess may be transferred to the General Fund.
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(k)

0

(m)

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.
Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon
consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).
Any residual balances outstanding between the govermmental activities and the business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide statements as “internal balances.” Advances to other
funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in the
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they arc not available for appropriation and arc not
available financial resources. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are
treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost,
charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other
interfund transactions are (reated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds
arc nctted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.

Bond Issuance Costs, Original Issue Discounts and Premiums, Deferred Losses on Refunding

In governmental fund types, bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the
period bond proceeds arc received. Bond premiums/discounts and issuance costs for the government-
wide statement of net assets and proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the term of
the bonds using a method that approximates the interest method. In the government-wide statements
bond premiums/discounts and bond premiums/discounts for proprietary fund types arc presented as
an increase/reduction of the face amount of bonds payable whereas issuance costs are recorded as
deferred charges.

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are
deferred and amortized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For
governmental activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to
June 30, 2001.

Leases

The County leases various assets under both operating and capital lease agreements. For
governmental fund types, assets under capital leases and the related long-term lease obligations are
reported as capital assets and long-term liabilities in the governmental-wide statement of net assets,
respectively. For proprictary fund types, the asscts and related capital leasc obligations arc recorded
in the appropriate proprietary fund.
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(n)

(0)

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave are recorded as a liability when future payments for
such compensated absences have been earmed by employees based on pay and salary rates in effect at
year-end. This liability is recorded in the government-wide statement of net assets and in the various
proprictary funds to reflect the County’s obligation to fund such costs from future operations. The
County includes its share of social security and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees
in its accrual for compensated absences. The County does not accrue for compensated absences in its
governmental fund statements and recognizes liabilities for compensated absences only if they are
duc and payablc in an cvent such as termination,

Effects of New Pronouncements

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 435, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments
should account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and
nonpension benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment
benefits (OPEB). The GASB statement generally requires that employers account for and report the
annual OPEB cost and thc outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB in ¢sscntially
the same manner as employers currently do for pensions. Annual OPEB cost for most employers will
be based on actuarially determined amounts that, it paid on an ongoing basis, generally would
provide sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due. This statement’s provisions may be
applied prospectively and do not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. An employer may
cstablish its OPEB liability at zcro as of the beginning of the initial ycar of implementation; however,
the unfunded actuarial liability is required to be amortized over tfuture periods. This statcment also
establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer participates,
the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and for certain
employers, the extent to which the plan has been funded over time.

At July 1, 2007, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively and as such, the
County did not have a net OPEB obligation at transition (i.e., July 1, 2007). The County pays certain
health care insurance premiums for retired employees. Employees may become eligible for these
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the County. As of Junc 30, 2008, the
County’s annual OPEB expense of $125,328 was equal to the annual required contribution (ARC).
As a result, the County does not have an outstanding net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2008. The
additional disclosure concerning the implementation of GASB Statement No. 45 is available in
Note 11.
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In May 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, which more closely aligns the
financial rcporting requirecments for pensions with those for other postemployment bencfits (OPEB)
and, in doing so, enhances information disclosed in notes to financial statements or presented as
required supplementary information (RSI) by pension plans and by cmployers that provide pension
benefits. The reporting changes required by this Statement amend applicable note disclosure and RSI
requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, to conform with requirements of Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting

for Pastemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and No. 45, Accounting and Financial

Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Application of this
statement is effective for the County’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The additional disclosure
concerning the implementation of GASB 50 is available in Note 11.

The County is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the
financial statcments for the following GASB Statements:

In November 2006, GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations, which addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for
pollution (including contamination) remcdiation obligations, which arc obligations to address the
current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation
activities such as site assessments and cleanups. The scope of the statement excludes pollution
prevention or control obligations with respect to current operations, and future pollution remediation
activities that are required upon retirement of an asset, such as landfill closure and postclosure care
and nuclcar power plant decommissioning. Application of this statement is cffcctive for the County’s
fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets. This Statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope
provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, existing authoritative guidance related to the
accounting and financial reporting for capital asscts should be applied to these intangible asscts, as
applicable. This Statement also provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the nature
of these intangible assets. Such guidance should be applied in addition to the existing authoritative
guidance for capital assets. Application of this statement is effective for the County’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2010.

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments. The Statement specifically requires governments to measure and report most derivative
instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the economic resources
mcasurcment focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The requirement of reporting the derivative
mstruments at fair value on the face of financial statements gives the users of financial statements a
clearer look into the risks their governments are sometimes exposed to when they enter into these
transactions and how those risks are managed. The Statement also addresses hedge accounting
requirements and improves disclosures, providing a summary of the government’s derivative
instrument activity, its objcctives for cntering intoe derivative instruments, and their significant terms
and risks. Application of this Statement is cffective for the County’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

@)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

(@)

(b)

Deficit Net Assets

At June 30, 2008, the Unemployment Insurance, the Workers” Compensation and the Pension
Obligation Internal Scrvice Funds have net deficits of $633, $29,619, and $48,962, respectively. The
deficits are expected to be eliminated in future years through rate increases.

Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the Multiple Facilities Construction and Morgan Hill Courthouse
Construction Capital Projects Funds have excess expenditures over appropriations of $22,593 and
$21,422, respectively. The excesses were related to the lease revenue bonds refundings transactions
that were not budgeted and were offsct by positive variances in the amounts available for
appropriation.

Cash and Investments

(a)

Description

The County Treasurcr maintains common cash and investment pools in which cash may be invested
by individual County funds and by certain independent local governmental agencies. In addition,
investments are held separately by the Treasurer for several other County funds, including: the
Justice Facilities Bonds Debt Service Fund, the Multiple Facilities Bonds Debt Service Fund, debt
proceeds for SCVMC construction projects, the Retiree Healtheare Internal Service Fund and certain
school districts. Each fund type’s share of the common pool is combined with cash and investments
held scparatcly and shown on the accompanying balance shect/statement of net asscts as “cash and
investments — unrestricted” and “cash and investments — other restricted.”

Cash and investments — restricted with fiscal agents represent monies held by trustees that are legally
restricted for the retirement of long-term debt. Cash and investments — other restricted represents
monics held in the County Treasury for investments restricted in the SCVMC by debt covenants for
construction projects and professional services. Cash and investments — other restricted also includes
monies held in the County Treasury restricted for specific purposes consisting primarily of reserves
for employee benefits and certain other debt service funds.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

(b)

Investment Policies

The objectives of the County’s investment policy, in order of priority, are safety of principal to ensure
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio, maintenance of liquidity sufficient to meet anticipated
operating requirements, and attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles,
taking into account the County’s investment risk constraints and cash flow characteristics. The
objectives of the policy also insure mitigation of interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of
credit risk.

The table below 1dentifies the investment types that are authorized for the County by the California
Government Code (or the County’s investment policy, where more restrictive). This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that arc governed by the provisions of debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the County’s
investment policy.

Maximum Maximum Moody's

Maximum Percentage/Dollar Investment Credit Rating
Authorized [nvestment Type Maturity Of Portfolic In One Issuer Minimum
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None Nane None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None None
State Local Agency Investment Fand (LATF) N/A None None None
Repurchase Agreements 92 days None None None
Reverse Repurchase Agrecments 92 days $90 million Noane None
Securities Lending 92 days 20% None None
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% 7.5% of the 30% Pl or Aa3
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 15% of the 40% P1
Commercial Paper 270 days 40% 10% Pi
Medium-Term Cerporate Notes 5 years 30% 10% of the 30% Aal3
Notes & Bonds of Other Local Agencies 5 years None None None
Municipal Obligations 5 years 10% Nane A3
Money Market Funds 5 years® 20% 10% Aaa
Federal Agency Mortgage Backed Securities 5 years 20% Nane None
Asset Backed Securities 5 years 20% None A3 for issuer, Aa3

for security

*  Money market funds maturity may be defined as the weighted average maturity.

In accordance with Government Code Sections 53620-53622, the assets of the Santa Clara County
Retiree Healthcare Plan, which is reported in an Internal Service Fund, may be invested in bonds that
have a final maturity of 30 ycars or less from purchase date; and in bonds with a Moody’s credit
rating of A3 or higher at time of purchase, and may have its fixed income holdings structured with
sector concentrations comparable to those of the Lehman Aggregate Index. Additionally, the Board of
Supervisors has determined that up to 67% of the Retiree Healthcare Plan assets, excluding near-term
liability payouts, may be invested in equities through mutual funds or through the direct purchase of
common stocks by a moncy management firm(s) approved by the Board of Supervisors.

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of debt agreements,

rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the County’s investment
policy.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

Summary of Cash and Investments

Total County cash and investments are reported as follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Primary Government $ 1,084,429 $ 322,582 $ 1,407,011
Component Units 139,845 4,913 144,758
Investment Trust Funds 2,577,410 5 2,577,415
Private-Purposc Trust Fund 51,576 - 51,576
Agency Funds 16,832 4,154 20,986
Total cash and investments $ 3,870,092 $ 331,654 $ 4,201,746

The County’s cash and investments arc as follows:

Cash and deposits:

Cash on hand $ 04
Deposits of the County 15,462
Restricted deposits 5,315

Deposits with component units:
Housing Authority 9,120
FIRST 5 3,522
Total cash and deposits 33,513

Investments:

With Treasurer 4,037,288
With fiscal agents 27,812
With Housing Authority 45,178
With FIRST 5 57,955
Total investments 4,168,233
Total cash, deposits and investments $ 4,201,746

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits 1s the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the County will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
sccuritics that arc in the posscssion of an outside party. The California Government Code and the
County’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure
to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision. The California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged sccuritics in the
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure County deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2008, $565 of
the County’s bank balance of $41,685 was exposed to custodial credit risk by not being insured or
collateralized.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

(d) Investment Composition

As of June 30, 2008, the major classes of the County’s cash and investments consisted of the
following:

Invesunent Maturitics (in years)

Interest Rates. Par Value TIair Value Loss than 0.5 0.5-1 1-3 3-5 510 10-30

$ 1,434,041 $ 1,440,808 $ 261.508 $ 162065 by 663,874 $ 353361 $ - $
- 40,000 39,616 30.6106 - - - -
corporate nofes 469,904 472,444 129.972 19962 262930 59,580
paper 1,243,075 1,241,498 1,241,408 - - -
Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 205.000 204,960 169.906 35054
Money Market Mutual Fund 802 803 803 -
State Local Ageney Investment Fund 40,000 39.99% 39.998
Subtotal commingled pocl 3,432,822 3.440.187 LLB83.361 Z17.081 926,804 412,941
65,780 62,863 L.308

- 23394 8722 13,839 13,600
299,013 3R.466 67,760 125269 25060 -

s - Coupon 42,458
Discount 15,294 (4,845 3.144 2958 230 513 -
11,739 11785 6.724 1604 1007 - - 2,450
Mudium-tenm corporate netes 27,904 27.082 1,200 - 5,191 5,129 9,758 5.794
Moncy marker murgal funds 39432 39435 39433 - - - -
Stock mutual funds;
Vaigard 500 Index Fund 64,099 76471 76,471
Yanguard Mid Cap Index Fund 18,221 3R,047 38047
Vangtard Small-Cap Index Fund 14,959 27.562 27.562
Subttal separate investments, 551.352 597,101 232,355 72322 163.091 39.434 25,597 64,302
Subtotal with Treasurer 3984175 4,037,288 2115716 289403 L 089 895 452,375 23,597 64,302
With fiscal agents:
ury Notcs 2.355 2.440 - - 709 1731
Coupon 14,015 14.605 - 3533 11,072
Discount 556 530 536 - -
Municipul bonds 280 any - - - 300
Medium-term corporate notes 2,345 2,376 - 762 1614 -
Commercial paper 490 4 490 - -
Money market mutual funds 7.036 7,030 7.030
Subtotal with fiscal agents 27.177 27812 R.OR2 762 5.850 13112
With Tsusing Authority:
wics 14,290 [4.290 - 1,884 12,406
rket murnal funds 2,390 2,390 2390 - -
State Local Agency Investment Fund 2R 408 28498 25.408
Subtotal with Housing Authority 45.17% 45178 30885 - 1584 12.406
13,325 [2.898 - - 2953 10,945
28,250 29,200 - 4375 14,228 10,397
13,425 [3.641 Lo 732 1603 10.296
Moncy matker funds 1.216 [L.216 1216 - - -
Subtotal with FIRST 5 56.216 57.955 2.220 3307 18,784 31.638 - -
Total investments $ 4.112.746 $ 4.168 233 3 2.156.912 $ 295472 $ L116419 $ 509.531 3 23.5397 b3 04.302

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the cvent of the failure of the counterparty
(c¢.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government Code and the County’s investment policies do not contain legal or policy requirements
that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Through its investment policy, the County manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates by limiting the weighted average maturity of its commingled pool to eighteen
months. At June 30, 2008, the County’s weighted average maturity of its commingled pool is
413 days. The County invested in callable Federal Agency issues within its commingled pool
($918,794 of the County’s U.S. Agencies — Coupon position of $1,440,868) and the Housing
Authority invested in callable Federal Agency issucs in the amount of $13,747. Thesc issucs arc
highly sensitive to interest rate changes and are callable at par prior to maturity based on these rate
changes.
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Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that a debt issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that
ncgative perceptions of the issucrs ability to make these payments will cause sccurity prices to
decline. The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution for securities with credit
exposure as a percentage of investments with Treasury (Commingled pool and Separate), fiscal agent,
Housing Authority and FIRST 5 as rated by Moody’s Investors Service:

% of % of % of
Commingled Separate % of investments % of
Moody's Pool investments investments investments with Housing investments
Investment Rating with the Treasury — with the Treasury  with fiscal agents Authority with FIRST 5
U.S. Treasury Exempt 0.0% 10.6% 8.8% 0.0% 24.0%
U.S. Agencies Exempt 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
U.S. Agencies Aaa 41.9% 49.8% 32.5% 31.6% 50.4%
1.5, Agencies Pl 1.1% 2.5% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Municipal bonds Aaa 0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0%
Municipal bonds A 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Municipal bonds P-1 0.0% 0.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Medium-term corporate notes Aaa 2.9% 0.4% 1.2% 0.0% 5.8%
Medium-term corporate notes Aa 10.6% 1.9% 7.3% 0.0% 8.8%
Medium-term corporate notes A 0.3% 1.7% 0.0% 0.0% 8.9%
Medium-term corporate notes Baa 0.0% 4.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Comtnercial paper Pl 36.1% 0.0% 1.8% 0.0% 0.0%
Negotiable Certificate of Deposits Pl 6.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Money market mutual funds Aaa 0.0% 6.6% 25.3% 5.3% 0.0%
Money market funds Not rated 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.1%
State Local Agency Investment Fund Not rated 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 63.1% 0.0%
Stock Mutual Fund Not applicable 0.0% 23.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Investments 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Government Code Section 16429.1 authorizes each local government agency to invest funds in the
State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) administered by the California State
Treasurer. The total amount recorded by all public agencies in LAIF at that date was approximately
$25,161,913. Of that amount, 85.28% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 14.72%
in structured notes and asset backed securities as of June 30, 2008. The Local Investment Advisory
Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as
designated by Statc Statute. The valuc of the pool sharcs in LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is
determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different than the fair value of the County’s position
in the pool.
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(e)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investor’s holdings
in a single issuer. The County diversifies its portfolio by limiting the percentage of the portfolio that
can bc invested in any one issuct’s name. U.S. Treasury and Agency sceuritics arc not subjcct to this
limitation. More than 5 percent of the County’s pooled investments are invested in Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation notes, Federal National Mortgage Association notes, Federal Home
Loan Bank notes, Robobank’s negotiable certificate of deposits and commercial paper, and Toyota
Motor Credit Corporation’s notes and commercial paper, which represent 20.0%, 13.2%, 8.5%, 7.1%

and 5.1%, respectively, of the County’s pooled investments.

Condensed Financial Information

In licu of scparately issued financial statements for the cxternal pools, condensed financial

information is presented below as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Assets
LLS Treasury Notcs
U.S. Agencies - Coupon
U.S Agencies - Discount
Municipal bonds
Medium-term corporate notos
Commercial paper
Negotiable certificate of deposits
Money market mutual fund
State Local Agency Investment Fund
Stock mutual funds

Total investments

Other assets (Interest receivable)
Total asscts

Nct Assers:
Equity of internal pool participants
Lquity of individual investment accounts
Equity of external pool participants
Total net asscts

Statement of Changes in Net Asscts
Net assets at July 1, 2007
Nct change in investments by pool participants
Net assets at June 30, 2008

$

62,863
1,739,881
34461
11,785
499,526
1,241,498
204,960
40,236
39,998
142,080

4,037,288

24,182

4,061,470

1,466,941
269,558
2,324 971

4,061,470

3,802,782
158,688

1,061,470
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Net asscts composition of the equity of external pool
participants is as follows:

Participants units outstanding ($1 par) 52,318,801
Undistributed and unrealized gain 6,110
Net assets at Junc 30, 2008 $2,324,971
Participants net asset value at fair value price per share
($2,324,971 divided by 2,318,566 units) S 1.003
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(4) Receivables

Receivables at year-end of the County’s major individual funds and nonmajor and internal service funds
in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Nonmajor Internal Total
Receivables - General Governmental Service Governmental
Governmental Activities Fund Funds Funds Activities
Property tax S 5,936 $ - $ - $ 5,936
Loans reccivable - 32,715 - 32,715
Other 142,345 5,587 7,824 155,756
Gross receivables 148,281 38,302 7,824 194,407
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (102,828) - - {102.828)
Total receivables, net S 45,453 $ 38,302 $ 7,824 $ 91,579
Nonmajor Total
Receivables - Enterprise Busincss-type
Busincss-type Activitics SCVMC Funds Activitics
Paticnt accounts receivable $ 527,616 $ - $ 527,616
Other 3,099 154 3,253
(Gross receivables 530,715 154 530,869
Less allowance for uncollectibles (396,048) - (396,048)
Total receivables, net $ 134,667 5 154 $ 134,821

Loan receivables from housing programs in the amount of $32,175 are not expected to be collected within

the subsequent year.

Governmental funds report deferred revenucs in connection with reecivables for revenucs not considered
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental and enterprise funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At
June 30, 2008, the components of deferred revenue reported, separated into unavailable revenue and

unearned revenue, were as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Fund:

Due from other governmental agencies

Other receivables

Other miscellaneous assets including cash deposits
Nonmajor governmental funds:

Due from other governmental agencies

Other receivables

Other miscellaneous assets including cash deposits
Internal Service Funds

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Nonmajor enterprisc funds
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Unavailable Uneamed
$ 136,495 $ 9
9,004 711
- 17,009
- 315
32,715 218
- 694
- 4
$ 178,214 $ 18,960
$ - $ 77
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(4) Receivables (Continued)

In June 2003, the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency (the MRIDA) entered into an agreement of purchase
and sale of approximately 35-acres of Elmwood surplus lands in the amount of (1) $135,000 payable in
installments over a 20-year period; (2) the aggregate sum of the Developer Negotiated Value for all
parcels comprising the property; and (3) 8 years of Additional Payments, estimated at $3,500 per year,
ncgotiated under the Sales and Usce Tax Sharing Agreement based on 50% of the sales tax revenue
generated by the additional redevelopment project area together with the Elmwood commercial area. In
August 2003, the County approved the agreement with KB Home South Bay, Inc. (KB Home) for the
base land value of $57,750 (Developer Negotiated Value) enabling the County’s disposition of the
Elmwood surplus lands and the MRDAs purchase and re-sale of the property.

The following table shows the estimated cash flows related to the sale of the Elmwood surplus lands:

Developer Milpitas Redevelopment Agency
Fiscal year ending Negotiated Installment Additional
June 30, Value Other Payments Payments Total
2004 $ 2500 § - $ 24000 $ - $ 26,500
2005 38,500 419 4,000 - 42919
2006 16,750 - 4,000 - 20,750
2007 - - 4,000 - 4,000
2008 - - 4,000 - 4,000
2009 - - 4,000 - 4,000
2010 - - 4,000 - 4,000
2011-2015 - - 22,000 - 22,000
2016-2020 - - 27,000 - 27,000
2021-2025 - - 18,000 7,000 25,000
2026-2030 - - - 17,500 17,500
2031 - - - 3,500 3,500
Total 57,750 419 115,000 28,000 201,169
Less amount received to date (57,750) 419) (36,000) - (94,169)
Balance at June 30, 2008 $ - % - % 79,000 § 28,000 $ 107,000

At June 30, 2008, the County’s General Fund receivable balance of $107,000 represents the remaining
estimate future cash flow related to the sale of the Elmwood surplus lands. The County received proceeds
from the sale in the amount of $4,000 within its availability period and recognized this revenue in its
General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. As a result, the deferred revenue balance related to
this balance is $103,000 at June 30, 2008,

53



)

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Interfund Transactions

Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers as of and for the fiscal ycar ended Junce 30, 2008, by
individual fund/fund type are summarized as tollows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Internal Service Funds $ 656
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,724
General Fund SCVMC 61,020
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 185
Nonmajor Governmental Funds SCVMC 12,389
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,694
SCVMC Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,278
Agency Funds Agencey Funds 117,776
Total 3 202,722

The General Capital Improvement Fund is due $12,389 from SCVMC to reimburse capital project costs
incurred while the General Fund is due $61,020 from SCVMC for current borrowings for working capital.
In addition, the interfund balances of $117,776 between the County’s Agency Funds represent current
borrowings for working capital cxpected to be repaid during the following ycar.

All remaining interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Transfer in/out between funds:

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County’s governmental activities funded from the General
Capital Improvement Fund transferred the accumulated costs in the amount of $76,553 related to the
active comnstruction projects involving the Valley Health Centers, Valley Specialty Center, and other
health facility improvements to SCVMC. These amounts were not reported in the governmental funds as
the amount did not involve the transfer of financial resources. However, the SCVMC did report a capital
contribution for the capital resources received.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County’s governmental activities transferred its net
pension obligation in the amount of $30,166 to the Pension Obligation Internal Service Fund. This
transfer did not require the use of current financial resources and therctore is not reported as a transfer in
the governmental funds.
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Interfund Transactions (Continued)

The following schedule briefly summarizes the County’s transfer activitics:

Betwveen Governmental and Buosiness-type Activities:

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose

General Fund SCVMC $ 327980 Transfer funds for operating subsidy.

Ceneral Fund SCVMC 17.400  Transfer San Jose Redevelopment Agency delepated payment for the
Seismic Compliance Modernization Project.

General Fund Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 10 Transler funds to cover rent for the animal rescue ¢linic,

Nonmajor Governmental funds SCVMC 38 Transfer remaining balance of tobacco securitization cost of issuance
to pay for hond interest expense.

Nonmajor Governmental funds SCVMC 148 Transfer funds related to the 2008 Series L Refunding bonds issuance.

Internal Service Fund SCVMC 12,014 ‘Transfer funds from pension obligation bonds issuance to payoff net pension obligation.

SCVMC General Fund 240310 Transfer funds to return operating subsidy.

SCvMmC General Fund 804 Transfer funds to public health for nursing services.

SCVMC Nenmajor Governmental funds 71479 Transfer bond proceeds to General Capital Improvement Nonmajor fund for
Valley Specialty Center and Valley Health Center projects.

SCVMC Nonmajor Governmental Funds Transter funds related to the 2008 Series M Retunding bonds issuance.

Subtotal Between Governmental and Business-type Activities:

Between Funds within the Governmental or Business-type Activities™;
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds

General Fund Internal Service Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Total Between Funds within Governimental or Business-type Activities:

Total Transters:

5.676
291

731
28.507
100
18,241
1316

7.500
856
619

3.538

15.639

31.630
415

24877
48

100

4.654

4.967
20.344

9.603

1.549
66.557

135,215

825.460

Transfer funds to the County Library Nonmajor fund towards annual contribution per
Joint Power Authority (JPA) agreement.
Transfer benefit assessments to the County Library Nonmajor fund.
Transfer funds to the Housing and Community Development Nonmajor fund
to subsidize the aperation of Community Development Block Grant program.
Transter funds to pay debt serviee for Hospital Facilities Authority Bonds.
Transler funds to finance various facilities and feet deparunent capital projects
Transfer funds to the Tobaceo Securitization Corparation for operations,
‘I'ransfer funds to the Proposition 63 Nonmajor tund for operations.
Transfer funds to the Roads Nonmajor fund for Measure B Transportation
Improvement Program.

‘I'tansfer funds to facilities and fleet department for acquisition of’
new vehicles and to information systems for the equipment replacement.

‘I'ransfer funds from the Vital Statistics Nonmajor fund for specified ongeing operations.
Transfer funds from Clerk-Recorder’s Nonmajor fund to cover expenditures over the
enhanced [985 base.
Return funds to the General Fund to substitute for San Jose Redevelopment Agency funding.
Transter remaining balance to close out Mcasure B Bond Proceeds Nonmajor fund.
Transfer funds to pay coniract services for a 10 year plan (o address chronic
homelessness in the County.
Transfer funds for Proposition 36 Nonmajor fund for substance abuse prevention program.
Transfer funds to establish the Proposition 63 Nonmajor fund.
Transfer remaining balance of 2007 Series K bond cost of issuance to pay
for bond interest expense,

Transfer funds from Vector Control District Nonmajor fund to design the alteration
projects related to the new Veetor Control building.

Transler funds to Parks Operation and Mamntenance Nonmajor fund for operations.

Transfer funds for Historical Heritage Commission grants
administration cost.

Transfer to Mortgage and Rental Assistance from Developer Application Other
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund for emergency rental and mortgage program.

Transfer bond proceeds to General Capital Improvement for the Morgan Hill
Courthouse project.

‘I'tansfer bond proceeds to General Capital Improvement for the Charcot project.

Transfer bond proceeds to General Capital Improvement for the Crime Laby/
Courthouse Seismic projects.

Transfer Bond proceeds to General Capital Improvement for the Fleet Building
and Courthouse Scismic Project.

Transfer 2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series K bond proceeds to establish reserve fund,

* These transfers were eliminated in the consolidation. by column, for the Governmental and Business-type activities.
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(6) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Balance, Reductions/ Balance,
July 1, 2007 Additions Adjustments Transfers June 30, 2008
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land S 187,062 S 5076 S - S - S 192,138
Construction in progress 216,158 154,898 (107) (118,616) 252,333
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 403,220 159,974 (107) (118,616) 444,471
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 188,276 - - 37,375 225,651
Buildings and improvements 664,541 647 - 4,519 669,707
Equipment and vehicles 143,312 15,586 (7,084) 169 151,983
Total capital assets, being depreciated 996,129 16,233 (7,084) 42,063 1,047,341
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (37,720) (8,272) - - {65,992)
Buildings and improvements (370,102) (13,015) - - (383,117)
Equipment and vehicles (105,500) (12,622) 6,546 - (111,576)
Total accumulated depreciation (533,322) (33,909) 6,546 - (560,685)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 462,807 (17,676) (538) 42,063 486,656
Governmental aclivilies, capital assets, net S 866,027 S 142,298 S (645) S (76,553) S 931,127
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciared:
Land S 6,310 S - S - S - S 6,310
Construction in progress 175,844 44,134 - 65,179 285,157
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 182,154 44,134 - 65,179 291,467
Cuapital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 398,854 78 (1,189) 7,122 404,865
Equipment and vehicles 84,670 136 (3,688) 4,252 85,370
Leasehold improvements 2,274 - - - 2,274
Total capital assets, being depreciated 485,798 214 (4,877) 11,374 492,509
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (197.,837) (16,950) 1,184 - (213,603)
Equipment and vehicles (61,456) (6,280) 3,675 - (64,061)
Leasehold improvements (1,289) (104) - - (1,393)
Total accumulated depreciation (260,582) (23,334) 4,859 - (279,057)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 225216 (23,120) (18) 11,374 213,452
Business-type activities, capital assets, net S 407,370 S 21,014 S (18) S 76,553 S 504,919
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(6) Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the Housing Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Balance, Reductions/ Balance,
July 1, 2007* Additions Adjustments June 30, 2008
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 14,296 $ - $ - $ 14,296
Construction in progress 7,711 2,164 (6,056) 3,819
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 22,007 2,164 (6,056) 18,115
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 56,038 6,638 20 62,696
Equipment and vehicles 3,278 82 (139) 3,221
Total captial asscts, being depreciated 59,316 6,720 (119) 65,917
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (23,148) (1,627) - (24,775)
Equipment and vchicles (2,503) (240) 154 (2,589)
Total accumulated depreciation (25,651) (1,867) 154 (27.364)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 33,665 4,853 35 38,553
Housing Authority capital assets, net % 55,672 $ 7,017 $ (6,021) $ 56,668

" SPG Housing, Inc. restated the January 1, 2007 capital assets balance in the amount of $1,846 to consolidate the
Authority’s limited partnerships’ interest in San Pedro Gardens Associates, Ltd.

Capital asset activity for the FIRST 5 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Balance, Reductions/ Balance,
July 1, 2007 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2008
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 3 2,358 $ - 3 - S 2,358
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,358 - - 2,358
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,384 - - 4,384
Furniture and equipment 146 - - 146
Total capital assets, being depreciated 4,530 - - 4.530
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (407) (213) - (620)
Furniture and equipment (213) (18) (231)
Total accumulated depreciation (620) (231) - (851)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 3,910 (231) - 3.679
FIRST S capital assets, net $ 6,268 $ (231) % - S 6.037
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government $ 18,050
Public protection 2,947
Public ways 8,260
Health and sanitation 382
Public assistance 402
Education 945
Recreation 425
Amount reported in the internal service funds 2,498

Total depreciation expense - governmental functions $ 33,909

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type functions as follows:

SCVMC $ 22,613
Airport 693
Sanitation District 28

Total depreciation expense - business-type functions $ 23,334

Capital Projects Commitments

As of June 30, 2008, the SCVMC and the Airport have active construction projects that include
constructions of Valley Health Centers at Gilroy, Milpitas, and Sunnyvale; the Valley Specialty Center;
seismic compliance for all SCVMC buildings; installation of a new absorption chiller and cooling tower
at Valley Specialty Center; Ambulatory Electronic Medical Record; continued construction of South
County Airport aircraft hangars and fire protection system; and infrastructure and facility improvement of
Reid Hillview Airport and Palo Alto Airport.

The County’s commitments for business-type activities as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Expended to Committed as of

Projects June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008

Hospital Projects:

Valley Specialty Center $ 127,211 $ 1,268
VHC Gilroy/Sunnyvale/Milpitis 107,435 26,333
Seismic Safety 22,661 35,804
Renovations and equipment 25,313 6,355
Airport Projects 2,537 37
Total $ 285,157 $ 69,797
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(6) Capital Assets (Continued)

Nonmajor governmental funds (Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds) also have active
construction projects as of June 30, 2008. They are as follows:

¢ Roads projects include bridge seismic retrofit, rehabilitation and replacement; pedestrian and bicycle
routes improvements; signal synchronization programs and pavement management of Measure B
projects; and the continued comprehensive study and planning for the County’s expressways.

e Parks projects include Almaden Quicksilver toxic mitigation; Santa Teresa County Park and Coyote
Lake County Park Development Projects; land acquisition for Anderson Lake County Park; and
improvement of County Parks’ facilities.

e General capital projects include the construction of the Morgan Hill Courthouse; a new Crime Lab;
continued renovation and improvement of the Juvenile Hall Housing detention buildings and jail
facilitics; the remodcling of County buildings; repair and replacement of County’s facilitics; and the
upgrade of County buildings’ security system.

The County’s governmental activities commitments at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Expended to Committed as of

Projects June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
Road projects $ 20,630 $ 5,566
Park projects 19,098 1,688
General capital projects 212,605 15,366
Total $ 252,333 $ 22,620
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(7) Capital Leases

The County lcases certain structurcs, vehicles, and cquipment, obtained under various lcasc financing
agreements. The leases expire at various times through the fiscal year 2019.

As of June 30, 2008, governmental activities property and accumulated depreciation of major classes of
assets under capital lease are as follows:

Description
Buildings and improvements $ 6,462
Equipment and vehicles 26,004
Total capital assets 32,466
Less accumulated depreciation (28,539)
Net capital assets $ 3,927

Futurc minimum lcasc payments under governmental activitics capital lecascs arc as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2009 $ 830
2010 526
2011 399
2012 302
2013 302
2014-2018 756
2019 120
Total 3,235
Amount representing interest at rates from 0.00% to 4.87% (116)
Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 3,119
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(8) Long-Term Liabilities

As of Junc 30, 2008, outstanding long-term obligations consisted of the following:

Final Interest Annual Principal ~ Original Issuc  Outstanding at
Type of indebtedness (purpose) Maturity Rates Installments Amount June 30, 2008
Governmental activities:
Taxable Pension Funding Bonds 8/1/08 - 8/1/36 534 -6.14% $310-$51.560 $ 389485 § 389 485
El Camino Hospital District Hospital Facilities Authority:
1985 ACES Lease Revenue Bonds Series A & B 8108 - 81/15 (N $622 - $8,000 19,205 14,567
Financing Authority:
1954 [_ease Revenue Bonds Series A & B 11/15/08 - (2) 3) $93 - $262 2,060 1,158
1997 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A 11/15/08 - 11/15/13  4.70% - 6.00% S1.081-$1,632 16,649 4,225
1998 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A 5115/09-5/15/17  4.30%-4.75% $350 - $5,749 61,373 22,710
2000 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B 5115/09 - 5/15/17  5.25%- 5.50% $4,080 - $6,000 71,920 45,625
2003 Lease Revenue Bonds Series C 5/15/09 - 5/15/23  3.00%- 5.00% $910 - $1,645 20,025 18,295
2006 Leasc Revenue Bonds Serics [ 5/15/09 - 5/15/31 3.50% - 5.00% 52,342 - $5.895 87,575 87,575
2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series K 5/15/11 - 5/15/37 4.00% - 5.00% $445 - $1,460 22,635 22,655
2008 Lease Reverie Bonds Serics A 11/15/09 - 1171522 3.00% - 5.00% $161 -$1.364 5,579 5579
2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series L 5/15/09 - 5/15/36  3.00%-5.25% S1,030 - $4.445 59,800 59,800
Housing Authority:
2004 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A 9/1/08 - 9/1/29 4 $75 - $255 3,550 3,350
2006 Leasc Revenue Bonds 91/08 - 9/1/38 5.00% $50 - 8510 5125 5125
Silicon Vallcy Tobacco Sceuritization Authority:
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds 6/1/36 - 6/1/56 5.63 - 6.85% $4,408 - $43,604 102,030 102,030
2006 Vector Contral COP Series 171 6/1/09 - 6/1/27 3.50 - 5.00% $150 - $330 4,495 4,275
Total governmental activities $ 871,526 $ 786,454
Business-type activities
SCVMC:
El Camino Hospital District Hospital Facilities Authority:
1985 ACLES Lease Revenue Bonds Series A&B 8/1/08 - 8/1/15 (1 §3,278 - $5,527 b 55,795 8§ 31,333
Financing Authority:
1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A & B 11/15/07 - (2) 3) $6,332 - $17,938 256,435 79,190
1997 Lease Revenue Bonds Scrics A 11508 - 1171513 4.70%-6.00%  $1,324 - $10,633 171,756 22,015
1998 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A 515/09-5/15/17  4.30%-4.75% S1,231 - $1,457 16,322 5,426
2005 Lease Revenue Bonds Series E 5/15/09 - 5/15/11 4.00% - 4.50% $3,550 - $3.855 11,110 11,110
2006 Lease Revenue Bonds Series | 5/15/09 - 5/15/31 3.50% - 5.00% 51,662 - $4,185 62,165 62,1635
2007 Leasc Revenue Bonds Serics K 515/12-5/15/37  4.00% - 5.00% S1,395 - $4,565 70,885 70,885
2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A 11/15/09 - 11715722 3.00%-5.00%  $1,076 - $15.657 120,831 120,831
2008 Leasc Revenue Bonds Series L 5A15/09 - 5/15/36  3.00%-525%  $9,530- 811,750 53,040 53,040
2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series M 5/15/10 - 5/15/35 (3) $520 - $8,300 143,105 143,105
961,444 599,100
Airport:
ABAG Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2002-1 7/1/08 - 7/1/32 3.50 - 5.00% $155 - 8355 6,780 5,610
Total business-type activities $ 968,224  $ 604,710

O Variable rate, 1.35% effective as of June 30, 2008.

@ Series A: 11/15/11 and Series B: 11/15/25,

@ Series A: fixed rate of 7.75% and Series B: variable rate, 1.35% effective as of June 30, 2008.
“ Variable rate, 1.33% effective as of June 30, 2008.

@ Variable rate, 1.35% effective as of June 30, 2008,
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(8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008:

Balance, Balance, Amounts
July 1, Junc 30, Duc Within
2007 Additions Retirements 2008 One Ycar

Governmental activities:

Lease Revenue Bonds b 280,470 3 88,034 $ 77,840 $ 290.664 $ 15,079
Unamortized premium 1,432 1,935 94 3,273 138
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding - (959) 3) (956) 37

Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds 102,030 - - 102,030 -
Accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds 2,624 6,257 - 8.881 -

Pension Funding Bonds - 389,485 - 389,485 310
Accreted interest on capital appreciation bonds - 5,231 - 5.231 -

Certificates of Participation 4,700 - 425 4,275 150
Unamortized premium 172 - 9 163 9

Subtotal governmental bonds 391,428 489,983 78,363 803,046 15,649

Capital Lease Obligations (Note 7) 4,167 - 1,048 3,119 787

Accrued litigation liability 6,600 - 3,600 3,000 -

Insurance claims (Note 12) 102,432 56,875 52,674 106,633 34,941

Net Pension Obligation (Note 11) 28,621 1,545 30,166 - -

Accrued vacation & sick leave 117,155 93,153 87,528 122,780 10,474

Total governmental activitics 3 650,403 $ 641,556 3 253,381 $  1,038.578 $ 61,851

Business-type activities:

SCVMC Lease Revenue Bonds $ 544,708 $ 387,861 3 333,469 $ 599.100 $ 17,486
Unamortized discount (3,343) - (2,482) (861) (187)
Unamortized premium 985 13,317 423 13,879 890
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding (14,671) (21,345) (12,093) (23,923) (2,000)

Subtotal SCVMC bonds 527,679 379,833 319,317 588,195 16,189
Airport Lease Revenue Bonds 5,875 - 265 5,610 155
Unamortized discount (21) - (1 (20) )]

Subtotal Airport bonds 5,854 - 264 5,590 154
Net Pension Obligation (Note 11) 12,014 - 12,014 - -
Accrued vacation & sick leave 52,874 54,778 48,770 58,882 9,579

Total business-type activities g 598,421 $ 434611 $ 380,365 $ 652,667 $ 25,922

Compenent Units:
Housing Authority:

Notes payable % 4,682 b3 308 $ 207 $ 4,783 $ 403
Bonds payable 4,065 - 170 3.895 180
Bracher HDC, Inc. 1,331 16 - 1,347 -
SPG Housing, Inc. * 7,957 330 3,620 4,667 35
Villa Garcia, Inc. 2,716 34 74 2,676 g1
Villa 8an Pedro HDC, Inc. 6.932 61 57 6.936 59
Rotary Plaza/HACSC HDC, Inc. 115 6 - 121 -
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,951 126 - 2.077 -
Accrued vacation & sick lcave 803 1,241 1,187 857 56
Net other postemployment benefits - 608 - 608 -
Accreted interest payable 440 43 20 463 -
Total Housing Authority 30,992 2,773 5.335 28,430 314
FIRST 5:
Acerued vacation & sick leave 179 - - 179 -
Total component units $ 31,171 $ 2,773 $ 5.335 $ 28,609 $ 814

" SPG Housing, Inc. restated the January [, 2007 long-term obligation balance in the amount of $2,352 to
consolidate the Authority’s limited partnerships’ interest in San Pedro Gardens Associates, Ltd.
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(8) Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

(a)

Governmental Activities

2007 Taxable Pension Funding Bonds

During July 2007, the County issued 2007 Taxable Pension Funding Bonds in the amount of
$389,485 to refinance a portion of the County’s statutory obligations to make payments to the State of
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) for certain amounts arising as a result of
retirement benefits accruing to County employees. The bonds were comprised of current interest
bonds and capital appreciation bonds. The current intercst bonds were issucd for $302,180 and bear
fixed interest rates ranging from 5.34% to 6.00%, and have a final maturity date of August 1, 2036.
The capital appreciation bonds were issued for $87,305 with interest rates ranging from 5.74% to
6.14%, and have a final maturity date of August 1, 2029.

Hospital Facilities Authority

The Santa Clara County — EI Camino Hospital Facilitics Authority (Hospital Facilitics Authority) was
organized in 1979 as a governmental agency by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the
County and the El Camino Hospital District. The Hospital Facilities Authority was organized to
finance the construction of a kidney dialysis facility, hospital administrative and storage facilities, and
other improvements adjacent to El Camino Hospital, and to provide for the construction and
rcnovation of the SCVMC. The El Camino facilitics were completed in 1982 and the SCVMC
facilitics were substantially complceted in 1990,

The 1985 Adjustable Convertible Extendable Securities (ACES) Lease Revenue Bonds were issued
by the Hospital Facilities Authority to provide financing for the acquisition, construction, and
renovation of various Santa Clara Valley Health and Hospital System projects, including the Valley
Hcalth Center, the Paticnt Carc Towcr, the Psychiatric Inpatient Facility, and the Cogencration
Facility. The debt is allocated between the County’s governmental activities and SCVMC to reflect
the use of bond proceeds to construct assets operated by the departments reported in the governmental
activities and SCVMC, respectively. The bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate, which is
determined weekly. The weekly rate is the rate that results in the market value of the bonds being
equal to their par value. A remarketing agreement maintains an open market for the bonds. On March
6, 1998, the Hospital Facilitics Authority cngaged State Strect Bank and Trust Company to provide
an irrevocable, transferable letter of credit to support the principal and interest due on the bonds. The
letter of credit, which has never been drawn upon, is reduced pro rata as principal payments are made.
The amount of the irrevocable letter of credit agreement, as of June 30, 2008, was $46,730.
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization Authority

In accordance with GASB Technical Bulletin 2004-1, Tobacco Settlement Recognition and Financial
Reporting Entity Issues, the Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization Authority (JPA) and the Santa
Clara County Tobacco Securitization Corporation (Corporation) have been included in the basic
financial statements as a blended component unit of the County. The Corporation borrowed from the
JPA the proceeds of the Series 2007 Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds issued by the JPA on
January 12, 2007 for $102,030 pursuant to a secured loan agreement. The Corporation then applied
the loan procceds to purchasc the County’s portion of its rights, title and intercst in the tobacco
settlement revenues (TSRs) according to a purchase and sale agreement dated as of January 1, 2007
between the County and the Corporation (sale agreement). The Series 2007 bonds are primarily
secured by a portion of TSRs that are payable to the County and sold to the Corporation pursuant to
the sale agreement.

The first Scrics A Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs) werc issucd for $43,604 with an intercst rate
of 5.63%, final turbo redemption date on June 1, 2031 and due date of June 1, 2036. The second
Series A CABs were issued for $11,338 with an interest rate 5.68%, final turbo redemption date on
June 1, 2033 and due date on June 1, 2041. The third Series A CABs were issued for $13,618 with an
interest rate of 5.70%, final turbo redemption date on June 1, 2036 and due date on June 1, 2047.
Series B CABs were issued for $4,408 with an interest rate of 5.85%, final turbo redemption date on
June 1, 2036 and duc datc of June 1, 2047. Scrics C CABS were 1ssucd for $20,161 with an intcrest
rate of 6.30%, final turbo redemption date on June 1, 2042 and due date of June 1, 2056. Series D
CABs were issued for $8,901 with an interest rate of 6.85%, final turbo redemption date on June 1,
2046 and due date of June 1, 2056.

In the event of a decline in the tobacco scttlement revenugs for any rcason, including the default or
bankruptcy of a participating cigarette manufacturer, resulting in a decline in the tobacco settlement
revenues and possible default on the Tobacco Securitization debt, neither the JPA, the County, nor the
Corporation has any liability to make up any such shortfall.

Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds

The Santa Clara County Financing Authority (the Financing Authority) was formed in 1994 by a joint
exercise of powers agreement between the County and the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection
District. The Financing Authority commenced operations in the County with the issuance of bonds
pursuant to the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985.

2000 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B - On July 6, 2000, the Financing Authority issucd 2000

Series B bonds in the amount of $71,920 to provide funds to advance refund and defease $70,720 of
the outstanding 1991 Certificate of Participation issued by the Public Facilities Corporation.
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

(b)

2003 Lease Revenue Bonds Series C & D and 2005 Lease Revenue Bonds Series H - On
December 18, 2003, the County through the Financing Authority issued 2003 Series C and D Lease
Revenue Bonds in the amount of $20,025 and $21,350, respectively. These bonds were issued to
embark on a number of long-term capital projects including the construction of a new courthouse in
the City of Morgan Hill. On May 19, 2005, the County through the Financing Authority issued 2005
Series H Lease Revenue Bonds in the amount of $40,725. The bonds were issued to provide funds
for the Charcot Center and the Morgan Hill Courthouse. As discussed on Note 8(b), the 2003 Lease
Revenue Bonds Serics D and the 2005 Leasc Revenue Bonds Serics H were refunded with the
issuance of the 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Scries L.

Housing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds - On Scptember 1, 2004, the County through the Financing
Authority issued 2004 Series A Lease Revenue Bonds in the amount of §3,550 that bear interest that
is set each week by the remarketing agent based upon prevailing interest rates tor 7-day variable rate
demand bonds of similar credit quality trading in the municipal market place during the week. The
bonds were issued to refund and redeem the Housing Authority’s 1993 Certificates of Participation
(COPS) in fiscal ycar 2005. On October 19, 2006, the Financing Authority issucd $5,125 of 2006
Lease Revenue Bonds (2006 Bonds) on behalf of the Santa Clara County. The bond proceeds were
used to provide additional financing for the renovation of an office building used by the Housing
Authority. The 2006 Bonds bear fixed interest rates of 5.00%, and are payable semi-annually
commencing September 1, 2008 and mature on September 1, 2038. The Housing Authority has
reported its lease obligations to the County as payable to primary government on its statement of net
asscts.

The Business-type Activities section of this note at (b) describes the governmental activities” portions
of the Financing Authority’s 1994, 1997, 1998, 2006, 2007 and 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds.

2006 Vector Control Certificates of Participation Series TT

During November 2006, the County issued 2006 Series TT Certificates of Participations in the
amount of 54,495 through California Special Districts Association Finance Corporation to finance the
acquisition of an office building. The Certificate of Participations bear fixed interest rates ranging
from 3.50% to 5.00%, and have a final maturity date of June 1, 2027.

Business-type Activities
SCYMC

The 1985 ACES Leasc Revenue Bonds were issucd to provide financing for the acquisition,
construction, and renovation of various SCVMC components, as previously described in the
Governmental Activities section of this note at (a).
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Financing Authority L.ease Revenue Bonds

1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A & B - On December 15, 1994, the Financing Authority issued
the 1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A and B. The proceeds financed the design, construction,
remodeling, and equipping of existing and new medical facilitics at the SCVMC. The County leascs
to and then leases back from the Financing Authority, the projects financed along with the real
property on which they are situated. Annual base rental payments from the County approximate the
bonds’ debt service requirements. If necessary, monies apportioned to the County in the State’s
Motor Vehicle License Fee Account can be used toward meeting the lease obligation.

Serics A, initially issued for $206,995, consists of scrial and tcrm bonds that can be redeemed carly at
specific dates at call rates varying from 100% to 102% of the face value of bonds maturing after
November 15, 2004. The 1994 Series A bonds are covered by indemnity insurance. The Series B
bonds, issued for $51,500, bear interest at variable rates set daily, weekly, semi-annually, or on a term
basis, as determined by the remarketing agent. Series B bonds also contain an early redemption
provision, allowcd at call ratcs of 100% of the bonds’ face value, plus accrucd intcrest. The 1994
Series B bonds are secured by an irrevocable letter of credit. The amount of the irrevocable letter of
credit, pursuant to a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank dated
November 1, 2000 is $52,126. On October 1, 1997, the Financing Authority issued lease revenue
bonds to advance refund and defease S146,975 of outstanding 1994 Lease Revenue Series A Bonds.

1997 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A and 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A - The Financing
Authority’s 1997 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A, issued for $188,405 on October 1, 1997, advance
refunded $146,975 of the 1994 Lease Revenue Series A Bonds and all $16,405 of outstanding debt
for the Public Facilities Corporation 1988 COPs. Debt payments on the 1997 Series A are insured by
a municipal bond insurance policy issued by AMBAC Assurance Corporation. On February 14,
2008, the Financing Authority issued $126,410 of 2008 Scrics A Lease Revenue Bonds on behalf of
the County and SCVMC to current refund a portion of outstanding 1997 Series A Lease Revenue
Bonds. 2008 Series A bonds net proceeds and amounts available from the refunded bonds were used
to establish a refunding escrow on the date of the issuance of the 2008 Series A bonds. The 1997
Series A bonds in the amount of $131,415 were redeemed on March 17, 2008 and have been removed
from the County’s basic financial statements. The refunding generated approximately $10,067 of
aggregate debt scrvice savings (net of available funds) and $7,677 of net cconomic gain. The 2008 A
bonds bear fixed interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%, and have a final maturity date of
November 15, 2022.

1998 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A - The 1998 Lease Revenue Bonds Series A, issued for $77,695
on Scptember 1, 1998, advance rcfunded and defcased all outstanding 1992 Certificates of
Participation (COPs). The issuance also prepaid a capital lease obligation and financed additional
facilities for the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District. Debt payments on the 1998
Bond Series A are insured by a municipal bond insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance
Corporation.
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2005 Lease Revenue Bonds Series E - On May 19, 2005, the County through the Financing
Authority issued lease revenue bonds 2005 Series E in the amount of $11,110. The bonds were
issucd to provide funds for the Valley Specialty Center. The 2005 Scrics E bonds, bear fixed interest
rates ranging from 4.00% to 4.50%, and have a final maturity date of May 15, 2011.

2006 Lease Revenue Bonds Series I and J - On March 2, 2006, the County through the Financing
Authority issued Lease Revenue Bonds 2006 Series 1 and 2006 Series J in the amount of $149,740
and $53,950, respectively. The bonds were issued to finance the construction costs of the County
Crime Laboratory Facilities, and the Valley Health Clinics at Fair Oaks and Gilroy; and seismic
retrofitting costs of Santa Clara Courthouse. The 2006 Series I bonds, bear fixed interest rates
ranging from 3.50% to 5.00%, and have a final maturity datc of May 15, 2031. Dcbt payments on the
2006 Bonds Series 1 are insured by a municipal bond insurance policy issued by AMBAC Assurance
Corporation. On May 27, 2008, the Series 2006 J bonds in the amount of $53,950 were redeemed
with the issuance of the 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series L.

2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series K - On August 15, 2007, the Financing Authority issued $93,540
of 2007 Series K Lease Revenue Bonds on behalf of the County and SCVMC. The bond proceeds
were used for (i) the acquisition, site preparation, construction, furnishing and equipping of the Fleet
Facility; (ii) the acquisition, site preparation, construction, furnishing and equipping of the Health
Clinic, including a nearby parking garage; and (iii) the seismic retrofitting of the Los Gatos
Courthouse and of the Hall of Justice — West. The 2007 Series K bonds bear fixed interest rates
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%, and havc a final maturity date of May 15, 2037.

2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series L - On May 22, 2008, the Financing Authority issued $112,840 of
2008 Secrics L Lease Revenue Bonds on behalf of the County and SCVMC to refund the County’s
outstanding 2003 Series D and 2005 Series H, and SCVMC’s outstanding 2006 Series J Lease
Revenue Bonds. 2008 Series L bonds net proceeds and amounts available from the refunded bonds
were used to establish refunding escrows on the date of the issuance of the 2008 Series L bonds. The
2003 Series D bonds, 2005 Series H bonds and 2006 Series J bonds were auction rate bonds secured
by financial guaranty insurancc policics issucd by Ambac Assurance Corporation.

The 2008 L bonds bear fixed interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%, and have a final maturity
date of May 15, 2036. The refunding of these auction rate bonds with fixed-rate bonds constitutes a
restructuring of the refunded bonds, which had been negatively impacted by the disruption in the
financial markets related to bond issuer downgrades by the ratings agencies.

2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series M - On May 29, 2008, the Financing Authority issued $143,105
of 2008 Series M Lease Revenue Bonds on behalf of the County and SCVMC. The bond proceeds
were used to refund the outstanding 2005 Series F and 2005 Series G Lease Revenue Bonds.

The 2008 Series M bonds net proceeds and amounts available from the refunded bonds were used to
establish refunding escrows on the date of the issuance of the 2008 Series M bonds. The 2005
Scrics F and 2005 Serics G bonds were auction ratc bonds sccured by financial guaranty insurance
policies issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation. The 2005 Series F and 2005 Series G bonds in the
amount of §71,025 and $71,025, respectively, were redeemed on June 4, 2008.
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The refunding of these auction rate bonds with another scrics of variable-ratc bonds constitutes a
restructuring of the refunded bonds, which had been negatively impacted by the disruption in the
financial markets related to bond issuer downgrades by the ratings agencies. The 2008
Series M bonds, which are supported by a direct line of credit with Bank of America, N.A., initially
bear variable interest based on the weekly interest rate as defined in the bond indenture and have a
final maturity date of May 15, 2035.

Interest Rate Swap Related to the 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series M

In May 2005, the County through the Financing Authority issued 2005 Series F and 2005 Series G
Lease Revenue Bonds (2005 Series F and G bonds) in the amount of $71,025 and $71,025,
respectively. The bonds were issued to provide funds for the Charcot Center, the Valley Specialty
Center and the Morgan Hill Courthouse.

In May 2008, the County through the Financing Authority issucd lease revenuce bonds 2008 Serics M
in the amount of $143,105 to fully refund the 2005 Series F and G in the total amount of S142,050.
The difference of principal amount between the 2008 Series M and the refunded 2005 Series F and G
bonds in the amount of $1,055 represents additional funding for the cost of issuance of 2008
Series M, and are scheduled to be repaid during fiscal year 2010 and 2011. The payment schedule for
the 2008 Series M starting fiscal year 2012 remains the same as the combined debt service schedule
for the refunded 2005 Serics F and G bonds.

Objective of the Interest Rate Swaps. As a mcans to lower its borrowing costs, when compared
against fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance in May 2005, the Financing Authority entered into
interest rate swap agreements with Citibank N.A. (“Citibank™) in connection with its $§71,025 Series F
and §71,025 Series G variable rate lease revenue bonds. The intention of the swaps was to effectively
change the Financing Authority’s variable interest rates on the 2005 Series F and G bonds to a
synthetic fixed rate of 3.185%. The Financing Authority continucd to hedge the 2008 Scrics M bonds
with the 2005 swap agreement.

Significant Terms. The bonds and related swap agreements both mature on May 15, 2035. The
swaps’ notional amount of $142,050 matches the $142,050 principal amount of the 2008 Series M
variable ratc bonds that maturc starting fiscal ycar 2012, Thc swaps were entered into at the same
time the bonds were issued in May 2005. Starting fiscal year 2012, the notional value of the swaps
declines as the principal amount of the associated debt begins to amortize. Under the swaps, the
Financing Authority pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 3.185% and receives a variable
payment computed as 56.5% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus 0.33%.

Fuair Value. The swaps had a combined aggregate negative fair value of $2,293 as of June 30, 2008.
Since coupons on the Financing Authority’s variable rate securities adjust to changing interest rates,
they do not have a corresponding fair value increase. The fair value is the net present value of the
swaps using market data and the terms of the swaps, which include the cxpectations of the probability
of occurrence of certain underlying events as defined in the swaps’ documentation.
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Credit Risk. The aggregate fair value of the swaps represented the Financing Authority’s credit
exposure to the counterparties as of June 30, 2008. Should the counterparties fail to perform
according to terms of the swap contracts, the Financing Authority faced a maximum possible loss
equivalent to the aggregate fair value of the swap. At June 30, 2008, the Financing Authority was not
exposed to credit risk because the swaps had a negative fair value of $2,293. To mitigate the
potential credit risk, the counterparties are required to post collateral, in the form of cash or federal
government securities, if their credit ratings for long-term unsecured debt obligations fall below “A”
by Moody’s Investors Scrvice or “A” by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Ratings. As of Junc 30, 2008,
Citibank’s ratings were Aal by Moody’s, AA by Standard and Poor’s, and AA- by Fitch Ratings.

Basis Risk. The swaps ¢xposc the Financing Authority to basis risk should the rclationship between
LIBOR and weekly auction rate vary, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. As a result of
changing basis between LIBOR and the rate on the Financing Authority’s bonds during the course of
the year, the synthetic fixed rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were 2.802% for 2008 Series
M.

Termination Risk. The Financing Authority or Citibank may terminate the swaps if the other party
fails to perform under the terms of the contract. The swaps may be terminated by the Financing
Authority if Citibank’s credit rating of long-term, unsecured, unenhanced senior debt obligations is
withdrawn, suspended or falls below “Baal” as determined by Moody’s Investors Service, or
“BBB+” as determined by Standard and Poor’s, or fail to have any rated long-term, unsecured,
unenhanced senior debt obligations. The swaps may be terminated by Citibank if the Financing
Authority’s rating of long-term, unsecured, unenhanced senior debt obligations or lease obligations of
the County is withdrawn, suspended or falls below “Baa3” as determined by Moody’s Investors
Service, or “BBB-" as determined by Standard and Poor’s, or the County fails to have any rated long-
term, unsccurcd, uncnhanced scnior debt obligations or Icasc obligations.

Market-Access Risk. Market-access risk is the risk that a government will not be able to enter credit
markets or that ¢redit will become more costly. The ability to sell auction rate sccuritics in an auction
may be adversely affected if there are not sufficient buyers willing to purchase all the auction rate
securities at a rate equal to or less than the ARS maximum rate. In the event of failed auctions, the
bonds may default to higher interest rates as defined in the bonds’ official statements.
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Swap Payments and Associated Debt Service Payments. Using rates as of June 30, 2008, debt
service requirements of the 2008 Series M bonds and net swap payments, assuming current interest
ratcs remain the same for the term, were as follows. As rates vary, variable ratc bond intcrest
payments and net swap payments will vary.

Variable Net Swap Total
Fiscal Year Principal (1) Interest(2) Interest (3) Interest
FY 2009 $ - S 1,918 $ 2,063 % 3,981
FY 2010 - 1,918 2,063 3,981
FY 2011 - 1,918 2,063 3,981
FY 2012 3,950 1,913 2,058 3,971
FY 2013 4,150 1,860 2,001 3,861
FY 2014 -2018 22,900 8,416 9,054 17,470
FY 2019 - 2023 26,775 6,764 7,277 14,041
FY 2024 - 2028 31,275 4,835 5,202 10,037
FY 2029 - 2033 36,650 2,578 2,774 5,352
FY 2034 - 2035 16,350 314 338 652

$ 142,050 § 32,434 % 34,893 § 67,327

O Principal payment amounts presented in the above schedule excluded the non-swap related principal payments for
2008 Series M in the amount of $520 and $535 due on May 15, 2010 and May 15, 2011, respectively.

@ Variable interest on the 2008 Series M is estimated using interest rate at June 30, 2008 of 1.35%.

& Net swap interest on the 2008 Series M is estimated using USD-LIBOR-BBA rate at June 30, 2008 of 2.483%. Net
swap intcrest at Junc 30, 2008 is calculated as follows: 3.185% minus (2.483% * 56.5% + 0.33%) cquals to 1.452%.

Division of the Lease Revenue Bonds

The division of the lease revenue bonds between the governmental activities and the SCVMC is based
on the usage of bond proceeds by the governmental activitics and business-type activitics (SCYMC)

as follows:
Governmental Business-type
Lease Revenue Bonds: Activities Activities
1985 ACES 15.9% 84.1%
1994 Series A and B 1.4% 98.6%
1997 Series A 9.3% 90.7%
1998 Series A 83.1% 16.9%
2006 Series T 58.5% 41.5%
2007 Series K 24.2% 75.8%
2008 Series A 4.4% 95.6%
2008 Series L 53.0% 47.0%
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(c)

Airport

On July 1, 2003, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) issued Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002-1 in the amount of $13,370. These bonds were issued to finance or refinance certain
capital improvements within their geographical boundaries. On June 4, 2002, the County Board of
Supervisors approved a resolution to enter into a lease agreement with ABAG for $6,780 of this debt
via a lease/leaseback arrangement of one or more properties to ABAG. The proceeds of the debt
provided financing for the acquisition, construction, and renovation of certain new capital
improvements in the Reid Hillview Airport as well as for sccurity at the County’s airports.

Repayment Requirements

As of June 30, 2008, the debt service requirements to maturity and the fund types from which
principal payments will be made arc as follows, ¢xcluding accrucd vacation and sick Icave, accrucd
litigation liability, insurance claims payable and capital leases obligations.

Governmental Activities

Lease Tobacco Securtization Certificates of Taxable Pension
Fiscal year ending Revenue Bonds (1) Assct-Backed Bonds Participation Funding Bonds
June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal [nierest Principal Interest
2009 § 15079 § 13,324 S - h - 5 150 S 197 3 310 $ 18074
2010 15,772 12,700 - - 160 190 1,130 18,035
2011 16,975 11,993 - - 165 184 2,020 17,950
2012 18,147 11,212 - - 170 179 2,990 17,812
2013 13,323 10,376 - - 175 173 4,040 17,617
2014-2018 68,1135 41,732 - - 985 738 21,448 100,709
2019-2023 38,613 30,501 - - 1,240 500 27,805 120,376
2024-2028 47,485 20,800 - - 1,230 138 30,717 148,010
2029-2033 44,790 9,086 - - - - 120,240 94,311
2034-2038 11,855 1,454 43,604 178,571 - - 178,785 22,798
2039-2043 510 13 11,339 66,321 - - - -
2044-2048 - - 18,025 158,675 - - - -
2049-2053 - - - - - - - -
20)34-2056 - - 29,062 648,788 - - - -
Toral $ 290,664 § 163,191 5 102,030 $ 1,052,355 5 4,275 S 2,339 $ 389,485 $ 575,692

W Variable interest on the 1985 ACES Lease Revenue Bonds, the 1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B, the 2004 Lease
Revenue Bonds Series A, and the 2008 Lease Revenue Bonds Series M are estimated using interest rate
at June 30, 2008 of 1.35%, 1.35%, 1.33%, and 1.35%, respectively.

Lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation retirement and related interest payments are
serviced by revenues generated from lease payments made by the General Fund on leased facilities.
Tobacco sccuritization assct-backed bonds arc serviced by future tobacco scttlement revenucs made
by participating cigarette manufacturers. Taxable pension funding bonds are serviced by future
charges to County departments. In addition, accrued vacation and sick leave, accrued litigation
liability, insurance claims payable and capital leases are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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(d)

(e)

Business-type Activities

SCVMC Airport

Fiscal year ending Lease Revenue Bonds (1) Lease Revenue Bonds
June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 S 17,486 S 21,322 S 155 S 264
2010 18,923 20,527 160 259
2011 21,525 19,657 160 252
2012 21,938 18,662 170 246
2013 22,602 17,743 180 239
2014-2018 109,935 76,885 895 1,071
2019-2023 122,272 54,842 1,000 853
2024-2028 112,270 35,302 1,270 570
2029-2033 85,339 23,988 1,620 210
2034-2037 66,810 6,067 - -
Total S 599,100 S 294,995 S 5,610 S 3,964

t Variable interest on the 1985 ACES Lease Revenue Bonds, the 1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B, and the 2008

Lease Revenue Bonds Series M are estimated using interest rate at June 30, 2008 of 1.35%, 1.35%, and 1.35%,
respectively.

Business-type Activities lease revenue bonds retirements and related interest payments are serviced
by revenues generated by the SCVMC and the Airport.

Legal Debt Margin

As of June 30, 2008, the County’s legal debt limit (1.25% of the total assessed secured valuation) was
$3.54 billion. At June 30, 2008, the County did not have any debt applicable to the limit outstanding.

Arbitrage Rebate Payable

Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code requires issuers of most types of tax-exempt bonds to
rebate investment earnings in excess of bond yield to the federal government in installment payments
made at least once every five years, with the final installment made when the last bond in the issue is
rcdcemed. The following bond issucs arc subjcct to this requircment:

1994 Lease Revenue Bonds Series B

2003 Lecasc Revenue Bonds Scrics C & D
2005 Lease Revenue Bonds Series E,F, G & H
2007 Lease Revenue Bonds Series K

2008 Leasc Revenue Bonds Scrics A & M

A consulting firm calculates annual computation of all rebate requirements. Amounts in excess of
allowable investment carnings arc held pursuant to the Trust Indenturcs. At Junce 30, 2008, arbitrage
rcbate payable in the amount of $945 has been accrued in the government-wide statements —
governmental activities under the “Due to other governmental agencies” financial statement caption,
while $3,379 has been accrued in the government-wide statements — business-type activities and the
SCVMC enterprise fund under the “Due to other governmental agencies” financial statement caption.
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()  Housing Authority Long-term Obligations

Outstanding long-term obligations for the Housing Authority consisted of the following:

Interest Principal Onginal Issue  Outstanding at
Type of indebtedness (purpose) Maturity Rates Installments Amount June 30, 2008
Notes payable:
City of San Josc (Lucretia Gardents) 8/1/2038 0.00% 4 % 1,114 % 1,041
City of San Jose (Julian Gardens) 8/1/2038 0.00% 4) 319 262
Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Santa Clara (Deborah & Miramer) 4/17/2036 0.00% %) 270 270
Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Morgan Hill 6/15/2021 1.00% 4 425 425
County of Santa Clara (San Pedro Gardens) 11/30/2012 0.00% 3fyear 50 12
City of San Jose (Morrone Gardens) 9/23/2024 4.00% 4) 973 973
Comerica (Julian Office Renovations) 12/30/2012 Prime minus 1.25% 33/month 2.000 1,800
5,151 4,783
Bonds payable:
Affordable Housing Agency 10/1/2024 3.00% - 4.95% 180-335 4,550 3.895
Bracher HDC, Inc.
Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Santa Clara (principal) /172033 2.00% 4) 1,246 1,246
Accrued interest - 101
1,246 1,347
SPG Housing, Inc.
Citibank Mortgage #1 10/1/2026 8.79% (n 919 877
Citibank Mortgage #2 12/1/2022 3.75% (1 337 230
California DHCD (principal) 1/1/2047 3.00% 4) 1,490 1,490
City of San Jose (principal) 12/1/2020 8.00% (4) 1,400 1,400
Accrued interest - 670
4,146 4,667
Villa Gareia, Inc.
HUD Flexible Subsidy Notes 117172022 1.00% (€)) 1416 1,416
GMAC Commercial Mortgage 11712022 7.00% (N 1,254 386
County ot Santa Clara (principal) 6/24/2012 3.00% 4) 100 100
City of San Josc (principal} 4/1/2022 3.00% 2) 514 514
Accrued interest - 260
3,284 2,676
Vifla San Pedro HDC, Inc.
At sale or 4
HUD Flexible Subsidy Note refinancing 0.00% 800 800
HUD Mortgage 2/1/2012 3.00% (1) 1,209 250
California Department of Housing and
Community Development (DHCD) (principal) 5/1/2037 3.00% 4) 4,157 4,157
City of San Jose (principal) 9/1/204] 3.00% 3) 692 679
Accrued interest - 1,05¢
6,858 6,930
Rotary Plaza/HACSC, HDC, Inc
County of Santa Clara Note (principal) 5/29/2033 6.00% 4 95 95
Accrued interest - 26
95 121
$ 25330 % 24,425

Total Housing Authority

8]
2
&)

4

Monthly amortization
25% ot Net Cash Flow
Deferred for 21 years

Deferred until maturity
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The debt service requirements to maturity for the Housing Authority long-term obligations arc as
follows, excluding accrued vacation and sick leave and other payables:

Notes Payable

(1

Bonds Payable

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 403 S 104 $ 180§ 171
2010 403 89 185 166
2011 403 74 190 160
2012 402 59 195 154
2013 202 31 205 14%
2014-2018 - 216 1,150 377
2019-2023 425 207 1,455 298
2024-2028 973 9 335 16
2029-2033 - - - -
2034-2038 270

2039 1,302

Total $ 4,783 S 309 $ 3,895 % 1,690

()

The Comerica note payable bears interest at a rate of prime minus 1.25% and 1s at 3.75% at June 30, 2008.

The debt service requirements to maturity for the Housing Authority’s component unit’s long-term

obligations are as follows, excluding HUD flexible subsidy notes and accrued interest:

Fiscal year ending Bracher 11DC, Inc.

SPG Housing, Inc.

Villa Garcia, Inc.

December 31: Principal Interest Principal Inierest Principal

2008 $ - $ - b 35 % 72 ) 8l % 29
2009 - - 37 71 87 23
2010 - - 40 69 95 15
2011 - - 42 68 104 6
2012 - - 44 66 118 -
2013-2017 - - 268 302 - -
2018-2022 - - 1,765 240 514

2023-2027 - - 276 38 - -
2028-2032 - - - - - -
2033-2037 1,246 - - - - -
2038-2042 - - - - -

2043-2047 - - 1,490 - - -
Total $ 1,246 $ - $ 3,997 % 926 S 999 § 73

Fiscal year ending Villa San Pedro, Inc.

Rotary Plaza, Inc.

December 31: Principal Interest Principal Interest

2008 3 59 % 7 $ - $ -
2009 60 5 - -
2010 62 3 - -
2011 64 1 - -
2012 5 - - -
2013-2017 - - - -
2018-2022 - - - -
2023-2027 - - - -
2028-2032 - - - -
2033-2037 4.157 - 95 -
2038-2042 679 - - -
Total 3 5086 % 16 $ 95 $ -
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Hospital Program Revenues

(a)

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party paycrs, and others for scrvices rendered at the SCVMC, including cstimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers (contractual allowances) and
allowances for the uncollectible portion of patient service revenues (bad debts provision).

Net paticnt scrvice revenues are calculated for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 as follows:

Patient service revenues $ 2,198,227
Contractual allowances (1,441,896)
Bad debts provision (29,270)
Net patient service revenues $ 727,061

Differences between final settlements with third-party payers and the estimate originally recorded are
included in operations in the year in which the settlement amounts become known.

A substantial portion of SCVMC’s net patient service revenue is derived from services provided to
patients eligible for benefits under the Medi-Cal and Medicare programs. Revenue from the Medi-
Cal and Medicare programs represents approximately 57% of net patient service revenue {(excluding
the cffects of bad debts provision) for the fiscal yecar ended Junc 30, 2008. Revenuc from the
Medicare program represents approximately 14% of net patient service revenue (excluding the effects
of bad debts provision) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Reimbursement for services provided
under these programs is currently based on various contractual arrangements (see Note 13(c)).

California’s Medi-Cal Hospital/Uninsured Care Demonstration Project (“Demonstration™) is a system
for paying sclected hospitals for hospital carc provided to Medi-Cal and uninsured patients initiated in
fiscal year 2006. The Demonstration was negotiated between the State of California’s Department of
Health Services (“SDHS”) and the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) in
2005, and covers the period from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2010. The five-year Demonstration affects
payments for 23 public hospitals, including all University of California owned hospitals, identified as
Designated Public Hospitals, and private and non-designated public safety net hospitals that serve
large numbers of Mcdi-Cal paticnts, The Medicaid Demonstration restructures inpatient hospital foe-
for-service (FFS) payments and Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) payments, as well as the
financing method by which the State draws down federal matching funds. Under the Demonstration,
payments for the public hospitals are comprised of: 1)} FES cost-based reimbursement for inpatient
hospital services (exclusive of physician component); 2) DSH payments; and 3) distribution from a
ncwly created pool of federal funding for uninsured care, known as the Safety Net Care Pool (SNCP),
which is capped at $586 million for FY 2005-06. The nonfederal share of these three types of
payments will be provided by the public hospitals rather than the State, primarily through certified
public expenditures (CPE) whereby the hospital would expend its local funding for services to draw
down the federal financial participation (FFP), currently provided at a 50% match. For the inpatient
hospital cost-based reimbursement, each hospital will provide its own CPE and receive all of the
resulting federal match, For the DSH and SNCP distributions, the CPEs of all the public hospitals
will be used in the aggregate to draw down the federal match.
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(b)

(¢

The Demonstration authorized the State of California to create a health Care Coverage Initiative in
ten selected counties during FY 2007-08 through FY 2009-10 to expand health care coverage for
eligible low-income, uninsured individuals using an $180 million annual allotment of federal funds
from the SNCP. Selected counties certify their public expenditures to claim federal funding to
reimburse their health care services costs. The selected counties also will receive federal
reimbursement for administrative costs associated with the implementation and ongoing
administration of the coverage initiative programs. This funding is separate from the SNCP funding
that is available. Senate Bill 1448, passed in July 2006, implements the Health Care Coverage. The
County submitted a proposal to participate in the Coverage Initiative under a program it named
Valley Care. The Valley Care Program will provide comprehensive primary and preventive health
care to enrollees with incomes at or below 200 percent of the federal poverty level. The County’s
proposal was selected for participation in April 2007. The County’s allocation is $20,700 annually
during the period of September 1, 2007 to August 31, 2010.

Capital Contributions

SB1732 provides qualifying hospitals reimbursement for a portion of the debt service of qualified
capital projects, in addition to their Medi-Cal contract reimbursement. SB1732 revenues are
classified as capital contributions for GAAP reporting purposes.

Charity Care

The SCVMC has a policy for providing charity care to patients who are otherwise unable to afford
health care services. Generally, charity care recipients are those patients for which an indigency
standard has been cstablished and for which the patient qualifics. Inability to pay may be determined
through an interview process by the SCVMC, by the Department of Revenue, or by an outside
collection agency. Determination of charity care status may be made prior to or at the time of service,
or any time thereafter. The total amount of such charity care provided by the SCVMC for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008, based on the cost incurred to perform these services, is as follows:

Charity care, at cost $ 133,492
Percentage of operating expenses 15%

Charity care at cost is calculated excluding the impact of other revenue received listed above.

(10) Net Assets/Fund Balances

(@)

Net Assets Classifications

The government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements utilize a net asset presentation. Net
assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted and unrestricted.

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets
reduce the balance in this category.
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(10) Net Assets/Fund Balances (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Restricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets with external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted net assets include
restrictions for capital facilities, debt service, housing programs, roads and other purposes.

Unrestricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets of the County not restricted for any
project or purpose.

In the fund financial statements, reserves and designations segregate portions of fund balance that are
either not available or have been earmarked for specific purposes. The reserves and designations are
cstablished by actions of the Board and management and can be increased, reduced or climinated by
similar actions.

Fund Balances Classifications

As of June 30, 2008, reservations of fund balance included:

Encumbrances, Inventories, and Other Assets — These reservations indicate the portion of fund
balance which is unavailable for appropriation, or amounts legally segregated for a specific future
use.

Debt Service — These reservations indicate fund balance reserved for debt service represents
resources legally restricted for the retirement of long-term debt.

Portions of unreserved fund balance may be designated to indicate tentative plans for financial
resource utilization in a future period, such as for support of the SCVMC or gencral contingenceics.
Such plans or intent are subject to change and have not been legally authorized or may not result in
expenditures. Unreserved fund balances for governmental funds are comprised of the following:

General Nonmajor Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

Designated for:
SCVMC $ 240,310 $ - $ 240,310
Measure B program 13,054 - 13,054
Litigation 3,000 - 3,000
Fiduciary activities/contingencies 13,550 - 13,550
Roads - 12,733 12,733
County Library - 10,547 10,547
Housing and Community Development - 100 1060
Firc Districts - 930 930
Environment Health - 5,434 5,434
Vector Control - 6,790 6,790
QOther 54,798 - 54,798
Undesignated 109,734 269,793 379,527
Total $ 434.44¢6 $ 306,327 $ 740,773

Restatements of Net Assets/Fund Balances

The County Sanitation District 2 - 3 is responsible for collecting, processing and disposal of sewage
for the County. During the current fiscal year, the County Sanitation District evaluated its
proportionate share of costs for operations, maintenances, and construction of joint use sewer lines
and the valuation of capital assets and restated its June 30, 2007 net assets balance and related
balanccs in the amount of $237 to reflect the change in associated costs.
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(10) Net Assets/Fund Balances (Continued)

SPG Housing, Inc., a discrete component unit of the Housing Authority, serves as the general partner
of San Pcdro Gardens Associates, Ltd., (SPGA). SPGA is a limited partncrship formed to develop
and operate a 20-unit affordable housing complex located in Morgan Hill, California. On
September 30, 2007, the limited partner of SPGA assigned its limited partnership interest to the
Housing Authority. As a result, SPG Housing, Inc. restated its beginning net assets in the amount of
($531) at December 31, 2006 to consolidate the Authority’s limited partnership’s interest with SPG
Housing, Inc.’s financial statcments.

(11) Employee Benefit Plans

(a)

California Public Employees’ Retirement System — County
Plan Description

All eligible County employees participate in the State’s Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS). The County participates in four plans with PERS. Two plans (Miscellaneous and Safety)
cover the Santa Clara County Central Fire District (Central Fire) and two plans (Miscellaneous and
Safcty) cover all remaining cligible County ecmployces. PERS provides retirement, disability, and
death benefits based on the employees’ years of service, age and final compensation. Employees vest
after five years of PERS-credited service and they are eligible for service retirement if they are 50
years old or over and have at least 5 years of PERS-credited service. These provisions and all other
requirements are established by State statute and County resolutions. Copies of PERS’ annual
financial report may be obtained from their executive office at 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California
95814, A scparate report for the County’s plan in PERS is not available.

Effective with the June 30, 2003 valuation, PERS converted the Central Fire’s Miscellaneous
employees’ defined benefit retirement plan from an agent multiple-employer to a cost sharing
multiple-employer. The Central Fire’s Miscellaneous employees’ retirement plan is under the PERS
Miscellancous 2% at 55 Risk Pool. The County employces plans (Miscellancous and Safcty) and the
Central Fire Safety employees plan are agent multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plans.
PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for various local and state governmental
agencies within the state.

Funding Policy

The contribution requircments of plan members and the County are established and may be amended
by PERS. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate or prepay a
discounted annual required contribution between July 1 and July 15. At June 30, 2008, all County
employee participants are also required to contribute 8% (9% for Safety employees) of their annual
covered salary. During the fiscal year, the County and its Miscellancous employees entered into a
contract amendment cnhancing the County’s and Central Fire’s Miscellancous ecmployces retirement
formula from 2% at 55 to 2.5% at 55. As a result, the Miscellaneous employees’ contribution rate
increased from 7% to 8% of their annual covered salary during fiscal year 2007-08. The County
made 76.9% of the employees’ required payroll contributions for fiscal year 2008.
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Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

In May 2005, PERS agreed to restructure the County’s pension contribution for the 2004-05 fiscal
year-end and defer $35 million of the scheduled payment. Since May 2005, interest has accrued and
was added to the liability balance. In fiscal year 2007-08, the County issucd taxable pension funding
bonds in order to refinance this obligation and to prepay other amounts arising as a result of enhanced
retirement benefits accruing to County employees totaling $386,602. This resulted in a net pension
asset in the amount of $350,482 at June 30, 2008. The County’s net pension asset is recorded in the
Pension Obligation Internal Service Fund and the government-wide statements-governmental
activitics.

After applying the pension obligation bonds to the respective County plans, the County’s recomputed
employer contributions is $149,147 for fiscal year 2007-08. In July 2007, the County elected to
prepay the annual employer share of the retirement contribution in the amount of $143,683. The
prepayment reduced the County’s actuarially determined contribution required by $5,464. In
addition, the mid-year contract amendment brought about an incrcase in the employer contribution
rates by 2.761% of the Miscellaneous employees’ covered salary. As part of the County’s collective
bargaining process, the County’s Miscellaneous employees agreed to pay the increased employer
required contributions or $16,773 for the year ended June 30, 2008.

The County’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 comprised as follows:

County County County
Miscellaneous Safety Total
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability payment § 289,952 $ 96,651 $ 386,602
Annual prepayment option 109,119 34,564 143,683
Employees enhancement contribution 16,773 - 16,773
Employer contributions made $ 415,844 $ 131,215 $ 547,058

The Central Fire’s fiscal year 2008 required contributions as a percentage of annual covered payrolls
were as follows:

Employcr Employcc
Central Fire Miscellaneous Plan
7/1/07 - 11/18/07 13.680% 7.000%
11/19/07 - 6/30/08 19.500% 8.000%
Central Fire Safety Plan
7/1/07 - 6/30/08 26.584% 9.000%
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Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

Annual Pension Costs

The required contributions were determined as part of the June 30, 2005 actuarial valuations using a
modification of the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method. The actuarial assumptions includes:
(a) a rate of return on investments of 7.75%; (b) inflation of 3.00%; and (¢) projected salary increases
of 3.25% to 14.45% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment. The actuarial value of the
pension plan’s assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility
in the market value of investments. PERS’ unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as
a level percentage of projected payrolls on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period as of
June 30, 2005 is as follows:

County Central Fire
Miscellancous Plan 30 years 17 years
Safety Plan 30 years 32 years

The County’s changes in net pension obligation (asset) for the year ended June 30, 2008, were as
follows:

Annual required contribution 5 160,456
Interest on beginning net pension obligation 1,545
Interest on net pension asset (26,693)
Amortization of net pension asset 20,633
Annual pension cost 155,941
Contributions madc 547,058
Change in net pension obligation (391,117)
Nct pension obligation, beginning of yecar 40,635
Net pension asset, end of year $ (350,482)

Three-year trend information for the County (excluding the Central Fire) is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Obligation
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed (Asset)
6/30/2008 $ 155,941 351% $ (350,482)
6/30/2007 168,980 98% 40,635
6/30/2006 153,803 98% 37,712

Three-year trend information for the Central Fire Miscellaneous Plan is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Obligation
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed {Asset)
6/30/2008 $ 7,372 100% $ -
6/30/2007 7,460 100% -
6/30/20006 8,810 100% -
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(11)  Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Summary of funding progress are as follows:

County County Central Fire
Miscellaneous Safety Safety
Plan Plan Plan

Actuarial valuation date 6/30/07 6/30/07 6/30/06
Actuarial assct valuc $ 4,072,831 $ 1,213,321 $ 240,522
Actuarial accrued hability - entry age 4,972,306 1,492,398 284,246
Unfunded actuarial accrued hability (UAAL) $ 899,475 $ 279,077 $ 43,724
Funded ratio 81.9% 81.3% 84.6%
Covered payroll $ 1,076,476 $ 164,100 3 24,204
UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 83.6% 170.1% 180.6%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Housing Authority of the County of Santa Clara Retirement Plan & Trust

The Authority participates in and administers a defined contribution retirement plan (Housing
Authority of the County of Santa Clara Retirement Plan & Trust (the Plan)). All rcgular cmployees
of the Authority with more than six months of service participate in the plan. The Authority makes
monthly contributions of 6 - 12% on all qualified employees’ gross salary at July 1 and January 1.
The Plan, which had 288 participants, had ending cash value of $16,371 at June 30, 2008. Employer
contributions are vested 20% for each year of service of the individual employee until the employee
becomes fully vested. During the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2008, the Authority contributed $1,176
to the Plan. At June 30, 2008, 124 cmployces had loans outstanding to the Plan in the amount of
$1,278.

First 5 Santa Clara County IRC 401(a) Plan

In November 2001, First 5°s board approved the implementation of an Internal Revenue Code (IRC)
Section 401(a) retirement plan (the Plan) effective January 1, 2002 for all First 5 employees. The Plan
is a defined contribution plan administered by the Unified Trust Company. The Plan is open to all
employees, excluding temporary employees who work less than 20 hours per week. Currently,
46 employees are enrolled in the Plan. The Plan provides retirement benefits based on the employee's
salary and years of service.

The Plan requires employer contributions of 7% of employees' annual salaries and wages. Employees
vest 100% after three years of employment service. Employer contributions were S222 for the year
ended June 30, 2008. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Commission arc
established by and may be amended by the Unified Trust Company.
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(11) Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

(d)

Postretirement Health Care Benefits — County
Plan Description

The County’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan provides healthcare benefits to eligible
County (excluding Central Fire and Housing Authority) employees and their surviving spouse.
Central Fire and Housing Authorities employees have separate defined benefit postemployment
healthcare plans. All County employees hired prior to August 12, 1996, with at least five years of
service after attaining age 50 arc covered under the County’s Retiree Health Carc Program upon
retirement. For employees hired after August 12, 1996 and on or before June 18, 2006, the eligibility
requircments were increased to a minimum of cight years of scrvice after attaining age 50. For
cmployces hired after June 19, 2006, the cligibility requirements were increased to a minimum of tcn
years of service after attaining age 50. For all of the above, employees must retire from PERS
directly from County.

The County participates in the California Employers’® Retiree Benefit Trust Fund Program (CERBT),
an agent-multiple employer postemployment health plan, to fund other postemployment bencfits
through PERS. Copies of PERS” annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office
at 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95814. A separate report for the County’s plan in CERBT is
not available.

Funding Policy

The County is required to contribute the ARC, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The current ARC rate is 11.2
pereent of annual covered payroll.

The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and may be amended
by the Board. As of June 30, 2008, the County contributed 5125328, or 100%, of the annual
required contribution (ARC). Of the total amount, the County deposited $79,981 to the CERBT and
paid $45,347 through healthcare premium payments during the year.

Annual OPEB Cost

As of June 30, 2008, the County’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expense of $125,328
was equal to the ARC. The following table represents annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the net OPEB obligation.

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed ~ Obligation
6/30/2008 $ 125,328 100% $ -

The actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2007 and was used to determine the ARC for

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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(11) Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded status of the plan was as

follows:
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 1,261,402
Actuarial value of plan asscts -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 1,261,402
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assests/AAL) 0.0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 1,119,488
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 112.7%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve cstimates of the valuc of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of certain events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
ncw cstimates arc made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statcments, presents current year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actunarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided as the
time of cach valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal (EAN) actuarial cost method was used.
The EAN method is designed to spread the cost of benefits as a level percentage of pay over an
employee’s career. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized over a period of 30 years as
a lcvel pereentage of payroll on an open basis. This methodology provides the lowest annual cxpense
permitted under GASB Statement No. 45, but the amortization amount calculated is not sufficient to
cover interest on the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.75
percent investment rate of return, a 3.25 percent payroll growth, and an annual healthcare cost trend
rate of 10.0 percent initially, reduced by 1.0 percent increments to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent by

the year 2012-2013.
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(11) Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

(e)

Postretirement Health Care Benefits — Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District

The Central Fire maintains a separate OPEB plan and reported a net OPEB obligation of SO as of June
30, 2008. Per its most recent actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2008, the Central Fire OPEB plan was
0% funded and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was $165,398. Details of the Central Fire’s
OPEB plan may be found in its financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The report
may be obtained by writing to the Santa Clara County Central Firc Protection District at 14700
Winchester Boulevard, Los Gatos, CA 95032.

Postretirement Health Care Benefits — Housing Authority

The Housing Authority maintains a separate OPEB plan and reported a net OPEB obligation of $609
as of June 30, 2008. Per its most rccent actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2008, the Housing Authority
OPEB plan was 12% funded and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was $5,441. Details of the
Housing Authority’s OPEB plan may be found in its financial report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. The report may be obtained by writing to the Housing Authority of the County of
Santa Clara at 100 Great Oaks Blvd., 2" Floor, San Jose, CA 95119.

(12) Risk Management

The County is cxposed to various risks of loss related to torts; medical malpractice; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters; unemployment;
and hcalth benefits to employces and retirees.  The County is sclf-insured for its general liability,
workers’ compensation, unemployment, basic life insurance, dental, medical malpractice liability, and
automobile liability. The County has chosen to establish risk financing internal service funds where
assets are set aside for claim settlements associated with the above risks of loss up to certain limits.
Excess coverage is provided by the California State Association of Counties’ Excess Insurance Authority
(Authority), a joint powcrs authority, whose purposc is to develop and fund programs of cxcess insurance
and provide the joint purchase of coverage from independent third parties for its member entities. The
Authority is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of representatives of its member entities.
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(12) Risk Management (Continued)

Sclf-insurance and Insurance Authority limits arc as follows:

Type of Coverage

Self-Insurance
(per occurrence)

Sclf-Retained "

Purchase
Insurance Policies
(pcr occurrence)

Automobile Up to $2,000 $8,068 per occurrence 335,000

General Liability Up to $2,000 $8,068 per occurrence $35,000

Medical Malpractice Up to §500 $1,500 per occurrence $25,000

Workers' Compensation  Up to $4,000 $1,000 per occurrence $300,000

Property Damage Up to $50 $3.000 per occurrence Up to $1,800,000
(This is deductible) $8,000 aggregate

Earthquake 5% of property value Up to $430,000 @
$100 minimum deductible

Airport Up to §1 $30,000

Crime Bond Up to $25 $10,000

Pollution Up to $500 $10,000

D The self-retained layer is required by the insurance company and acts as an additional amount to pay claims before a loss

is paid by the insurance company. This self-retained layer is contributed by the member entities and remains their assets.
Once the sclf-retained layer is cxhausted, the insurance company pays all claims above the County’s sclf-insurance
amount. Any funds left in the sclf-retained layer can be used to fund self-retained amounts in future ycars.
(2)
3)

)]

Deductible for the Fairgrounds is $5 per occurrence. All propertics arc insured at full replacement value.
Insured values are split between 3 schedules with limits of $600,000 each for a total of $1,800.000.

Insured values are split between 3 schedules with limits of $60,000 each, plus a rooftop of $250,000, for a total of
$430,000.

There have been no settlement amounts exceeding commercial or Insurance Authority insurance coverage
since self-insurance was introduced in 1978,

It is the County’s practice to obtain full actuarial studies annually for the self-insured automobile liability,
general liability, medical malpractice, and workers’ compensation liability issues. The unpaid claims
liabilities included in the sclf-insurance internal service funds for these risks arc based on the results of
actuarial studies and include amounts for claims incurred but not reported and loss adjustment expenses.
Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends,
including frequency and amount of payouts, and other economic and social factors.

The County annually changes its interest rate for estimating its liability for General, Automobile and
Medical Malpractice to approximate the current investment rate of return. In the current year,
management used actuarial estimates based on the expected value discounted at 3.5% for General and
Automobile and Medical Malpractice claims. In addition, the workers’ compensation liability is
discounted at 5.0%.
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(12) Risk Management (Continued)

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years ended June 30 for all self-
insurance internal service funds combinced arc as follows:

2008 2007
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 102,432 $ 104,046
Incurred claims and changes in estimate 56,875 46,911
Claim payments (52,674) (48,525)
Unpaid claims, end of year $ 106,633 § 102432

Annual premiums are charged by each self-insurance fund using various allocation methods that include
actual costs, trends in claims experience, and number of participants. Premiums paid by the Insurance

Fund totaled $11,510 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
(13) Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Commitments
The County has various noncancclable opcerating lcases primarily for office space and cquipment

(accounted for principally in the General Fund). Approximate future minimum operating lease
commitments are as follows:

Governmental Business-type

Fiscal year ending June 30, Activities Activities Total

2009 $ 38,814 $ 7,920 $ 46,734
2010 38,419 7,964 46,383
2011 38,906 8,166 47,072
2012 40,022 8,477 48,499
2013 40,799 8,798 49,597
2014-2018 101,175 4,926 106,101
2019-2023 81,737 - 81,737
2024-2028 3,243 - 3,243
Total 3 383,115 Yy 46,251 $ 429,366

Rent expense for fiscal year 2008 was approximately $44,557 and S7,470 for the governmental
activities and business-type activities, respectively.
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(13) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

(b)

(¢

The County also leases various properties to business and other governmental agencies (accounted for
principally in the General Fund). The future minimum payments to be received are as follows:

Governmental Business-type

Fiscal year ending June 30, Activities Activities Total

2009 $ 4,172 $ 482 $ 4,654
2010 3,537 86 3,623
2011 3,630 88 3,718
2012 3,716 90 3,806
2013 3,805 92 3,897
2014-2018 19,672 486 20,158
2019-2023 20,256 262 20,518
2024-2028 9,528 - 9,528
Total $ 68,316 $ 1,586 3 69.902

Rent income for fiscal year 2008 was approximately $5,416 and $2,876 for the governmental
activities and business-type activities, respectively.

Litigation

The County accounts for claims in the internal service funds and the General Fund. As of
June 30, 2008, the County had accrued amounts which management believes are adequate to provide
for claims and litigation, which arose during the normal course of activities. There are other
outstanding claims and litigation for which County management believes the ultimate outcome of
these claims and litigation will not significantly impact the County’s financial position.

Patient Service Revenue and Receivables

The SCVMC grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are local residents and are
insurcd under third-party payer agreements. Net paticnt scrvice revenuc is reported at cstimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others for services rendered and include
estimated retroactive revenue adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations.
Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered, and such amounts are adjusted in future periods as
adjustments become known or as years are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, or
mvestigations.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are extremely complex and
subject to interpretation. As a result there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term. The SCVMC’s Medicare and Medi-Cal cost
rcports have been audited by the fiscal intermediary through Junc 30, 2002 and Junc 30, 2004,
rcspectively. As such, the cost reports for certain other prior years arc in various stages of review by
third-party intermediarics and have not been settled as a result of certain unresolved reimbursement
issues. The County believes it has adequately provided for any potential liabilities that may arise
from the intermediaries’ audits.
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(13) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Net receivables from patients and third-party pavers at June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows:

Medicare $ 23,773
Medi-Cal 71,287
Insurance and other third-party payers 34,503
Private patients 2,005

Total $ 131,568

Seismic Safety Building Standards

The County is affected by State of California Senate Bill 1953 (SB 1953), which requires certain
scismic safcty building standards for acute carc hospital facilitics. SCVMC has revicwed the SB 1953
compliance requirements and developed multiple plans of action to achieve such compliance, the
estimated time frame for complying with such requirements, and the cost of performing necessary
remediation of certain of the properties. SCVMC estimates the total remediation cost to make its
facilities SB 1953-compliant will be approximately $1.4 billion.

In fiscal ycar 2007 the County sold its right to a portion of its tobacco settlement revenues. The sale
consisted primarily of tobacco settlement revenues due to the County on and after January 1, 2026.
The proceeds from the sale, net of issuance cost, in the amount of $100,000 were transferred to the
SCVMC and are restricted to meeting the seismic requirements of SB 1953.

Single and Multiple Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds

The County, acting as coordinator with certain cities, issucd Tax-Exempt Mortgage Revenuce Bonds
with periodic maturities through May 2040. At June 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of these bonds
is $42,236. Single family mortgage revenue bonds were issued to provide funds to purchase
mortgage loans secured by first trust deeds on newly constructed and existing residences. The
purpose of this program is to provide below market interest rate home mortgages to persons who are
unable to qualify for conventional mortgages at markct rates.  Multiple fammly mortgage revenuc
bonds were issued to provide financing to developers of specified multiple family housing projects.
These developers agree to rent a percentage of units to qualified families at below market rates. The
bonds are not considered obligations of the County, and are payable solely from payments made on
the related secured mortgage loans.
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(13) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

0

Conduit Debt -Insured Revenue Bonds

On March 16, 2007, the Financing Authority served as the conduit issuer of 2007 Insured Revenue
Bonds Series A ($50,000), Series B ($50,000), and Series C ($50,000) in order to provide funds for
the construction, rcnovation, and improvement of El Camino Hospital, including a portion of the
construction of a new five-level main hospital building and purchasing and installing equipment. The
Financing Authority and the County have no obligation for these bonds as they are secured under the
provisions of the Indenture and will be payable solely from payment made by the El Camino Hospital
under the Loan Agreement. These bonds are not payable from any revenues or assets of the County.
Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the County, the State or any political subdivision
thercof arc pledged for the payment of the principal or interest on the bonds. At Junc 30, 2008, the
conduit bonds’ outstanding balance was $150,000.

(14) Subsequent Events

(@)

(b)

Measure A — Hospital Seismic Safety and Medical Facilities

On November 4, 2008, the County voters approved Measure A — Hospital Scismic Safcty and
Medical Facilities authorizing the issuance of $840 million in general obligation bonds to rebuild and
improve the earthquake seismically deficient of its medical facilities.

Recent Changes in the Economic Environment and its Impact to the County

The recent turmoil in the financial market has been unprecedented. In September 2008, the U.S.
Treasury placed government sponsored enterprises Fannie Mae (Federal National Mortgage
Association) and Freddie Mac (Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation) mnto conservatorship and
committed to provide as much as $100 billion to each company to backstop any shortfalls in capital
through 2009, which protected the principal and interest payments on their debt (bonds issued). In
addition, the federal government recently assumed control of American International Group Inc.
(AIQ), the largest insurance company in the U. S.; Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., (Lehman) the 4th
largest investment bank in the U.S. filed for bankruptcy; and Washington Mutual Inc. (WaMu) was
seized by government regulators and its branches and assets sold to JPMorgan Chase & Co. On
October 3, 2008, the President of the United States signed into law the $700 billion Emergency
Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 in an ctfort to address the cconomic crisis.

At June 30, 2008, the County has two investments in its Santa Clara County Retiree Healthcare Plan
Investments at risk. Specifically, the County has a $1.0 million corporatc notc with Lchman. At this
time the County cannot estimate the loss on this investment since it does not know what value the
assets of the firm will recover upon liquidation. In addition, the County has a $1.5 million note with
WaMu which has been downgraded by Fitch Ratings to below investment grade. The County has a
higher risk profile in its Retiree Healthcare Plan Investments and invests in longer term assets and
equities as allowed by state law. The fair value of the separately invested Santa Clara County Retiree
Healthcare Plan Investments as of November 30, 2008 decrcased 20.0 percent since June 30, 2008,
The County’s investments are exposed to general market risk. This general market risk is reflected in
asset valuations fluctuating with market volatility. Any impact from market volatility on the
County’s investments depend in large measure on how deep the market downturn is, how long it lasts,
and how it fits within fiscal year reporting periods.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

(14) Subsequent Events (Continued)

The current market turmoil has had an impact on the County’s dcbt program to date. Because of the
volatile market, due to liquidity concerns, the County has seen a bounce in its variable debt interest
since June 30, 2008. The County uses Lehman, Bank of America, and Morgan Stanley as
remarketing agents and all three remarket weekly. In September, with the Lehman bankruptcy, the
County saw a bounce from below 2% to 4% on its variable rate paper remarketed by Lehman.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Schedule of Funding Progress — CalPERS Defined Benefit Retirement County Miscellaneous Plan:

Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Asset Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ 4,072,831 S 4,972,306 S 899,475 81.9% § 1,076,476 83.6%
6/30/2006 3,688,587 4,576,572 887,985 80.6% 1,002,639 88.6%
6/30/2005 3,379,899 4,092,910 713,011 82.6% 939,349 75.9%
Schedule of Funding Progress — CalPERS Defined Benefit Retirement County Safety Plan:
Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Assct Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ 1,213,321 $ 1492398 $ 279,077 81.3% % 164,100 170.1%
6/30/2006 1,111,525 1,381,871 270,346 80.4% 151,480 178.5%
6/30/2005 1,026,433 1,268,296 241,863 80.9% 142,821 169.3%

Schedule of Funding Progress — CalPERS Defined Benefit Retirement Central Fire Safety Plan:

Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Asset Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Lntry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2006 $ 240,522 § 284246 $ 43,724 84.6% § 24,204 180.6%
6/30/2005 222,791 269,665 46,874 82.6% 23,472 199.7%
6/30/2004 205,844 253,053 47,209 81.3% 22,755 207.5%
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Schedule of Funding Progress — County Other Postemployment Benefits:

Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Assct Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2007 $ - $ 1,261,402 $ 1,261,402 00% $ 1,119,488 112.7%
Schedule of Funding Progress —
Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District Other Postemployment Benefits:
Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Asset Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2008 $ - $ 165,398 $ 165398 0.0% % 33,269 497.2%
Schedule of Funding Progress —
Housing Authority of the County of Santa Clara Other Postemployment Benefits:
Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage
Valuation Asset Liability- Liability — Funded Covered of Covered
Date Value Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2008 $ - $ 5,441 $ 5,441 0.0% b3 11,631 46.8%
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial activitics
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The accompanying Budgetary Comparison
Schedule represents the primary cxpensc classification of scrvices provided by the County through the
General Fund.

93



Budgetary fund balances, beginning of year

Resources (inflows):
Taxes
Licenses and permits

Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Interest and investment income

Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services

Other revenue

Other financing sources
Interfund transfers

Total resources (inflows) available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):

General government:
Supcrvisorial District 1
Salaries and benefits
Scrvices and supplics

Total Supervisorial District 1

Supervisorial District 2
Salarics and benefits
Services and supplies

Total Supervisorial District 2

Supervisorial District 3
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies

Total Supervisorial District 3

Supervisorial District 4
Salarics and bencefits
Services and supplies

Total Supervisorial District 4

Supervisorial District 5
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies

Total Supervisorial District 5

Clerk - Board of Supervisors

Salarics and benefits
Services and supplies
Fixcd asscts

Expenditure reimbursements

Total Clerk - Board of Supervisors

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

(In thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)

§ 461,227 $ 461,227 $ 461,227 $ -
637,382 637,382 633,133 (4,249)
15,414 15,414 13,733 (1,681)
43,426 50,886 40,873 (10,013)
27,914 29,970 25,749 (4,221)
1,119,934 1,164,735 1,147,477 (17,258)
143,979 142,489 132,982 (9,507)
152,419 58,656 31,667 (26,989)
4,000 4,000 4,000 -
22,882 272,302 272,744 442
2,167,350 2,375,834 2,302,358 (73,476)
960 968 960 8

63 63 21 42

1,023 1,031 981 50
968 976 948 28

58 57 30 27

1,026 1,033 978 55

968 976 959 17

56 55 46 9

1,024 1,031 1,005 26

978 892 846 46

44 139 136 3

1,022 1,031 982 49

968 970 970 -

88 91 89 2

1,056 1,061 1,059 2
2,897 2,922 2,783 139
3,664 3,620 3,241 379

- 18 17 |
(374) (374) (109) (265)
6,187 6,186 5,932 254
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
General government (continued):
Office of the County Exccutive
Salarics and benefits 9,702 9,738 9,654 84
Serviees and supplics 10,257 14,413 10,410 4,003
Expenditure reimbursements (198) (198) (174) 24)
Interfund transfers - 399 291 108
Total Officc of the County Exccutive 19,761 24,352 20,181 4,171
Controller-Trcasurcr
Salarics and benefits 10,008 10,008 9,833 175
Services and supplies 5,778 8,434 6,142 2,292
Fixed assets 189 189 189 -
Expenditure reimbursements (40,821) (40,821) (40,821) -
Interfund transfers 100,000 48,817 48,817 -
Total Controller-Treasurer 75,154 26,627 24.160 2.467
Tax Collector
Salaries and benefits 5,541 5,541 5,349 192
Services and supplies 5,875 5,875 5,585 290
Expenditure reimbursements (272) (272) (263) (9
Total Tax Collector 11,144 11,144 10,671 473
Office of the Assessor
Salaries and benefits 25,724 25,828 25,517 311
Services and supplies 10,397 10,382 4,150 6,232
Total Office of the Assessor 36,121 36,210 29,667 6,543
Purchasing
Salaries and benefits 3,503 2,703 2,445 258
Services and supplies 1,415 2,202 997 1,205
Expenditure reimbursements (497) (497) (498) 1
Total Purchasing 4,421 4,408 2,944 1,464
Office of Budget and Analysis - Special Programs
Salaries and benefits - 2 2 -
Services and supplics 8,429 8,326 6,122 2,204
Interfund transfers 231,849 333,095 330,095 3,000
Total Office of Budget and Analysis -
Special Programs 240,278 341,423 336,219 5,204
Office of the County Counsel
Salaries and benefits 20,033 20,107 19,452 655
Services and supplies 1,718 2,017 1,389 628
Fixed assets - 13 - 13
Expenditure reimbursements (16,203) (16,203) (15,808) (395)
Total Office of the County Counsel 5,548 5,934 5,033 901
(Continucd)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgctary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
General government (continued):
Personncl
Salaries and benefits 10,463 10,693 10,684 9
Services and supplies 7.258 7,068 6,395 673
Fixed assets 65 141 141 -
Expenditure reimbursements (4,344) (4,344) (4,538) 194
Total Personnel 13,442 13,558 12,682 876
Risk Management
Salaries and benefits 1,584 1,584 1,568 16
Services and supplies 741 740 705 35
Expenditure reimbursements (2,314) (2,314) (2,310) (4)
Total Risk Management 11 10 37 47
Registrar of Voters
Salaries and benefits 9,103 9,103 8,408 695
Secrvices and supplics 12,526 11,813 9,400 2,413
Fixed assets - 647 642 5
Total Registrar of Voters 21,629 21,563 18,450 3,113
Information Services
Salaries and benefits 4,570 4,580 4,578 2
Scrvices and supplics 11,281 11,543 10,278 1,265
Fixed assets 78 72 12 60
Expenditure reimbursements (1,578) (1,578) (1,434) (144)
Interfund transfers - 160 160 -
Total Information Services 14,351 14,777 13,594 1,183
Department of Revenue
Salaries and benefits 6,633 6,675 6,241 434
Services and supplies 1,267 1,255 1,176 79
Fixed assets 20 20 11 9
Total Department of Revenue 7.920 7.950 7.428 522
Communication
Salaries and benefits 13,300 13,535 13,482 53
Services and supplies 3,202 3,142 2,654 488
Fixcd asscts 71 71 71 -
Expenditure reimbursements (4,995) (4,995) 4,571) (424)
Total Communication 11,578 11,753 11,636 117
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
General government (continued):
Department of Planning & Development
Salaries and benefits 10,251 10,086 10,077 9
Scrvices and supplics 4,515 5,739 4,517 1,222
Fixed assets - 24 24 -
Expenditure reimbursements (506) (506) (500) (6)
Total Department of Planning & Development 14,260 15,343 14,118 1,225
Facilities and Fleet Department
Salaries and benefits 28,111 28,600 28,340 260
Services and supplies 68,272 76,621 71,197 5,424
Fixed assets - 11 11 -
Expenditure reimbursements (52,579) (53,276) (52,132) (1,144)
Interfund transfers 13,557 13,612 13,112 500
Total Facilitics and Flect Department 57,361 65,568 60,528 5,040
General government - subtotals:
Salaries and benefits 166,265 166,487 163,096 3,391
Services and supplies 156,904 173,595 144,680 28,915
Fixed asscts 423 1,206 1,118 88
Expenditure reimbursements (124,681) (125,378) (123,158) 2,220y
Intcrfund transfers 345,406 396,083 392,475 3,608
Total general government 544,317 611,993 578,211 33,782
Public protection:
Clerk Recorder
Salaries and benefits 7,395 7,395 6,882 513
Services and supplies 806 794 672 122
Total Clerk Recorder 8,201 8,189 7,554 635
Department of Child Support Services
Salaries and benefits 31,064 31,433 31,317 116
Services and supplies 7.094 7,588 7,442 146
Fixed assets 383 127 117 10
Total Department of Child Support Services 38,541 39,148 38,876 272
(Continued)

97



COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
Public protection (continued):
District Attorney
Salaries and benefits 73,119 73,511 72,768 743
Services and supplics 18,569 19,856 18,838 1,018
Fixed asscts 127 181 172 9
Expenditure reimbursements (17,613) (18,414) (17,899) (515)
Total District Attorney 74,202 75,134 73,879 1,255
Laboratory of Criminalistics
Salaries and benefits 6,840 6,763 6.518 245
Services and supplies 1,455 2,006 1,863 143
Expenditure reimbursements (173) (173) (182) 9
Total Laboratory of Criminalistics 8,122 8,596 8,199 397
Public Defender
Salaries and benefits 34,989 35,977 35,977 -
Services and supplies 5,146 5,222 4,711 511
Other charges 1 1 - 1
Expenditure reimbursements (322) (322) (336) 14
Total Public Defender 39,814 40,878 40,352 526
Pretrial Services
Salaries and benefits 4,665 4,699 4,531 168
Services and supplies 1,316 1,317 1,092 225
Expenditure reimbursements - (35) (35) -
Total Pretrial Services 5,981 5,981 5,588 393
Criminal Justice Support
Services and supplies 54,247 55,147 54,969 178
Total Criminal Justice Support 54,247 55,147 54,969 178
Sheriff Administration
Salarics and bencfits 103,740 106,192 96,446 9,746
Services and supplies 15,506 16,192 14,068 2,124
Fixed asscts 829 701 258 443
Expenditure reimbursements (5,776) (5,941) (2,277) (3,664)
Total Sheriff Administration 114,299 117,144 108,495 8,649
Sheriff - Department of Correction Services
Salaries and benefits 97,236 99,220 99,220 -
Total Sheriff - Department of
Correction Services 97,236 99,220 99,220 -
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
Public protection (continued):
Department of Correction
Salaries and benefits 30,857 30,524 29,208 1,316
Services and supplics 44,124 45,815 45,624 191
Fixcd asscts 289 351 277 74
Interfund transfers 7,500 - - -
Expenditure reimbursements (3,104) (2,402) (2,459) 57
Total Department of Correction 79,666 74,288 72,650 1,638
Probation Department
Salaries and benefits 89,996 96,503 96,368 135
Services and supplics 22,586 22,956 22,956 -
Expenditure reimbursements (351) (409) (409) -
Total Probation Department 112,231 119,050 118,915 135
Department of Agriculture/Weights & Measures/
Animal Control
Salaries and benefits 5,354 5,435 5,181 254
Services and supplies 1,880 1,871 1,309 562
Fixed assets - 30 30 -
Interfund transfers 11 11 10 1
Expenditure reimbursements (213) (213) (243) 30
Total Department of Agriculture/
Weights & Measures/Animal Control 7.032 7,134 6,287 847
Medical Examiner - Coroner
Salaries and benefits 2,658 2,658 2,652 6
Services and supplies 628 627 574 53
Total Medical Examiner - Coroner 3,286 3,285 3,226 59
Public protection - subtotals:
Salaries and benefits 487,913 500,310 487,068 13,242
Services and supplies 173,357 179,391 174,118 5,273
Other charges | 1 - |
Fixed assets 1,628 1,390 854 536
Interfund transfers 7,511 11 10 1
Expenditure reimbursements (27,552) (27,909) (23,840) (4,069)
Total public protection 642,858 653,194 638,210 14,984
Public ways and facilities:
Measure B
Salarics and benefits - 26 25 1
Scrviees and supplics 6,286 39,572 28,279 11,293
Interfund transfers 6,095 6,095 1,316 4,779
Total Measure B 12,381 45,693 29,620 16,073
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgctary Comparison Schedule
Gengral Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended Junce 30, 2008

(In thousands)
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
Health and sanitation:
Health Services Administration
Salaries and benefits 51,608 51,762 50,775 987
Services and supplies 31,500 34,644 30,715 3,929
Fixed assets - 300 - 300
Interfund transfers - 95 95 -
Expenditure reimbursements (1,290) (1,720) (2,449) 729
Total Health Services Administration 81,818 85,081 79,136 5,945
Mental Health Bureau
Salaries and benefits 41,860 42,942 36,353 6,589
Scrvices and supplics 195,513 223,620 215,549 8,071
Expenditure reimbursements (2,386) (2,565) (2,375) (190)
Total Mental Health Bureau 234,987 263,997 249,527 14,470
Custody Health Services
Salaries and benefits 35,711 36,309 36,190 119
Services and supplies 10,722 12,543 11,392 1,151
Expenditure reimbursements (44,483) (45,983) (45,285) (698)
Total Custody Health Services 1,950 2,869 2,297 572
Bureau of Alcohol & Drug Programs
Salaries and benefits 17,986 18,241 17,699 542
Services and supplies 32,119 32,523 30,372 2,151
Expenditure reimbursements (3,479) (3,653) (3,284) (369)
Total Burcau of Alcohol & Drug Programs 46,626 47,111 44,787 2,324
Community Qutreach Program
Salarics and bencfits 10,968 11,658 10,730 928
Services and supplies 6,231 6,231 6,044 187
Fixed asscts - 111 - 111
Expenditure reimbursements (1,565) (1,863) (2,035) 172
Total Community Qutreach Program 15,634 16,137 14,739 1,398
Healthy Children
Services and supplies 4,500 4,500 3,336 1,164
Total Healthy Children 4,500 4,500 3,336 1,164
(Continucd)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgctary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount {Negative)
Health and sanitation - subtotals (continued):
Salaries and benefits 158,133 160,912 151,747 9,165
Services and supplics 280,585 314,061 297,408 16,653
Fixed assels - 411 - 411
Interfund transfers - 95 95 -
Expenditure reimbursements (53,203) (55,784) (55,428) (356)
Total health and sanitation 385,515 419,695 303,822 25,873
Public assistance:
In-House Support Services
Services and supplies 69,853 69,853 62,307 7,546
Total In-House Support Services 69,853 69,853 62,307 7,546
Officc of Affordable Housing
Salaries and benefits 414 414 359 55
Services and supplies 1,166 1,381 1,275 106
Expenditure reimbursements (403) (403) (357) (46)
Total Office of Affordable Housing 1,177 1,392 1,277 115
Social Services Administration
Salaries and benefits 253,702 255,518 254,586 932
Scrvices and supplics 139,224 136,737 123,301 13,436
Fixed assets 78 1,151 845 306
Total Social Services Administration 393,004 393,406 378,732 14,674
Nutrition Services to the Aged
Salaries and benefits 813 857 856 1
Services and supplies 5,521 5476 5,343 133
Total Nutrition Services 1o the Aged 6,334 6,333 6,199 134
Categorical Aids Payments
Secrvices and supplics 204,388 204,388 179,351 25,037
Total Categorical Aids Payments 204,388 204,388 179,351 25,037
Public assistance - subtotals:
Salaries and benefits 254,929 256,789 255,801 988
Services and supplies 420,152 417,835 371,577 46,258
Fixed assets 78 1,151 845 306
Expenditure reimbursements (403) (403) (357) (46)
Total public assistance 674,756 675,372 627,866 47,506
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
Debt service:
County debt service
Principal rctirement 9,001 9,001 7,723 1,278
Interest and fiscal charges 7,650 7,650 7,245 405
Intcrfund transfcrs 916 916 731 185
Total debt service 17,567 17,567 15,699 1,868
Provisions for Contingencies:
Appropriation Contingencics
Interfund transfers - 7,800 7,800 -
Total provisions for contingencies - 7,800 7,800 -
Reserves:
Office of County Executive
General government 399 - - -
Total Office of County Exccutive 399 - - -
OMB Special Programs
General government 2,100 - - -
Total OMB Special Programs 2,100 - - -
Probation Department
Public protection 500 500 - 500
Total Probation Department 500 500 - 500
Social Services Administration
Public assistance 3,153 2,873 - 2,873
Total Social Services Administration 3,153 2,873 - 2,873
Categorical Aids Payments
Public assistance 1,370 1,370 - 1,370
Total Categorical Aids Payments 1,370 1,370 - 1,370
Nutrition Services to the Aged
Public assistance 825 825 - 825
Total Nutrition Services to the Aged 825 825 - 825
Appropriation Contingencies
Total Appropriation Contingencies 87,745 94,836 - 94,836
Total reserves 96,092 100,404 - 100,404
Total charges to appropriations $ 2,373,486 $ 2,531,718 $ 2,291,228 $ 240,490
(Continucd)
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Budgetary Basis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenucs and Expenditures:

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total resources”
from the budgetary comparison schedule S 2,302,358

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes (4,000)

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes (272,744)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances - general fund S 2,025,614

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgctary basis) "total charges to appropriations”
from the budgetary comparison schedule S 2,291,228
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for services and supplies ordered but not received is reported
in the year the order is placed for budgcetary purposcs, but in the year services
are incurred or goods received for financial reporting purposes (3,896)
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but arc not expenditurcs
for financial reporting purposes (402,427)

Total cxpenditurcs as reported on the statement of revenucs, expenditurcs and
changes in fund balances - general fund S 1,884,905

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County is a charter county and, under the general laws of the State, adopts final annual operating
budgets before September 1 for all governmental funds, except the Proposition 36 and Tobacco
Securitization special revenue funds. From the effective date of the budgets, which are adopted by the
Board of Supervisors after public hearings, the proposed expenditures become appropriations to the
various County departments. Only the Board has the authority to approve new appropriations. The
County Executive has a limited authority to approve appropriation transfers of $100 between the objects
within a budget unit. The Board of Supervisors must approve transfers among budget units and may
amend the budget during the fiscal year. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal
year-cnd. During the ycar, the Board of Supervisors approved various supplemental appropriations.

The County also adopts budgets annually for capital projects funds. Such budgets are based on a project
time frame, rather than a fiscal year, and unused appropriations are reappropriated from year to year until
project completion.

Budgeted revenues and expenditures m the budgetary comparison schedule represent the original budget
and the final budget modified by authorized adjustments during the year. Final budgeted expenditure
amounts represent original appropriations adjusted for supplemental appropriations during the year that
were contingent upon new or additional revenue sources and reappropriated amounts for prior year
cncumbrances. Expenditurcs may not legally ¢xceed budgeted appropriations at the budget unit level
within cach department. Intcrdepartmental cxpenditure reimbursements do not have the budgetary status
of legal appropriations. Therefore, variances between estimated and actual reimbursements are not
disclosed in the notes to the basic financial statements but are displayed in the supplemental section of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting in the General Fund, special revenue funds, and
capital projects funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance
since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Budgetary Results of Operations Reconciled to Results of Operations in Accordance with GAAP

The County’s budget is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a budget basis rather than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) basis. The results of
operations on a budget basis for the general, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds
differ from opecrations on a GAAP basis due to the proceeds from sales of capital assets, interfund
transfers, other financing sources and the inclusion of ycar-cnd cncumbrances with cxpenditures on a
budget basis. Accordingly, the results of operations presented in the accompanying budgetary
comparison schedule reflect adjustments for proceeds from sales of capital assets, interfund transfers,
other financing sources and encumbrances in order to provide a meaningful comparison with the adopted
County budget.
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The Honorable Members of the
Board of Supervisors of the
County of Santa Clara

San Jose, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of
the County of Santa Clara, California, (the County), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 17, 2008. Our report was modified to include a reference to other auditors. Our report
also includes an explanatory paragraph indicating that the County adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and GASB Statement No. 50,
Pension Disclosures — an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and 27. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the FIRST 5 Santa Clara
County; the County Sanitation District 2 — 3 of Santa Clara County; the Santa Clara County Vector
Control District; the Silicon Valley Tobacco Securitization Authority; the Santa Clara County Tobacco
Securitization Corporation; and the Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District, the South Santa
Clara County Fire District, and Los Altos Hills County Fire District (collectively, “Fire Districts”), as
described in our report on the County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of
the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that
are reported on separately by those other auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.

www.mgocpa.com An Independent Member of the BDO Seidman Alliance
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the County’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the County’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the County’s internal control. We consider the
deficiencies as listed as items 2008-A and 2008-B in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the County’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessary identify all deficiencies in the internal control that
might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that none of the
significant deficiencies described above are material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated
December 17, 2008.

The County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s responses and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Supervisors, County
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W acies Home & C Cun 00 Lo

Certified Public Accountants

Walnut Creek, California
December 17, 2008
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The Honorable Members of the
Board of Supervisors of the
County of Santa Clara

San Jose, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the County of Santa Clara, California (the County), with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
County’s compliance based on our audit.

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Housing Authority of the County of
Santa Clara (Housing Authority), which expended $223,757,449 in federal awards, which is not included
in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Our
audit, described below, did not include the operations of the Housing Authority because we audited and
reported on the Housing Authority in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 as a separate engagement.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with those requirements.

www.mgocpa.com An Independent Member of the BDO Seidman Alliance
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As described in item 2008-1, in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the County
did not comply with the requirement regarding program income that is applicable to its HOME
Investment Partnerships Program (CFDA No. 14.239). Compliance with such requirement is necessary, in
our opinion, for the County to comply with the requirements applicable to that program.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the County complied,
in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major
federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Also, the results of our auditing procedures
disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items 2008-2, 2008-3, 2008-4, and 2008-5.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the entity's internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed below,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant
deficiencies and one deficiency that we consider to be a material weakness.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We consider
the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying federal awards
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2008-1, 2008-2, 2008-3, 2008-4, and 2008-5 to be
significant deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. Of the significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, we consider item 2008-1 to be a material weakness.
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The County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s responses and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Supervisors, County
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Certified Public Accountants
Walnut Creek, California

March 20, 2009
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Entity/Grant Name CFDA No. Entity Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through State Department of Social Services
Food Stamps 10.551 43-10439 78,296,179
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Progran 10.561 04-35461 93,270
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Progran 10.561 04-35881 1,041,070
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Progran 10.561 07-65337 277,581
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Progran 10.561 07-65348 20,000
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Progran 10.561 nla 16,211,955
Subtotal State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program 17,643,876
Subtotal Pass Through State Department of Social Services 95,940,055
Passed Through State Department of Health Services
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 10.557 05-45797 2,610,468
Passed Through State Department of Agriculture
Inspection Grading and Standardization 10.162 8415 1,528
Passed Through State Department of Education
School Breakfast Program 10.553 43-10439-6066435-01 255,050
National School Lunch Program 10.555 43-10439-6066435-01 383,328
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster 638,378
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Education 638,378
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 99,190,429
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Programs
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 nla 2,191,012
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 n/a 9,711,594
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 11,902,606
U.S. Department of Interior
Passed Through State Department of Parks and Recreation
Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation 15.615 P0330012 369,049
Technical Preservation Services 15.915 06-01549 233,427
Total U.S. Department of Interior 602,476
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Programs
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants 16.523 n/a 160,687
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders 16.590 n/a 412,026
Community Capacity Development Office 16.595 nla 135,483
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 n/a 1,527,544
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 nla 338,928
Subtotal Direct Programs 2,574,668
Passed Through State Office of Emergency Services
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 VW 07260430 294,306
Building Our Leaders For Tomorrow 16.609 US 05020430 6,523
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 MS 07060430 177,169
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 DC 07180430 563,154
Subtotal Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 740,323
Subtotal Passed Through State Office of Emergency Services 1,041,152
Total U.S. Department of Justice 3,615,820

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Grant Name CFDA No. Entity Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 nla 1,585,140
Passed Through State Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLH 5937(102) 1,232,244
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPL 5937 (101) 81,313
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPL 5937(108) 697,237
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLZ 5937(033) 714,789
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BRLO 5937 (047) 45,875
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BRLO 5937 (046) 45,928
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLZ-5937(087) 384,522
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLZ-5937(088) 601,775
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BHLO 5937(096) 726
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BRLS 5937(077) 1,510,254
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLZ-5937 (033) 348,911
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BHLO 5937(093) 31,336
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BRLO 5937(106) 4,339
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLZ 5937(058) 125,471
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 STPLER -5937(099) 100,000
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BRL-NBIS (508) 70,293
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Transportation 5,995,013
Passed Through State Department of Parks and Recreation
Recreational Trails Program 20.219 RT-43-005 153,000
Recreational Trails Program 20.219 RT-43-006 67,353
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Parks and Recreation 220,353
Passed Through State Office of Traffic Safety
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 AL0632 102,558
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 AL0668 111,179
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 CT080102/238/396 13,055
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 AL0807 357,368
Subtotal Passed Through State Office of Traffic Safety 584,160
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 8,384,666
Institute of Museum and Library Services
Passed Through California State Library
Grants to States 45.310 n/a 4,860
Total Institute of Museum and Library Services 4,860
Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through California Environmental Protection Agency - Air Resources Board
Environmental Information Exchange Network Grant Program and Related Assistance 66.608 0S-83137601-1 177,029
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program 66.805 07-016-250-0 95,000
Total Environmental Protection Agency 272,029
U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through State Department of Alcohol and Drug
Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities_State Grants 84.186 n/a 116,496
Total U.S. Department of Education 116,496

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Grant Name CFDA No. Entity Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Programs
Consolidated Health Centers (Community Health Center, Migrate Health Centers,
Health Care for the Homeless, Public Housing Primary Care, and School Based
Health Centers) 93.224 n/a 945,144
Enhance the Safety of Children Affected By Parental Methamphetamine
or Other Substance Abuse 93.087 n/a 159,245
Subtotal Direct Programs 1,104,389
Passed Through Council on Aging Silicon Valley
Special Programs for the Aging_Title 111, Part C_Nutrition Services 93.045 AP-0708-10 1,164,424
Nutrition Service Incentive Program 93.053 AP-0708-10 710,319
Subtotal Aging Cluster 1,874,743
Passed Through State Department of Education
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 43-W038 272,552
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 43-2243 1,806,065
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Education 2,078,617
Passed Through State Department of Health Services
Public Health and Social Services Emergency Fund 93.003 n/a 2,287,175
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 nla 376,799
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 n/a 486,308
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150 nla 230,287
Immunization Grants 93.268 07-65249 951,451
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention _ Investigations
and Technical Assistance 93.283 nla 1,303,585
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grant: 93.576 nla 25,674
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grants 93.576 07-43-90841-01 35,296
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grants 93.576 07-43-90840-1 310,236
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grants 93.576 07-43-9460-1A 119,609
Subtotal Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grants 490,815
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX 93.778 nla 4,394,917
Grants for Training in Primary Care Medicine and Dentistry 93.884 PS0423 631,414
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 nla 2,373,482
HIV Care Formula Grants 93.917 94-19897 A-1 371,203
Grants to Provide Outpatient Early Intervention Services with
Respect to HIV Disease 93.918 n/a 713,663
HIV Prevention Activities_Health Department Based 93.940 nla 1,603,781
Public Health Traineeships 93.964 2007-43 MCH 124,542
Public Health Traineeships 93.964 2007-43 BIH 217,499
Public Health Traineeships 93.964 2007-43 AFLP 236,826
Subtotal Public Health Traineeships 578,867
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 2007-43 BIH 340,123
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 2007-43 AFLP 90,691
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 2007-43 MCH 322,928
Subtotal Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 753,742
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Health Services 17,547,489
Passed Through State Department of Child Support Services
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 1V-356 25,133,084



COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Federal Pass Through
Federal Grantor/Grant Name CFDA No. Entity Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued)
Passed Through State Department of Social Services
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services_Projects of
Regional and National Significance 93.243 n/a 544,844
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 n/a 1,093,899
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 n/a 124,808,892
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_State Administered Programs 93.566 nla 885,911
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Targeted Assistance Grants 93.584 n/a 440,980
Child Welfare Services_State Grants 93.645 n/a 1,378,728
Foster Care_Title IV-E 93.658 n/a 41,914,969
Adoption Assistance 93.659 n/a 11,069,061
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 nla 9,303,013
Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 nla 504,035
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX 93.778 n/a 55,536,437
Subtotal Passed Through State Department of Social Services 247,480,769
Passed Through State Department of Mental Health
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 n/a 687,217
Passed Through State Department of Alcohol and Drug
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 n/a 11,272,305
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 307,178,613
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through the City of San Jose
Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 n/a 566,230
Passed Through the City and County of San Franciscc
Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 2006-0071 245,865
Passed Through the State Office of Emergency Services
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2006-0015 1,445,372
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2006-0071 1,590,932
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2007-8 823,283
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2005-0015 9,859
Subtotal Homeland Security Grant Program 3,869,446
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive Grants 97.017 OES # PJ55 600,718
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive Grants 97.017 OES # PJ37 1,710,092
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive Grants 97.017 OES # PJ45 5,295
Subtotal Pre-Disaster Mitigation Competitive Grants 2,316,105
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2006-GR-0008 250,987
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 2007-6 248,225
Subtotal Emergency Management Performance Grants 499,212
Buffer Zone Protection Program 97.078 2005-GR-15-0068 174,332
Subtotal Passed Through State Office of Emergency Services 6,859,095
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 7,671,190

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note 1 — General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) presents the expenditures of all
federal award programs of the County of Santa Clara, California (the County), for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, except for the Housing Authority of the County of Santa Clara (Housing Authority) (see
Note 4). The County’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the County’s basic financial statements. All
federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other
government agencies, are included on the SEFA.

Note 2 — Basis of Accounting

The accompanying SEFA is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting for grants
accounted for in the governmental fund types and the accrual basis of accounting for grants accounted for
in the proprietary fund types, as described in Note 1 to the County’s basic financial statements. In
addition, the outstanding balance of prior year’s loans that have significant continuing compliance
requirements has been included in the total federal expenditure for the HOME Investment Partnerships
program (note 7) and the total federal expenditures for the State Criminal Alien Assistance Program
(SCAAP) includes the awarded funds as a one-time payment that is expended as of the date receipt
pursuant to the SCAAP Guidance and Application.

Note 3 — Relationship to the Financial Statements

Expenditures of federal awards are reported in the County’s basic financial statements as expenditures in
the General Fund and nonmajor special revenue funds and as expenses in the Airport enterprise fund.

Note 4 — Housing Authority (Discrete Component Unit) Federal Expenditures

The Housing Authority federal expenditures are excluded from the SEFA because the Housing
Authority’s federal expenditures are separately audited. Expenditures for the programs of the Housing
Authority listed below are taken from the separately issued single audit report. The programs of the
Housing Authority are as follows:

Grantor
Identifying Federal
Federal Grantor/Program Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-through the City of San Jose:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 HTF-07-006 $ 59,337
Direct:
Shelter Plus Care 14.238 n/a 2,477,637
Public and Indian Housing 14.850 n/a 1,301,830
Section 8 Project Based Cluster:
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program - Section 8 New
Construction/Substantial Rehabilitation -Huff Gardens 14.182 n/a 339,035
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 na 837,451
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program - Section 8
Moderate Rehabilitation 14.856 na 1,200,907
Subtotal Section 8 Project Based Cluster 2,377,393
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 n/a 216,680,514
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 n/a 860,738
Total Federal Expenditures $ 223,757,449
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note 5 — Food Stamps

Food stamps expenditures of $78,296,179 represent the face value of food stamps distributed to program
participants. They do not represent cash expenditures in the County’s basic financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Note 6 — Amounts Provided to Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the SEFA, the County provided federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

Amount
Provided to

Program Title CFDA Number Subrecipients
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children 10.557 $ 67,318
State Administrative Matching Program for

the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 330,107
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 1,364,386
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 392,855
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants 16.523 81,059
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of

Protection Orders 16.590 412,026
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 686,635
Environmental Information Exchange Network Grant Program

and Related Assistance 66.608 177,029
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund Program 66.805 95,000
Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities_State Grants 84.186 73,307
Special Programs for the Aging_Title 111, Part C_Nutrition Services 93.045 1,164,424
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 710,319
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for

Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 25,000
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150 230,287
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services_Projects of

Regional and National Significance 93.243 182,330
Immunization Grants 93.268 245,482
Center for Disease Control and Prevention _ Investigations

and Technical Assistance 93.283 622,102
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 4,854,549
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_State Administered Programs 93.566 154,727
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Discretionary Grants 93.576 23,026
Refugee and Entrant Assistance_Targeted Assistance Grants 93.584 352,558
Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 93.674 423,093
Grants for Training in Primary Care Medicine and Dentistry 93.884 265,789
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 882,383
HIV Care Formula Grants 93.917 307,702
HIV Prevention Activities_Health Department Based 93.940 295,665
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 85,861
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 4,809,514
Public Health Traineeships 93.964 236,826
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 79,045
Urban Area Security Initiative 97.008 53,500
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 469,860
Buffer Zone Protection Program 97.078 99,287

Total $ 20,253,051
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note 7 — Loans Outstanding

The County participates in certain federal award programs that sponsor revolving loan programs, which
are administered by the County. These programs maintain servicing and trust arrangements with the
County to collect loan repayments. The funds are returned to the programs upon repayment of the
principal and interest. The federal government has imposed certain continuing compliance requirements
with respect to the loans rendered under the HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME). During
the fiscal year 2008, the County incurred $240,000 in expenditures related to new loans under this
program. As of June 30, 2008, the total amount of HOME loans outstanding subject to continuing
compliance requirements was $9,441,256, which is included in the SEFA.

Note 8 — California Department of Aging (CDA) Grant
The terms and conditions of agency contracts with CDA require agencies to display state-funded

expenditures discretely along with the related federal expenditures. The following schedule is presented
to comply with these requirements.

Federal Grantor Grant/
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Contract Expenditures
Program Title Number Number State Federal

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Pass through the Council on Aging Silicon Valley
Special Programs for the Aging_Title 111, Part C

Nutrition Services 93.045 AP-0708-10 $ 153204 $ 1,164,424
Pass through the Council on Aging Silicon Valley

Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 AP-0708-10 - 710,319

Total Expenditures of State and Federal Awards $ 153204 $ 1,874,743

Note 9 — Program Totals
The SEFA does not summarize programs that receive funding from various funding sources or grants.
The following table summarizes these programs by CDFA numbers:

Program Title / Federal
Federal Grantor or Pass-Through Grantor Expenditures

CFDA Number 16.738 - Anti-Drug Abuse Enforcement Program

U.S. Department of Justice $ 338,928
State of California, Office of Emergency Services 740,323
$ 1,079,251

CFDA Number 93.778 - Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX)

State of California, Department of Social Services $ 55,536,437
State of California, Department of Health Services 4,394 917
$ 59,931,354
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note 10 — Homeland Security Cluster

The County is a recipient of 2005 and 2006, and 2007 Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI) grant
awards (CFDA No. 97.008). Per the 2008 A-133 Compliance Supplement, UASI grant awards for the
specified grant years listed above are part of the Homeland Security Cluster. In addition, the County
incurred federal expenditures under the Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) (CFDA No. 97.067),
which are also part of the Homeland Security Cluster program. The following table summarizes these
programs by CDFA numbers:

Program Title / Federal
Federal Grantor or Pass-Through Grantor Expenditures
CFDA Number 97.008 - Urban Area Security Initiative
Passed through the City of San Jose $ 566,230
Passed through the City and County of San Francisco 245,865
Subtotal Urban Area Security Initiative 812,095
CFDA Number 93.067 - Homeland Security Grant Program
Passed through the State Office of Emergency Services 3,869,446
Total Homeland Security Cluster $ 4,681,541
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Note 11 - Schedules of the Office of Emergency Services (OES), California Victims Compensation & Government

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Claims Board, and California Department of Justice grant expenditures

State of California Office of Emergency Services grant expenditures:

The following represents grant expenditures for Department of Justice grants passed through the State of California Office of Emergency Services

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Program Title and Expenditure Category

Victim Witness Assistance - OES
Operating Expenses
Total

Building Our Leaders for Tomorrow
Operating Expenses
Total

Marijuana Suppression Program
Operating Expenses
Total

Anti-Drug Abuse Enforcement Program
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Equipment
Total

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

respectively, are reported as federal expenditures in the SEFA under the following CFDA numbers: 16.575, 16.609, and 16.738.)

This information is included in the County's single audit report at the request of the State of California's Office of Emergency Services.

Program Title and Expenditure Category

Victim Witness Assistance - OES
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Total

Victim Witness Assistance - OES

Operating Expenses
Total

Child Abuser Vertical Prosecution Program
Personal Services
Total

High Technology Theft Apprehension & Prosecution
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Equipment

Grant Award Actual Actual Actual
Number/Period Budget Non-match Match Total Variance

VW 07260430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 294306 $ 294306 $ $ 294,306 -
$ 294306 $ 294306 $ $ 294,306 -

US 05020430
10/1/05 to 12/31/08  $ 25,000 $ 6,523 $ $ 6,523 18,477
$ 25,000 $ 6523 $ $ 6,523 18,477

MS 07060430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 177,169  $ 177,169  $ $ 177,169 -
$ 177,169  $ 177,169  $ $ 177,169 -

DC 07180430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 167,739  $ 167,739  $ $ 167,739 -
322,646 322,646 322,646 -
72,769 72,769 72,769 -
$ 563,154  $ 563,154  $ $ 563,154 -

(Note: The non-match expenditure of $294,306, $6,523, $177,169, and $563,154 for grants VW 07260430, US 05020430, MS 07060430, and DC 07180430,
The following represents the State of California Office of Emergency Services summary grant expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
Grant Award Actual Actual Actual
Number/Period Budget Non-match Match Total Variance

VW 06250430
7/1/06 to 6/30/07 $ 223410 % - 8 $ - 223,410
124,889 6,579 6,579 118,310
$ 348299 $ 6,579 $ $ 6,579 341,720

VW 07260430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 348299 $ 332487  $ $ 332,487 15,812
$ 348299 $ 332487  $ $ 332,487 15,812

VB 07050430
7/7/07 to 6/30/08 $ 436,083 $ 436,083 $ $ 436,083 -
$ 436,083 $ 436,083 $ $ 436,083 -

HT 06070430
7/1/06 to 6/30/07 $ 635672 $ - $ $ - 635,672
1,793,213 10,776 10,776 1,782,437
5,691 5,691 5,691 -
$ 2434576 3% 16,467  $ $ 16,467 2,418,109

Total
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Note 11 - Schedules of the Office of Emergency Services (OES), California Victims Compensation & Government
Claims Board, and California Department of Justice grant expenditures (Continued

Program Title and Expenditure Category

High Technology Theft Apprehension & Prosecution

Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Equipment

Total

High Technology Theft Apprehension & Prosecution

Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Total

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

California Victims Compensation & Government Claims Board grant expenditures

Program Title and Expenditure Category

Victim Witness Assistance - BOC
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Total

Victim Witness Restitution for Crime Victims
Personal Services
Operating Expenses
Total

Santa Clara County Parole Advocacy program
Operating Expenses
Equipment

Grant Award Actual Actual Actual
Number/Period Budget Non-match Match Total Variance
HT 07080430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 1,188,056 $ 701,141 $ 486,915 $ 1,188,056 -
1,238,144 1,238,144 - 1,238,144 -
8,376 8,376 - 8,376 -
$ 2434576 $ 1947661 @ $ 486,915 $ 2,434,576 -
HD 07070430
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 232,695 $ 176,505 $ 56,190 $ 232,695 -
469,684 385,398 84,286 469,684 -
$ 702,379 $ 561,903 $ 140476  $ 702,379 -
The following represents the California Victims Compensation & Government Claims Board grant expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
This information is included in the County's single audit report at the request of the California Victims Compensation & Government Claims Board.
Grant Award Actual Actual Actual
Number/Period Budget Non-match Match Total Variance
VCGC7059
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 957,375 $ 875,375 $ - 8 875,375 82,000
173,738 155,738 - 155,738 18,000
$ 1,131,113 $ 1,031,113 $ - $ 1,031,113 100,000
VCGC7077
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 176,211  $ 176,211  $ - $ 176,211 -
2,050 2,050 - 2,050 -
$ 178,261  $ 178,261  $ -3 178,261 -
PA06010430
11/1/06 to 9/30/08  $ 158,828 $ 116,683 $ - 8 116,683 42,145
27,250 - - - 27,250
$ 186,078  $ 116,683  $ - 8 116,683 69,395

Total

California Department of Justice grant expenditures:

The following represents the California Department of Justice grant expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This information is included in the County's single
audit report at the request of the California Department of Justice.

Program Title and Expenditure Category

Spousal Abuser Prosecution Program
Personal Services
Other
Total

Grant Award Actual Actual Actual
Number/Period Budget Non-match Match Total Variance
07SA14B030
7/1/07 to 6/30/08 $ 64,816 $ 44400 $ 20,416 $ 64,816 -
57,680 57,680 - 57,680 -
$ 122,496  $ 102,080 $ 20416 3 122,496 -
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weaknesses identified? No
o Significant deficiencies identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

o Material weaknesses identified? Yes
o Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified for

CFDA No. 14.239

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section
510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.
CFDA No.

14.218 Community Development Block Grants/ Entitlement Grants
14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Program

93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

93.658 Foster Care — Title IV-E

93.667 Social Services Block Grant

93.778 Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX)

93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
97.008/

97.067 Homeland Security Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

Significant Deficiency #1 — Item 2008-A
Coordination of the County’s Accounting Standard Implementations

The Santa Clara County Central Fire Protection District (Central Fire), a component unit of the County,
engages another audit firm to complete its audit. Central Fire has a separate defined benefit
postemployment healthcare plan from the County. Based on our review of the Central Fire’s stand alone
audited financial statements, we noted that the Central Fire did not implement Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 along with the rest
of the County. Although the County recorded its net other postemployment benefit obligations (OPEB) in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 at June 30, 2008 for its employees covered by the defined
benefit postemployment healthcare plan administrated by the Employee Services Agency, the County
under reported the Central Fire’s OPEB by approximately $12 million.

The County should work with Central Fire and all of their other auditors in coordinating the accounting
standards to be implemented and presented in their stand alone financial statements at least annually so
that these statements meet the County’s comprehensive financial reporting requirements. In addition, the
County should review the stand-alone draft financial reports to ascertain whether the information
provided for consolidation into the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is prepared in
accordance with the required standards.

Management Response from the Finance Department

We concur with the recommendation, and will develop a checklist to help staff review the audit reports of
all component units for compliance with GASB requirements. We will discuss all new reporting
requirements with our external auditors at the ‘Entrance Conference’ held in May each year and also
communicate those requirements to our component units and their independent auditors. The Controller-
Treasurer Department routinely monitors all GASB pronouncements for any new accounting and
reporting requirements or changes to the existing standards. We communicate those requirements to the
departments and component units on a periodic basis. In addition, we provide training and information on
major GASB pronouncements to departments and component units at our quarterly fiscal officers’
meetings. Annually, we communicate the upcoming deadlines for new GASB requirements to
independent auditors of all component units. The new checklist and annual discussion with external
auditors will enhance our ability to ensure the component units’ are coordinated with the County in its
compliance with all GASB reporting requirements.

122



COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

Significant Deficiency #2 — ltem 2008-B
Financial Reporting of Net Pension Asset

In May 2005, the State’s Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) agreed to restructure the
County’s pension contribution for the 2004-05 fiscal year-end and defer $35 million of the scheduled
payment. Since May 2005, interest in the amount of $7.2 million has accumulated and was added to the
liability. In fiscal year 2007-08, the County issued taxable pension funding bonds in order to refinance
this obligation and to prepay other amounts arising from enhanced retirement benefits accruing to County
employees totaling $386.6 million.

During the fiscal year, the County did not reduce the deferred amount and cumulative accrued interest in
the amount of $42.2 million at June 30, 2008 against the prepayment of $386.6 million, thereby
overstating the County’s net pension obligation and related net pension asset. This overstatement also
caused the net pension asset amortization schedules to be incorrectly computed. As a result, an audit
adjustment was recorded to reduce the County’s obligation in the amount of $42.2 million, reduce the net
pension asset in the amount of $29.7 million and increase net assets by $12.5 million.

As the County enters into complex transactions, the Finance Agency staff should continue dialogue
between affected parties (e.g., finance and benefits staff) and timely record these transactions in the
accounting system to ensure accurate financing reporting.

Management Response from the Finance Department

We agree with the recommendation, and have already taken steps to improve communication among staff
performing different aspects of certain complex financial transactions. For all future bond issuances, the
debt administration staff will meet with the accounting and reporting staff to update on all pertinent
financial aspects of the debt (issue or refunding) transaction upon completion of such transaction. This
will ensure timely and accurate reporting of such transactions in the County’s financial statements.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding No. 2008-1  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

CFDA No. 14.239 - HOME Investment Partnerships Program

Program Income

Criteria:
Program income is gross income received that is directly generated by the federally funded project during
the grant period, and includes payments of principal and interest on loans made with grant funds. In
accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations Title 24 Housing and Urban Development,
section 85.25 Program Income, program income shall ordinarily be deducted from total allowable costs to
determine the net allowable costs and should be used for current costs unless the federal agency
authorizes otherwise.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has also published Notice CPD 97-09
to provide guidance to HOME participating jurisdictions on the requirements governing program income.
The notice specifies that participating jurisdictions must maintain records which adequately identify the
source and application of their HOME funds (including program income) as part of the financial
transactions of their HOME program, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
Furthermore, program income must be used to the extent available before additional HOME allocation
funds are drawn down. A participating jurisdiction may not draw down HOME allocation funds while
allowing program income to accumulate in its local account.

Condition/Context:

During the performance of our testwork over this federal compliance requirement, we noted the County
received program income in the amount of $44,272 for payments of principal and interest on loans made
with HOME grant funds. The County did not factor in the program income received during the fiscal
year when it requested for draw down of HOME funds through the HUD’s Integrated Disbursement and
Information System (IDIS).

Effect:
The County is at risk of non-compliance with program income requirements.

Questioned Costs:
$44,272

Recommendation:

HUD has designed the IDIS for participating jurisdictions to enter, maintain, and report on projects and
activities for its Office of Community Planning and Development (CPD) grant programs. The County
already uses IDIS to draw down HOME funds and to submit information in compliance with program
requirements. The IDIS User Manual provides specific instructions on the IDIS program income process
and identifies the various reports which can be generated. We recommend the County utilize IDIS to
report the receipt of program income at reasonable periodic intervals such that program income is abated
against subsequent drawdowns to ensure compliance with program income requirements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correction Plan:

The management agrees with the recommendation. Effective in FY09, OAH has implemented a procedure
to enter HOME program income in IDIS quarterly and maintain a log of program income receipts to
ensure it is used to the extent available before HOME funds are drawn down.

Corrective Action Plan Contact Person:
Neena Batallones, Accountant 111, Office of Affordable Housing
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-2  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
CFDA No. 93.778 — Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title X1X)
Passed-through the State of California Department of Health Services
Passed-through the State of California Department of Social Services
Eligibility

Criteria:

In accordance with OMB A-133, a grantee is responsible for documenting eligibility determinations.
Under the Medical Assistance Program eligibility requirements, all forms used for eligibility
determination should be properly documented, re-evaluated and approved.

Under Medical Assistance Program compliance guidelines, the County should document qualified alien
status if the applicant or recipient is not a U.S. citizen (42 USC 1320b-7d) using the State of California
Department of Health Services” MC-13 form. This form is used by eligibility workers to document the
applicant’s citizenship or immigration status declaration and verification of immigration status for non-
citizens who claim satisfactory immigration status.

Condition/Context:

During the performance of our testwork over this federal compliance requirement, we noted that in two
out of the forty cases tested (out of a population of 145,866), the County did not document the eligibility
determination with a MC-13 form in the case file for theses two non U.S. citizen applicants.

Effect:
The lack of documentation indicating the applicant’s citizenship and immigration status may result in
inadequate eligibility determinations, thus benefits could be disbursed to ineligible participants.

Questioned Costs:

Not applicable. The County was only responsible for assisting the State of California in determining
eligibility and received reimbursements for administrative costs only. Direct Medi-Cal expenditures are
not included in the SEFA.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Social Service Agency (SSA) strengthen its monitoring controls over the
eligibility determination process to ensure the completion and maintenance of required documentation.
Eligibility workers should be held responsible for filing all required documentation and supervisors
should review and monitor the process of adequately documenting eligibility determinations.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correction Plan:

SSA agrees with the recommendation on the missing MC-13 forms for non-citizens. As part of our
current application procedures, the MC-13 form is part of the Intake packet of forms given to the
applicant when he/she submits a Medi-Cal application. These forms are reviewed and explained in detail
with the applicant by the eligibility worker and all necessary forms are signed and scanned into our
Integrated Document Management (IDM) system. An Agency Memorandum will be issued to all
eligibility staffs, reminding them to obtain an MC-13 form for all non-citizen applicants and requiring
supervisors to review all cases transferred to the Continuing Units to ensure the completed MC-13 forms
are scanned into IDM. In addition, our Agency’s Staff Development continues to offer training in various
Medi-Cal topics, including the application requirements.

Corrective Action Plan Contact Person:
Tomés Dolcini, Application and Decision Support Manager, Social Service Agency.
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-3  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA No. 14.239 - HOME Investment Partnerships Program
Special Tests & Provisions — Housing Quality Standards

Criteria:

Under the requirements of the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133, the participating jurisdiction
has the responsibility to comply with the Housing Quality Standards inspection requirements. During the
period of affordability (i.e., the period for which the non-Federal entity must maintain subsidized
housing) for HOME assisted rental housing, the County, as the participating jurisdiction, must perform
on-site inspections to determine compliance with property standards and verify the information submitted
by the owners no less than:

e Every three years for projects containing 1 to 4 units;
e Every two years for projects containing 5 to 25 units; and
e Every year for projects containing 26 or more units.

The County must also perform on-site inspections of rental housing occupied by tenants receiving
HOME-assisted tenant-based rental assistance to determine compliance with housing quality standards
and to assure that any needed repairs are completed timely.

Condition/Context:

During the performance of our testwork over this federal compliance requirement, we noted that out of
the 9 projects tested (out of a population of 29 projects), the Office of Affordable Housing (OAH) did not
perform the housing quality inspection performed for 8 projects within the required timeframe.
Subsequent to the required timeframe, the OAH has performed and completed housing quality standards
inspection on all 8 projects in question.

Effect:

Non-compliance with housing quality requirements should result in immediate corrective action by the
borrower. Continued non-compliance by the borrower after notification by the County may potentially
result in the calling of the HOME funded loan. In addition, should HUD determine that the County has
not met its burden in verifying continued compliance in the HOME program it may possibly result in
increased oversight by HUD and reduced annual allocation of HOME funding for future projects.

Questioned Costs:
Not applicable, as the County has subsequently performed and completed the housing quality standards
inspection on all 8 projects in question.

Recommendation:

We recommend the OAH evaluate and reinforce existing procedures over housing quality inspections to
ensure timely inspections. Adequate controls should include procedures to proactively identify and track
inspection due dates ensuring that on-site inspections are scheduled in advance of the due dates to allow
sufficient time for the site reviews. In addition, procedures should be implemented to obtain approved
deadline extensions for instances when inspections are expected to be delayed. The approved extensions
should be documented within the inspection files to demonstrate compliance with program requirements.
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-3 (Continued)

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correction Plan:

OAH concurs with the recommendation. OAH now understands that inspections are required within the
calendar from the prior inspection rather than by fiscal year.

OAH has revised its existing procedures for Housing Quality Inspections to ensure timely inspections are
completed. The revised procedures included adequate controls which identify and track inspection due
dates to ensure on-site inspections are scheduled in advance of the due dates to allow sufficient time for
the site reviews. When an unforeseeable need for a deadline extension occurs, OAH will obtain the
extension from HUD and document in the contract file to ensure that the County is in compliance with
program requirements.

Corrective Action Plan Contact Person:
Angelina McCormick, Senior Management Analyst, Office of Affordable Housing

Finding No. 2008-4  U.S. Department of Homeland Security
CFDA No. 97.008/97.067 — Homeland Security Cluster
Passed-through the City of San Jose
Passed-through the City and County of San Francisco
Passed-through the State of California Office of Emergency Services
Subrecipient Monitoring

Criteria:

In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, grantees are required to ensure that subrecipients who
ultimately expend $500,000 or more in Federal awards during the subrecipient’s fiscal year have met the
audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and that the required audits are completed within 9 months of
the end of the subrecipient’s audit period. The grantee is further required to issue a management decision
on audit findings within 6 months after receipt of the subrecipient’s audit report, and ensure that the
subrecipient takes timely and appropriate corrective action on all audit findings. In cases of continued
inability or unwillingness of a subrecipient to have the required audits, the pass-through entity shall take
appropriate action using sanctions.

Condition/Context:

During the performance of our testwork over this federal compliance requirement, we noted the Office of
Emergency Services (OES) obtained and reviewed the subrecipients’ invoices and supporting schedules
before disbursing reimbursement funds to the subrecipients. However, the OES did not require its
subrecipients receiving pass-through funding to submit single audit reports. The County did not identify
the subrecipients in which single audits are performed, obtain and review the most recent single audit
reports to determine if the subrecipients had a completed audit within the required time frame, nor
ascertain if these subrecipients had findings or questioned costs related to the grants provided.

Effect:
The County is not in compliance with Subrecipient Monitoring requirements.
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-4 (Continued)

Questioned Costs:
None, as the OES has obtained and reviewed the subrecipients’ invoices and supporting schedules before
disbursing reimbursement funds to the subrecipients.

Recommendation:

The OES should develop procedures to identify and determine which subrecipients are required to have a
single audit, ensure that the subrecipients are audited within 9 months of the end of the subrecipient’s
audit period, and acquire the single audit reports from its subrecipients. In addition, the OES should
follow up on any findings that arise as a result of these audits within 6 months after receipt of the
subrecipient’s audit report and take timely and appropriate corrective action on all related audit findings.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correction Plan:
OES concurs that the County has responsibility as a grantee for monitoring subrecipient single audits,
pursuant to OMB Circular A-133.

OES has requested copies of single audit reports from all subrecipients who expended (received)
$500,000 or more in Federal grant funds for FY 2008 subsequent to year-end. Staff is in the process of
review to determine if there are any findings related to Homeland Security Grant expenses. If there are
any pertinent findings, OES will follow up with the subrecipients to monitor if appropriate corrective
actions were made in a timely way.

Beginning with FY 20009:

1. The County will establish a procedure to identify which subrecipients are subject to single audit
requirements. Procedure development will include consideration of options such as adding a clause in
each MOU to submit a Single Audit report to OES if total federal grant funds exceed $500,000 during
a fiscal year.

2. All such subrecipients will be required to provide a copy of the single audit report performed within 9
months of the end of the audit period to the OES Grants Program Manager. Copies of all reports will
be maintained in County Homeland Security Grant program files.

3. If any findings have been made, relating to Homeland Security Grant expenses, for any subrecipient,
the OES Grants Program Manager will follow up within 6 months of receipt of the single audit report,
and take timely and appropriate corrective actions

Corrective Action Plan Contact Person:
Diane Stambaugh, Grants Program Manager, Santa Clara County Office of Emergency Services.
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-5  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
CFDA No. 93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
Passed-through the State of California Department of Social Services
Special Tests & Provisions —
Child Support Non Cooperation, Penalty for Refusal to Work

Criteria:
In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, a grantee is responsible for determining and documenting
eligibility determinations. Specifically, the County is required to:

e Terminate or reduce assistance by at least 25 percent for child support non-cooperation;

e Reduce or terminate assistance for refusal to work subject to any good cause or exemption, such as
unavailability of appropriate child care for an adult single custodial parent caring for a child under the
age of six.

The County has established policies and procedures to send out a notice of action (NOA) to participants
who do not cooperate with child support or who refuse to work at least ten days before the effective date
of the County imposing a sanction on the participants’ benefits.

Condition/Context:
During the performance of our testwork over these federal compliance requirements, we noted the
following:

e Child Support Non Cooperation — Two out of the forty cases tested (out of a population of 105 fiscal
year 2008 cases) that had benefits reduced or terminated did not have a notice of action form in the
case file.

o Penalty for Refusal to Work — One out of the forty cases tested (out of a population of 12,845 cases)
that had benefits reduced did not have a notice of action form in the case file.

Effect:
The County is not in compliance with the Special Tests & Provisions compliance requirement. This may
potentially allow the continuation of funding or over-funding to ineligible individuals.

Questioned Costs:
None, the County reduced or terminated the benefit payments for the cases noted above.

Recommendation:

We recognize that the Social Services Agency (SSA) has provided additional instructions to staff on steps
to follow to ensure that the County is in compliance with the Federal and State regulations. We
recommend the County continue to offer supplemental trainings so that its caseworkers could improve on
their awareness of the regulations. Management should continue to strengthen control ensuing that all
cases information is documented as required.
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Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Finding No. 2008-5 (Continued)

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Correction Plan:

SSA agrees with the above recommendations. SSA continues to provide training on a regular basis on
client rights and responsibilities, as stated in the Santa Clara County CalWORKSs Handbook of Policy and
Procedures, which include the right to a 10-day Notice of Action (NOA) prior to a decrease or
termination of benefits. In addition, our internal corrective action team reviews cases randomly for
specific items and the 10-day NOA for child support non-cooperation and Welfare-to Work sanctions are
among the items in their review. When an error is identified, the worker is instructed to take the necessary
corrective actions and provide verification of the corrective action taken within a specified amount of
time. A County Memorandum is also being issued by Management as a reminder to staff of the existing
regulations and the 10-day NOA requirement.

Corrective Action Plan Contact Person:
Maria Candy Savin, CalWORKSs Program Coordinator, Social Service Agency.
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Federal Award Findings
Reference Number:

Federal Catalog Number:

Audit Finding:

Status of Corrective Action:

Reference Number:

Federal Catalog Number:

Audit Finding:

Status of Corrective Action:

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

2007-1

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program

Reporting

The County did not complete the Form HUD 60002, Section 3 Annual
Summary Report as required by 24 CFR Sections 135.3(a), 135.90, and
570.607 for the Community Development Block Grant and the HOME
Investment Partnerships Program. The County has not attended recent
trainings provided by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) and as such did not realize that they were required
to complete a separate annual report because the County was a prime
recipient of funds over $200,000 that involved housing rehabilitation,
housing construction or other public construction.

Appears corrected based on our testing of the programs in the current
year.

2007-2

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through the State of California, Department of Social Services

93.658 — Foster Care_Title IV-E

Eligibility

= 4 participant files did not have a Form FC 2 completed during fiscal
year 2007, thus not meeting the required twelve-month eligibility re-
determination requirement.

= 4 participant files had Form FC 2 completed after the required due
date during fiscal year 2007, thus not meeting the required twelve-
month eligibility re-determination requirement.

= 1 participant file did not have a complete Form SOC 815 on file.

Appears corrected based on our testing of the program in the current
year.
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COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued)

Reference Number:

Federal Catalog Number:

Audit Finding:

Status of Corrective Action:

Reference Number:

Federal Catalog Number:

Audit Finding:

Status of Corrective Action:

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

2007-3

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through the State of California, Department of Social Services
93.658 — Foster Care_Title IV-E

Reporting

The 3 monthly CA-237 reports selected for testing ranged from 2 to 9
days late and 1 out of 3 monthly CA-800 reports selected for testing was
filed 20 days after the due date.

Appears corrected based on our testing of the program in the current
year.

2007-4

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through the State of California, Department of Social Services
93.558 - Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Allowable Costs/Cost Principles

Out of a sample size of 35, 5 employees did not have an approving
signature from the department supervisor on the time cards. Without
adequate internal controls over the approval of time entry, cash payments
to the employees could not be readily verified as authorized.

Appears corrected based on our testing of the program in the current
year.
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